Audit and Governance Committee
Meeting: Monday, 23rd July 2018 at 6.30 pm in Civic Suite - North
Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP
Membership:
Contact:

Cllrs. Gravells (Chair), Melvin (Vice-Chair), H. Norman, Pearsall,
Smith, Stephens and Wilson
Democratic and Electoral Services
01452 396126
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or nonpecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please
see Agenda Notes.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 14)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 2018.

4.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
To receive any questions from members of the public provided that a question does not relate
to:



5.

Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or
Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in respect
of individual Council Officers

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
To receive any petitions and deputations provided that no such petition or deputation is in
relation to:



6.

Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or
Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN (Pages 15 - 20)
To consider the Action Plan.

7.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 21 - 102)
1

To consider the Statement of Accounts, presented by the Head of Policy and Resources.

8.

KPMG EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2017/18 (ISA 260 TO THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE)
To consider the report presented by KPMG.
TO FOLLOW

9.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 (Pages 103 - 148)
To consider the statement, prepared by the Head of Policy and Resources, which
summarises the City Council’s governance arrangements during 2017/18.

10.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SIX MONTHLY UPDATE 2017/18 (Pages 149 - 158)
To receive a report to update Members on treasury management activities.

11.

INTERNAL AUDIT/EXTERNAL AUDIT JOINT WORKING PROTOCOL (Pages 159 166)
To consider the report from the Head of Audit Risk Assurance which details the Internal
Audit/External Audit protocol for joint working.

12.

BENEFIT ACCURACY REPORT (Pages 167 - 170)
To receive a report from the Intelligent Client Officer on the benefits error rate.

13.

AMEY STREET SCENE CONTRACT (Pages 171 - 174)
To receive a briefing from the Corporate Director on the latest position following the year-end
financial outturn.
NOTE: Following consideration of a request for the Committee to consider this item in public,
the papers have now been made available.

14.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 175 - 176)
To consider the Work Programme.

15.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL ACTIVITY 2017/18 - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 177
- 214)
To consider the report of the Head of Audit Risk Assurance providing the Committee with an
annual report on Internal Audit Activity which fully meets the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual
reporting requirements, as set out in the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS)
2017.
Please note that Appendix 3 is exempt from disclosure to the press and public by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended (including the
Authority holding that information). If Members wish to discuss Appendix 3 the Committee will
need to resolve to exclude the press and public before doing so.

16.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday 17th September 2018 at 6:30pm in the Civic Suite, North Warehouse.

2

Jon McGinty
Managing Director
Date of Publication: Friday, 13 July 2018

3

NOTES
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows –
Interest

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest)
and the Council
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are
to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area.
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the
land or to receive income.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
Council’s area for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) –
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner
or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has
a beneficial interest

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land
in the Council’s area and
(b) either –
i. The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
body; or
ii. If the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with

4

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or
civil partner where you are aware of their interest.
Access to Information
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website:
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting
date.
For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk.
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information
please call 01452 396396.
Recording of meetings
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy,
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors,
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in
advance of the meeting.
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings;
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the
assembly point in the car park and await further instructions;
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is
safe to do so.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MEETING

:

Monday, 12th March 2018

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. Gravells (Chair), Melvin (Vice-Chair), Stephens and H. Norman
Others in Attendance
Accountancy Manager
Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods
Community Wellbeing Manager
Corporate Director (Service Transformation)
Head of Policy and Resources
Project Solace Team Leader
Group Manager, Audit Risk Assurance (ARA)
Democratic and Electoral Services Team Leader

APOLOGIES
60.

:

Cllrs. Morgan and Wilson

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
60.1

There were no declarations of interest.

61.

MINUTES

62.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
62.1

63.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
63.1

64.

There were no public questions.

There were no petitions or deputations.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN
64.1

The Committee considered the Action Plan.

64.2

In relation to minute 35, the Corporate Director (Service Transformation)
referred the Committee to the briefing note which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting. He drew to Members’ attention that Marketing
Gloucester and Gloucestershire Airport Limited were governed by Company
Page
17

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18
law. He stated that the Gloucester Culture Trust presented an annual report
to Council and that partnership agreements were in place for the delivery of
other services.

65.

64.3

With regard to minute 50, the Head of Policy and Resources reported that
the Council had not lost money to the DWP as a result of error sampling and
advised that a benefit accuracy report would be brought to the next
Committee meeting.

64.4

Referring to minute 51, the Head of Policy and Resources stated that the
government had recently issued treasury management guidance and that the
Council would be required to update the Public Investment Strategy and the
Capital Investment Strategy. He advised that the Council had until the end of
March 2019. Councillor Stephens enquired as to whether there would be a
specific report on proportionality and the Property Investment Fund or would
it just include the capital strategy. The Head of Policy and Resources add
that a ten-year capital strategy would be drawn up and that Member would
be fully informed – a matter that was recognised by central government.

64.5

With regard to minute 56, the Committee was informed that data was still
being collated. Additionally, the Committee was referred to the written
answer circulated prior to the meeting.

64.6

RESOLVED:- That the Audit and Governance Committee note the report.

MANAGEMENT UPDATE AS TO ACTIONS TAKEN IN RESPECT OF THE
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE WITHIN THE PROJECT SOLACE LIMITED
ASSURANCE REVIEW
65.1

The Community Wellbeing Manager provided an update with regard to the
recommendations made within the Project Solace Limited Assurance
Review. She reported that significant movement had been made towards the
recommendations and that and that partnership working was well underway.

65.2

The Community Wellbeing Manager advised that KPIs had been agreed
although they had not been signed off. She further advised that an
information sharing agreement was available and she felt that significant
progress had been made in a short space of time. Councillor Watkins
(Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods) stated that she was
very proud of the project and that it was a very good example of partnership
working.

65.3

Councillor Stephens expressed his belief that this would require reexamination in six months’ time as it was too early to assess whether the
recommendations were working. The Group Manager (ARA) advised that the
2018/19 Audit Plan proposed follow up of the Project Solace internal audit
recommendations.

65.4

The Chair stated that he was pleased that the recommendations had been
implemented so quickly. He agreed that it should be reviewed in six months
and thanked the Project Solace team for their hard work.
Page 28

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18
65.5

RESOLVED:(1) That the Audit and Governance Committee note the Management update
in respect of the recommendations made within the Project Solace
Limited Assurance Review, and;
(2) That a further update be schedule for the September 2018 meeting.

66.

67.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
66.1

The Committee considered the report of the Cabinet Member for
Performance and Resources and the Accountancy Manager provided an
overview of its contents. He advised that Treasury Management was a
matter that Council was required to examine in order to manage borrowing.

66.2

The Accountancy Manager advised that the Council’s Treasury position
changed during the year due to the property deal at King’s Walk. He further
advised that funds had been placed into the CCLA and that the report in front
of the Committee advised Members of under-borrowing. Further, the
Accountancy Manager stated that the Treasury position was the same in
terms of the Public Investment Scheme and the Capital Investment Strategy.

66.3

Councillor Stephens stated that he would welcome some training in this
regard as it was important that Members understood the detail of Treasury
Management. The Chair concurred and stated that he would like to see
updates and explanations on such matters at the beginning of each
Committee meeting.

ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 2017/18
67.1

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Audit Risk Assurance
which provided Members with an update on the Council’s risk management
activities. The Group Manager (ARA) drew attention to the Strategic Risk
Register and confirmed that Appendix 1 was the Council position as at 13th
February 2018.

67.2

The Group Manager (ARA) stated that this risk register had last been
presented to Committee in November 2017 and that change had occurred
since that point. For example ‘delay to delivery of the Joint Core Strategy’
has now been removed from the Strategic Risk Register.

67.3

Councillor Stephens queried how, given recent disruption, risk associated
with refuse collection had been reduced. The Corporate Director (Service
Transformation) advised that the Strategic Risk Register risk 9 was related to
emergency planning and that the risk score was reduced due to continued
work with the County Council. With regard to refuse collection, he confirmed
that the Council had committed to a ‘lessons learnt’ report and that this was
considered operational risk rather than strategic.

Page 9 3

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18
67.4

The Chair queried whether the Audit team examined civil contingency. By
way of example, he raised previous flooding and the matter of what the
public should do in the event of a civil emergency. He stated that, previously,
plans had been drawn up for emergencies. He further queried at what point
the Committee could have the Audit team examine such matters.

67.5

Councillor Norman stated that this was something that should be considered
as she had never herself come across any provision for emergency planning.

67.6

The Corporate Director stated that, in the event of an emergency, the first
port of call for people is the emergency services. He further stated that plans
which applied more than ten years ago could bear no relation to the present.
He suggested looking at such provision and holding a briefing for all
Members. The Chair concurred. Councillor Stephens suggested including
such information during the induction period for newly elected Members.

67.7

The Group Manager (ARA) confirmed that the 2018/19 Audit Plan proposed
a Business Continuity Planning internal audit, to review the Council’s
arrangements in place designed to ensure that as far as possible it can
continue to operate the critical elements of the service in the event of
disruption.

67.8

RESOLVED:(1) That the Audit and Governance Committee note the report, and;
(2) That an all Member briefing on emergency planning be arranged within
21 days.

68.

INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 2017/18 - PROGRESS REPORT.
68.1

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Audit Risk Assurance.
The Group Manager (ARA) summarised two months of audit activity
outcomes which included Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP),
Gloucester Lottery and King’s Quarter. She further advised that good
progress had been made against the 2017/18 Audit Plan to date.

68.2

Councillor Stephens expressed concern that the DHP allocation had not
been utilised to its fullest extent. He stated that it was such an important
benefit given the roll out of Universal Credit and queried why the Council had
spent less than half its allocation.

68.3

Councillor Stephens expressed further concern that the individual who had
been recruited to the Temporary and Homeless Accommodation Benefit
Officer position had not taken up the post and queried why this was the case.
Councillor Stephens also questioned whether the public was being
signposted to the correct services. He stated that he would like sight of how
many DHP claims had been refused and what was classed as income when
a claim was assessed. The Chair agreed and stated that he was
disappointed with the position.

Page 10
4

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18
68.4

The Head of Policy and Resources advised that information on the refusals
of claims would be provided as well as information from other districts on
how they spent their DHP allocation.

68.5

In respect of the Gloucester Lottery, Councillor Stephens queried why the
bank statements of the client account had not been provided. The Chair also
queried why these had not been provided. The Head of Policy and
Resources advised that a data agreement was in place and that the Council
would comply with data protection legislation. He stated that the Council
received a breakdown of both monies and the rolling prize fund each week.
He further stated that the Council’s audit team had assured the finance team
that this was good practice.

68.6

Councillor Norman stated that she was content with the arrangement as the
Gloucester Lottery operated in a highly regulated industry and suggested
having sight of the Gambling Commission’s report. In addition, the Group
Manager (ARA) confirmed that current external lottery manager professional
indemnity and public liability insurance certificates had been provided for
audit review.

68.7

The Head of Policy and Resources advised that the breakdown of
expenditure was: 60% to good causes, 17% for an administration fee, 3%
VAT and 20% was spent on lottery prizes. In response to a query from
Councillor Stephens as to whether access to bank statements could be
inserted into the contract, the Head of Policy and Resources stated that he
would check with One Legal.

68.8

RESOLVED:(1) That the Audit and Governance Committee note the report,
(2) Information on the refusals of claim and information from other districts
on they spent their DHP allocation would be circulated as well as
information from other districts on how they spent their DHP allocation,
and;
(3) One Legal to be consulted on whether a requirement to receive bank
statements could be inserted into the Gloucester Lottery contract and
what the implications of doing so would be.

69.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
69.1

The Group Manager (ARA) provided an overview of the report which gave
the Committee a summary of the proposed Risk Based Internal Audit Plan.

69.2

She outlined that consultation work had been undertaken with management
and that Committee input had also been obtained. By way of example, she
highlighted the Great Place funding review which was as a result of
Committee discussion and request. She further highlighted that the 2018/19
Plan included follow up audits where a 2017/18 audit resulted in a limited
assurance opinion e.g. Project Solace and the Officer Code of Conduct.

Page 115

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18

70.

69.3

The Group Manager (ARA) advised that the Plan is dynamic and will be
reviewed with officers and Committee on a regular basis in year, to consider
risks on an ongoing basis and appropriately prioritise audit activities (e.g.
new activity requests).

69.4

RESOLVED: - That the Audit and Governance Committee approve the
report.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (CHAIR'S
REPORT)
70.1

The Committee considered the Chair’s Annual Report and no further
comment was made.

70.2

RESOLVED:That the Audit and Governance Committee approve the Chair’s Annual
Report.

71.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
71.1

The Committee considered the work programme.

71.2

RESOLVED:That the Audit and Governance Committee note the work programme.

72.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
72.1

73.

RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded from the meeting
during the following item of business on the grounds that it is likely, in view of
the nature of business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that
if members of the press and public are present during consideration of this
item there will be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as
amended.

AMEY KPIS AND PENALTIES PROVISIONS
73.1

The Corporate Director referred Members to the KPIs and penalties which
had been agreed with AMEY and which had been circulated prior to the
meeting.

73.2

The Corporate Director stated that he hoped it gave Members reassurance
that AMEY was expected to perform highly.

73.3

The Vice-Chair stated that it was positive the Council had got to this position
and thanked officers for their hard work in achieving this.

73.4

RESOLVED:- That the Audit and Governance Committee note the updated
KPIs and penalty provisions.
Page 12
6

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
12.03.18
74.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
74.1

23rd July 2018 at 6.30pm in the Civic Suite, North Warehouse.

Time of commencement: 6.00 pm hours
Time of conclusion: 7.50 pm hours
Chair

Page 137

This page is intentionally left blank

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 6 July 2018
ACTION PLAN

MINUTE
NO.

MATTER

CURRENT STATUS

RAG

TARGET DATE

OWNER

Actions arising from meeting held on 12 March 2018:

Page 15

To include training/information on Treasury
Management and associated financial
information

Financial matters to be discussed at the start of each
meeting

A

July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT/AC

67

To organise an all Member briefing to inform
Members of emergency planning in the City.

Organised for October 2018

G

Within 21 days of March
2018 Committee Meeting.

JL/LG

67

For the Member Development Working Group to
consider including emergency planning/contact
details in the induction period for new Members.

Details to be included during induction period

G

July 2018
Committee Meeting.

SB

68

To provide information on why the new post of
benefit officer has not been taken up.

This post has now been taken up

G

July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT

68

Circulate how many DHP claims have been
refused? Circulate what is and is not classed as
income in the DHP assessment?

Complete

G

Prior to July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT

68

Circulate information from other districts on how
they are spending their DHP allocation.

Complete

G

Prior to July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT

68

In regards to Gloucester Lottery, to provide the
Gambling Commission’s report/audit.

Complete

G

July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT

Agenda Item 6

66

68

In regards to Gloucester Lottery, to check with
One Legal whether access to bank statements
can be inserted into the contract and what the
implication of doing so would be.

One Legal have been consulted
A

July 2018
Committee Meeting

JT

Page 16

DHP Statistics
The statistics for DHP's in respect of the other districts as comparable data for members.
The spend and allocated budgets for 2017/18 are as follows:
Cheltenham
476 applications
Budget- £206,154, spend £137,344 (67%)
Stroud
258 applications
Budget- £153,989, spend £120,073 (78%)
Tewkesbury
371 applications
Budget- £137,699, spend £131,752 (96%)
Cotswold
291 applications
Budget- £107,805, spend £105,470 (98%)
Gloucester
783 applications
Budget- £345,285, spend £214,379 (62%)
Forest of Dean
324 applications
Budget and allocated spend not provided.
At a glance it is clear that due to the significantly higher amount of applications that
Gloucester receives, this is why out of all the districts we receive more funding than our
neighbouring councils.
It must be highlighted that despite other districts such as Tewkesbury or Cotswold spending
almost all their allocation, Gloucester over the last year has spent the same percentage of
its allocation which is £65,000 more than last year.
All applications are considered on their own merit and refusals only considered where
households show means to cover the shortfalls in their rent themselves. This being

Page 17

determined by the income and expenditure provided to us by the applicant.

Page 18

Private and confidential
Mr Ben Speare
Gatherwell Limited
The Coach House
Hill Farm Road
MARLOW
SL7 3LX

19 June 2017
Dear Mr Speare
Finalisation letter
Licence number: 000-036893-R-317859-006
Gambling Commission reference: AR 1-115355406
I am writing to confirm the findings of the recent compliance assessment undertaken by a visit to your
premises at The Coach House, Hill Farm Road, MARLOW, SL7 3LX on 12 June 2017
The purpose of the assessment was to establish whether the licensed activities that apply to your
operating licence are being carried out in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) and
specifically the licence conditions and codes of practice which apply to your licence.
Although no issues were identified that warrant a written response, the following matters were
identified for you to consider and adhere to in the future. For the purpose of clarity, those issues that
are licence condition specific or relate to a social responsibility (SR) code must be complied with.
Failure to do so may result in regulatory action. Other issues may relate to ordinary code provisions
which do not have the same status as licence conditions or of SR code provisions. However you
should adhere to these, unless you have a clearly explained reason for doing otherwise, and they
may be taken into account should a review of your licence take place.
Summary of compliance assessment
1. Licence condition 4.2.1
Currently the level of protection afforded is not shown in the Rules document supplied and we
agreed that this would be amended to show both the level of protection for the initial deposit of
funds (i.e. no protection) and the level afforded once the funds have been cleared to the Nat
West account.
2. SR code provision 3.2.13
This code requires licensee to carry out random checks of players who self- verify for
compliance with age restrictions. We agreed that the procedure would be updated and this
would be introduced.

Although no other specific issues were identified in the course of the assessment, I should emphasise
that this does not constitute an audit and cannot be relied upon to identify any deficiencies in your
arrangements which might, in future, become the focus of action by the Commission, up to and

Victoria Square House

PageVictoria
19 Square
Birmingham B2 4BP

T+44 121 230 6666
F+44 121 230 6720
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

including regulatory sanctions. The outcome of the assessment does not signify ongoing validation or
approval of your internal processes or procedures.
Mr Richard Nokes and I would like to thank you and Mr Wayne Chow for the assistance provided
during the assessment.
Should you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on 0121 230 6669 or at
sfoster@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
Yours sincerely

Stephen Foster
Compliance Manager
Office: 0121 230 6669
Mobile 07572159305
s.foster@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
2017/18 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
CONTENTS
Page

Welcome to the Statement of Accounts 2017/18

1

Narrative Report

4

Explanation of the Financial Statements

13

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

14

Statement of Accounting Policies

16

The Core Financial Statements
Movement in Reserves Statement

26

Group Movement in Reserves Statement

27

Expenditure and Funding Analysis Note

28

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

29

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

30

Balance Sheet

31

Group Balance Sheet

32

Cash Flow Statement

33

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

34

The Supplementary Financial Statements
Collection Fund

72

Glossary of Financial Terms

76

Independent Auditors Report

81

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 21

INTRODUCTION

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 22

Gloucester City Council
Welcome to the Statement of Accounts 2017/18
I hope you find these accounts interesting and informative. The accounts, together with the accompanying
notes, explain the Council’s services and how your council tax was spent during the year.
In these times of year on year cuts in government funding for local government the Council continues to provide
sound financial management and deliver good value services. The Council remains committed to continuous
improvement in all areas and to drive forwards best practice and value for money for the services delivered in
Gloucester City.
The Council achieved efficiency savings in excess of £1.8m for 2017/18 which is over 10% of the original
budget. Our updated Medium Term Financial Plan (Money Plan) provides a clear strategic direction for the
Council finances through to 2021/22. We are confident of achieving the savings targets we have set ourselves
for 2018/19 of £200k both to meet the financial pressures placed upon us from reductions in government grant
but also to keep Council Tax levels low for our residents.
The City Council’s element of the Council Tax for a Band D property was £190.42 for 2017/18. This represents
around 12% of an average bill of £1,590.61. The City’s Council tax again provided excellent value for money.
As part of continued improvement in financial management at Gloucester City Council we produced these
accounts ahead of the statutory deadline. The early production of these accounts is only possible by having
sound financial management processes and a robust system of budget monitoring through out the year. This
reflects the dedication of all finance staff in delivering these improvements both in this and future financial
years.
The information contained within these accounts is presented as simply and clearly as possible. However the
accounts of such a large and diverse organisation as Gloucester City Council are, by their nature, both technical
and complex.
I have structured this narrative statement to enable readers to understand the Council, its operating
environment and to assist in the understanding of the Statement of Accounts.
The sections contained with this narrative statement are;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Key facts about Gloucester
Key facts about Gloucester City Council
A summary of financial performance
Non-financial performance
An explanation of the financial statements

The 2017/18 statement of accounts will be published in July 2018.
Finally a thank you to you, the reader, for showing an interest in the Council’s finances. If you would like to
know more about the Council’s finances please do not hesitate to contact us at the address below.

Jon Topping
Head of Policy and Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Gloucester City Council
Herbert Warehouse
The Docks
Gloucester, GL1 2EQ

T 01452 396242
F 01452 396212
E financeservices@gloucester.gov.uk
www.gloucester.gov.uk

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 23
1
Page

This page has been deliberately left blank

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 224
Page

NARRATIVE REPORT

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 25

NARRATIVE REPORT
1. Introduction
The Statement of Accounts presents the financial position of the Council for the year ended 31 March
2018. The Accounts are produced in the format stipulated by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) in accordance with best accounting practice. This report provides a brief
explanation of the financial aspects of the Council’s activities and a guide to the significant matters
reported in the accounts.
The Narrative Report provides information about Gloucester City Council and the key issues affecting the
Council and its accounts, including a summary of its financial position at 31st March 2018.
2. An Introduction to Gloucester City
Gloucester City is a district council in the County of Gloucestershire with one parish council, Quedgeley
Town Council. The City shares its borders with Stroud District Council, Forest of Dean District Council
and Tewkesbury Borough Council. Gloucester, the county City, has plenty on offer and is everything
you’d expect from a vibrant, multi-cultural British City.
It has one of the richest heritage offerings in the country, from its time as a Roman colony, to one of the
three most important medieval cities in England, then its development into an industrial centre. It is home
to one of the finest medieval buildings in the country: the breath-taking cathedral which has formed the
backdrop of many scenes in Doctor Who and Harry Potter films.
The famous Kingsholm stadium, home of Gloucester Rugby Club, is renowned for hosting world class
rugby with the club one of the leading clubs in the country and part of the premiership.
The historic docks have seen a stunning regeneration in recent years, delivering a retail outlet centre,
great leisure and catering offerings, and superb riverside accommodation.
The City has many cultural offerings, hosting the Tall Ships festival, the Three Choirs Festival, several
museums and the NME-shortlisted Guildhall music and performance venue.
Today, Gloucester is undergoing something of a modern day renaissance, rediscovering and
celebrating its rich history. The regeneration of the docks, Bakers Quay, the Kings Quarter, the Greater
Blackfriars area and other once-neglected areas of the City has brought in significant investment.
The profile of the local population is an important factor in the services the Council provides. The Office
for National Statistics Mid-Year Estimates for 2016 reported that Gloucester's estimated population was
128,355 with the age profile as presented below.

Composition of Population Gloucester
16%
25%
0 - 19
20 - 64
65 and over
59%

GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page
26 COUNCIL
Page 4

NARRATIVE REPORT
3. About Gloucester City Council
Gloucester City Council is a multifunctional and complex organisation. Its policies are directed by the
political leadership and implemented by Senior Management Team and Officers of the Council. The
following section describes the political and management structures of the Council.
In 2017/18 Gloucester had 18 wards. Residents of the City were represented by 39 Councillors during
2017/18, the Council hold elections every 4 years the last being in May 2016.
The political make up of the Council for 2017/18 was:
Party
Conservative Party
Labour Party
Liberal Democratic Party

No of Councillors
22 Councillors
10 Councillors
7 Councillors

Overall control of the Council sits with the Conservative party with a majority of 5 seats. Representatives
from Conservative, Labour and Liberal Democrat hold seats on the Council.
The Council employs a work force of approximately 185 staff to manage and deliver services to residents
under the direction of the Senior Management Team. The senior management structure and statutory
officers in place during 2017/18 is shown below:
Managing Director (Head of
Paid Service)
Jon McGinty

Head of Policy &
Resources (S151 Officer)
Jon Topping

Corporate Director
Anne Brinkhoff

Corporate Director
(Monitoring Officer)
Jonathan Lund

The Council provides a wide range of services to residents, through direct provision, joint working,
strategic partnerships and through third parties.
Detailed below are posts held during 2017/18:
Mayor and Deputy Mayor in the 2017/18 Municipal Year
Mayor - Councillor S Morgan
Sheriff and Deputy Mayor - Councillor P Toleman

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
27 COUNCIL
Page 5

NARRATIVE REPORT

3. About Gloucester City Council (Cont.)
Cabinet in 2017/18
Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Economy - Councillor
P James
Deputy Leader of the Council - Councillor J Watkins
Cabinet Member Performance and Resources - Councillor D Norman MBE
Cabinet Member Communities and Neighbourhoods - Councillor J Watkins
Cabinet Member Housing & Planning - Councillor C Organ
Cabinet Member Environment - Councillor R Cook
Cabinet Member for Culture & Leisure - Councillor L Noakes

Chair of Committees in 2017/18
Licensing Committee - Councillor H Norman
Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Councillor T Coole
General Purposes Committee - Councillor K Williams
Planning Committee - Councillor G Taylor
Audit and Governance Committee - Councillor A Gravells

Chief Officers in 2017/18
Managing Director (Head of Paid Service) - Mr J McGinty
Corporate Director - Mrs A Brinkhoff
Corporate Director (Monitoring Officer) - Mr J Lund
Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Responsible Officer) - Mr J Topping
4. A summary of Financial Performance

The 2017/18 budgeting process was as in the previous years of austerity influenced by the on-going
need to make savings and efficiencies while still delivering council services to the residents of the city.
The net budget requirement of £14.555m was approved by Cabinet and Council in February 2017. The
Money Plan (www.gloucester.gov.uk/council/performance-and-spending/budget-and-finance/Pages/5Year-Money-Plan.aspx) identified targeted reductions in 2017/18 of £1.649m. The Money Plan included
an increase in Council Tax of £5 which resulted in an income from Council Tax of £6.990m.
In producing the Money Plan for 2017-18 to 2021-22 the aim was to align the objectives set out in the
Council Plan 2014-17. The revenue budget reductions included in the Money Plan highlighted that the
Council would have to continue to significantly review its future organisational arrangements in order to
provide value for money services. The Council to address the high level of savings required commenced
a transformation programme called "Together Gloucester" to deliver £1m savings. The resultant
reorganisation delivered in excess of the target and the transformation programme continues.
The net revenue budget approved by Council in February was £14.55m. The actual net expenditure for
the year was £14.92m including transfers to and from earmarked reserves.
Funding was £177k better than budgeted and the combined position has seen a £19k decrease in the
General Fund.
The following table details the Council's final net revenue expenditure analysed by service area.
This differs from the Net Cost of Service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
Statement by the exclusion of costs relating to depreciation, revenue expenditure funded by capital under
statute and certain pension adjustments.

GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page
28 COUNCIL
Page 6

NARRATIVE REPORT
4. A summary of Financial Performance (cont)
2017/18 Year End
Budget Outturn Variance

Service

£000
209
857
(2,237)
(1,004)
468
(330)
388
(87)
172
247
(15)
20
367
4,475
45
85
68
(1,265)
105
180
1,311
705
(479)
1,418
261
86
382
421
709
170
320
(258)
61
19
392
21
17
910
199
9,416

Economic Development
Asset Management
Commercial Property
Parking
Senior Management
Markets and Street Trading
Museums
Food and Drink
Guildhall
Aspire Client
TIC
Great Place
Marketing Gloucester
Waste and Streetcare
Neighbourhood Management
Countryside and Allotments
Head of Place
Cemetery and Crematorium
Flooding and Emergency Planning
Internal Audit
Financial and Corporate
Revenues and Benefits Admin
Housing Subsidy
IT
Human Resources
Communications
Legal Services
Contact Centre and Customer Services
Democratic Services
Voluntary Sector Grants
Community Strategy and Other Projects
Licensing
Shopmobility
Health and Safety
Environmental Health
Housing Strategy and Social Impact Bond
Private Sector Housing
Homelessness
Planning
Total Service Expenditure

£000
228
1,009
(3,017)
(1,140)
496
(109)
579
(56)
238
271
33
18
366
4,612
(5)
97
65
(1,214)
58
187
1,128
653
(82)
1,426
280
74
352
441
698
123
250
(233)
62
31
386
(92)
52
1,042
424
9,731

£000
19
152
(780)
(136)
28
221
191
31
66
25
48
(2)
(1)
137
(50)
12
(3)
51
(47)
6
(183)
(52)
397
9
19
(12)
(30)
20
(12)
(47)
(70)
25
1
12
(6)
(113)
35
132
225
316

As identified in the table below a final position of an overspend of £0.019m compared to a budgeted
2017/18 Year End
Budget Outturn Variance

Service
Interest Income
Interest Expenditure
Minimum Revenue Provision
Corporate Pension Contribution
Additional Staff Restructuring Saving
Total Corporate Costs
Transfer to / (from) General Fund

£000
(36)
990
820
3,130
230
5,134

£000
(215)
1,515
529
3,364
0
5,193

£000
(179)
525
(291)
234
(230)
59

174

(19)

193

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
29 COUNCIL
Page 7

NARRATIVE REPORT
4. A summary of Financial Performance (cont.)
The expenditure was financed by sources of funding as detailed in the table below:
2017/18 Year End
Budget Position
Variance
(7,080)
(7,083)
(3)
(3,860)
(4,025)
(165)
(1,102)
(1,102)
0
(2,687)
(2,696)
(9)
(14,729)
(14,906)
(177)

Service
Council Tax Funding
Retained Business Rates
Revenue Support Grant
New Homes Bonus
Total Funding

The main variances relate to essentially one off items being as follows;
1. Cost in providing temporary accommodation in support of homelessness
2. The non-delivery of savings targets by Guildhall and Museums services
3. Planning income falling below budgeted levels.
4. Saving on Car Park rent
5. Increased income from the business rates pool
6. Reduced income from the markets service
The gross cost of service provision amounts to £119.443m and this has been analysed by type as
shown in the table below:

Expenditure Type
Employee Expenses
Other Service Expenses
Other Operating Expenditure
Capital charges and investment property expenditure
Business rates expenditure
Gross Cost of Services

2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
9,364
9,169
67,276
66,986
829
1,191
25,887
5,788
16,188
17,658
119,544 100,792

The Council received gross income of £101.240m and this is analysed in the table below:
Income Type
Government Grants
Income from Council Tax and non-specific grant income
Fees,Charges & Other Service Income
Interest and Investment property income and other operating income

GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page
30 COUNCIL
Page 8

2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
42,574
44,883
39,973
35,363
16,485
13,100
2,208
2,287
101,240
95,633

NARRATIVE REPORT
4. A summary of Financial Performance (cont.)
The capital budget was approved by Cabinet and Council in February 2017, with subsequent
approvals bringing the final capital budget to £11.492m for 2017/18. Capital expenditure for
2017/18 was £7.761m.
There was an underspend on the revised capital budget compared to budgeted expenditure of
£3.728m, these underspends will be carried forward into 2018/19 capital programme to meet on
going capital commitments.
A summary of the capital expenditure is shown below. Of the £7.761m spend, £7.039m added to
the value of the Council's fixed assets, and the balance was written off in year to the Income and
Expenditure Account as revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute. The sources of
funding for the Council's capital expenditure in 2017/18 are also shown below:

Capital Expenditure
Kings Quarter development
Kings Walk Shopping Centre enhancements
City Centre Improvement Fund
HCA Regeneration - Commercial Rd Public Realm
GCC Building Improvements
ICT Projects
Housing projects
Drainage and Flood Protection Works
Townscape Heritage Initiative - HLF
Ranger Centre Barns/Storage
Horsbere Brook Local Nature Reserve works
Play Area Improvement Programme
Crematorium Cremator Improvements
Other Grant Funded Projects
Elmbridge Open Space Improvements
Robinswood All Paths Project
Retaining Wall

£000
4,446
1,070
78
591
6
292
724
43
112
18
2
5
34
282
6
5
47
7,761

In addition to the Capital Expenditure below the Council incurred £858k of restructuring costs
relating to the "Together Gloucester" staff restructure which were funded from capital receipts
under the flexible use of capital receipts regulations.
The property deal relating to the Kings Walk shopping centre added a right of use asset of
£19.89m to the balance sheet of the authority which was funded by the long term lease liability.
The table below shows how the Council financed its capital expenditure:

Source of Funding

£000

Section 106
Usable Capital receipts
Grants
Revenue

221
1,193
6,329
18
7,761

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
31 COUNCIL
Page 9

NARRATIVE REPORT
5. Accounting Issues and Developments
Pension Fund Deficit
The Council's share of the deficit on the Pension Fund, as at 31 March 2018, has decreased from
£68.629m to £63.964m see note 41 for further details.
6. A summary of Non-Financial Performance
In response to the on-going challenges facing local government and Gloucester City Council
the Council Plan 2014-17 and the Money Plan 2017-22 have been developed to ensure the
Council's strategic objectives and priorities are met.
Gloucester has a clearly defined vision;
“Gloucester will be a flourishing modern and ambitious City which all residents can
enjoy"
The Council Plan 2014-2017 contains four key priorities which are underpinned by a number of
objectives, as detailed below:
Priority 1: Prosperity – Growing Gloucester’s Economy:
Attracting investment, nurturing and encouraging enterprise
A City with skills and job opportunities
A thriving centre and regeneration of the City
Priority 2: People – Working with our communities
Listening to our residents
An active, healthy and safe city for all to enjoy
A City for Everyone
Priority 3: Place – Pride in Our City and improving our environment
A greener Gloucester
A distinctive cultural offer for the City
Affordable and decent housing for all
Priority 4: Performance – Sound finances and strong performance
Sound Finances
Improving performance

Despite the financial constraints we have to operate under, we are still ambitious for the City
and strive to deliver excellent services for our residents.

GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page
32 COUNCIL
Page 10

NARRATIVE REPORT
6. A summary of Non-Financial Performance (cont.)
Key achievements during 2017/18 include:
•

The past decade has seen significant progress in regeneration across the city. 2017 was
another year of real achievement in this regard and 2018 promises to be action-packed as well.

•

Phase 1 of the Bakers Quay scheme is now nearly complete and will deliver a new Premier Inn,
Brewers Fayre restaurant, a drive through Costa coffee, 46 apartments and 3 new commercial
units

•

Work on the new bus station is entering the final stages with completion of this excellent new
facility expected in September 2018. Progression of a Local Development Order for the
Blackfriars area of Gloucester

•

Major improvements to Kings Walk Shopping Centre will be seen during 2018/19 with an
investment of over £4.9m in capital improvements including the old BHS and a £1m investment
in the multi storey car park.

•

Working with the University of Gloucestershire on the development of new student
accommodation at Blackfriars plus new 3G pitches for the whole community as part of the
business school development at Oxstalls.

•

Further assistance to Project Pilgrim at Gloucester Cathedral.

•

Work on the Kings Quarter development continues at pace with a planning application to be
submitted in the summer of 2018.

•

The Tourist Information Centre won the gold award for the best information centre in the
country at the Visit England Excellence awards 2017.

•

A new & enhanced recycling service has been implemented with residents now able to recycle
corrugated cardboard, mixed plastics and textiles. This new service has already proved more
cost effective to deliver and resulted in us sending less waste to landfill, thus boosting our
recycling rates. This service saw an increase in collection of over 25% at Christmas 2017.

•

2017 saw a reduction in rough sleeping across the City of 35%. The Council has put in place a
Social Impact Bond to enable funding of £900k for the Action Gloucestershire programme to
help entrenched rough sleepers.

•

Our Asset-Based Community Development approach is seeing more people in Gloucester now
taking an active lead in their community and the importance of the role of community-builders is
becoming widely recognised in the City. They have sparked initiatives from street parties to
dance clubs to community luncheons, bringing together communities and promoting wellbeing
and health

•

The Gloucester Lottery (www.gloucesterlottery.co.uk) completed its first year in February 2018
having raised over £28,000 for good causes. It is a weekly lottery created to support good
causes in Gloucester. Tickets are only £1 per week, with 60% going to local causes and prizes
up to £25,000.

The Council has changed its corporate non-financial performance indicator system and a new
system Pentana has been procured to deliver future indicators. The annual performance report for
non financial data will be presented to the Cabinet following scrutiny by the Overview & Scrutiny
committee in June 2018 (click link here)

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
33 COUNCIL
Page 11

NARRATIVE REPORT
7. Significant Changes in Accounting Policies
There have been no significant changes to accounting policies in the financial year. The service
breakdown included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is now broken
down by the Council's own portfolio structure which now excludes recharges of costs between
portfolios. Within the core financial statements there is an Expenditure and Funding analysis
which provides a reconciliation between the figures in the Income and Expenditure Statement to
the Council's own Outturn Report.
Further Information
Further details of the accounts can be obtained from the Head of Policy & Resources, Herbert
Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EQ. Tel. (01452) 396242. A statement of the
accounting policies used is shown on pages 16-24 and a glossary explaining some of the technical
terms used is included on pages 76-79.

Jon Topping
Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer)

GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page
34 COUNCIL
Page 12

EXPLANATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to produce a Statement of
Accounts for each financial year. These statements contain a number of different elements
which are explained below:
Statements to the Accounts

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts sets out the respective
responsibilities of the Authority and the Chief Finance Officer (Head Policy and Resources).
Auditor’s Report gives the auditor’s opinion of the financial statements and of the authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.
Core Financial Statements
Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement including the Expenditure and
Funding Analysis shows the cost of providing services in the year in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis
reconciles this to the amount chargeable to the General Fund reserve in the year.

Balance Sheet shows the Council’s financial position on 31 March 2018. It shows the
balances and reserves at the Council’s disposal at that date, and summarises the fixed and
current net assets employed in carrying out the Council’s functions.
Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in the Council’s cash and cash equivalents during
the reporting period. The Statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The
amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to
which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income, or by the
recipients of services provided. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service
delivery. Cashflows arising from financing activities are useful when predicting claims on
future cashflows to the Council by providers of capital, i.e. borrowing.
Supplementary Statements

Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of
the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council Tax and NonDomestic Rates (NDR) and its distribution to precepting bodies. For Gloucester, the Council
Tax precepting bodies are the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire and
Gloucestershire County Council.

GLOUCESTER
COUNCIL
PageCITY
35
Page 13

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Council's responsibilities
The Council is required to:
*

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that
officer is the Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer);

*

Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets; and

*

To approve the Statement of Accounts.

Responsibilities of Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer)
The Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the
Council's statement of accounts in accordance with proper practices, as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the Code
of Practice').
In preparing the statement of accounts, the Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer) has:
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

•

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

•

complied with the Code;

•

kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

•

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities;

•

assessed the Authority’s [and the Group’s] ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;

•

used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of the
Authority [and the Group] will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future;
and

•

maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error,

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Gloucester City
Council at 31 March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

Signed …………………………………..

Dated ……………………………..

Jon Topping
Head of Policy & Resources (Section 151 Officer)

Signed …………………………………..

Dated ……………………………..

Andrew Gravells
Chair of Audit Committee

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 14
Page
36

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 37

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 GENERAL PRINCIPLES
This Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and its financial position at 31 March 2018. The
Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices, primarily, comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2017/18 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2017/18, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments.
2 ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In particular:
- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it
is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.
- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction
and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.
- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their
consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.
- Expenses in relation to services received, including services provided by employees, are recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are made.
- Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest
rate for relevant financial instruments rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made against revenue for
the income that might not be collected.
3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Council’s cash management.
4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
When items of income and expense are material their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s financial
performance.
5 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND ERRORS
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are
accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant
information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made it is applied retrospectively, unless stated otherwise, by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as
if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior
period.
6 CHARGES TO REVENUE AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:
- Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.
- Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against
which the losses can be written off.
- Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisations, however, it is required to
make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement based on an amount calculated on a prudent
basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 16
Page
38

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries,
paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense
for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of
leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.
The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the
benefit. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal
retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where
applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits
and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
Post Employment Benefits - Pensions
Employees of the Council are eligible to be members of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Gloucestershire County
Council. The Scheme provides defined benefits (retirement lump sums and pensions) to members earned as the employees work for the Council.
The cost of retirement benefits is calculated by the Pension Fund Actuary and is recognised in the Income and Expenditure account when these
benefits are earned by employees, rather than when lump sums and contributions to the Pension Fund are made.
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme as follows:
- The liabilities of the LGPS attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method
i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.
- Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.6% based on the indicative rate of return on the adoption
of the AA corporate bond basis. This is at the IAS19 valuation date, subject to removal of recently re-rated bonds from the index.
- The assets of the LGPS attributable to the council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value as follows:
- Quoted securities – current bid price;
- Unquoted securities – professional estimate;
- Unitised securities – current bid price; and
- Property– market value.
- The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Cost comprising
- Current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year - allocated in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked.
- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier
years - debited to the Surplus or deficit on the provision of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account as part of
Non Distributed Costs.
- Net interest on the defined benefit liability i.e. net interest expense for the Council -the change during the period in the net defined
liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement- this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period- taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result
of contribution and benefit payments.
Remeasurements comprising:
- The return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined liability- credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
- Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Council of liabilities or events that reduce the
expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account
as part of Non Distributed Costs.
- Actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made
at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 17
Page
39

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
Contributions paid to the LGPS - cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities. This is not accounted
for as an expense.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council
to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits
and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities
estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.
8 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period
and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
- Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect
such events.
- Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such
events but, where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.
For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the
year according to the loan agreement.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowings are credited and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. Where repurchase, however,
has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or
discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on
the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:
- Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market.
- Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will not be
made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 40
Page 18

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Available-for-Sale Assets
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the
amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments,
income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles:
- Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price
- Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis
- Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations.
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these are debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss
for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract will not be made
(fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the
instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Availablefor-Sale Reserve.
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment losses).
10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate
applicable on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the
spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
11 GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the
Council when there is reasonable assurance that:
- The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- The grants or contributions will be received.
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to
the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied
in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or
service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When
conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are transferred from the General Fund Balance to
the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve, if the funds have not been spent, or the Capital Adjustment Account, if the funds have been used to finance
capital expenditure, in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
12 HERITAGE ASSETS
Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or
historical associations. They are held by the Council in pursuit of it's overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of the heritage. Heritage assets
include historical buildings, archaeological sites, military and scientific equipment of historical importance, civic regalia, museum and gallery
collections and works of art.
The Council's heritage assets are included in the balance sheet at their insurance valuation which is based on market values. These insurance
valuations are updated on an annual basis. Heritage assets are considered by the Council to have indeterminate lives and it does not consider it
appropriate to charge depreciation.
Community assets (including parks but excluding archaeological sites), cemeteries and crematoria (land only) and allotments, where there are
restrictions on alternative uses, are not heritage assets and are reflected as community assets and included in property, plant and equipment.
The carrying values of heritage assets are reviewed where there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Any impairment is recognised and
measured in accordance with the Council's general policies on impairment-refer accounting policy note 19.
In the unlikely event of the disposal of heritage assets, the proceeds are accounted for on a similar basis to disposals of property, plant and
equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the accounts and are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting
requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 19
Page
41

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Council as a result of past events (e.g.
software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with
adequate resources being available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to
sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred
during the development phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council’s
goods or services.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be
determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains
and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and, for any sale proceeds greater than
£10,000, to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
14 INTEREST IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES
The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that are defined as subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities and
require it to prepare group accounts. In the Council’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded as
financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses.
15 INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO
costing formula.
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and
services received under the contract during the financial year.
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used
in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged
between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the
year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General
Fund Balance. Revaluation and disposal gains and losses, however, are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the
General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are, therefore, reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and, for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000, the Capital Receipts Reserve.
17 LEASES
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this
policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.
The Council as Lessee
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value
measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability
for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a
lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
- A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment which reduces the lease liability, and
- A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement).
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to
depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not
transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

Page 42

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 20

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
17 LEASES (continued)
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent
annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and
revaluation and impairment losses are, therefore, substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting
from the use of the leased asset. Charges are made on the straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. if there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).
The Council as Lessor
Finance Leases
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or item of property, plant and equipment the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet
as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease the carrying amount of the asset is written-off to the Other Operating Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal) matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals are apportioned between:
- A charge for acquisition of the interest in the property- applied to write-down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received) and;
Finance income-credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund
Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the leased asset is to be settled by the payment
of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write-down the
lease debtor. At this point the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
Operating Leases
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income
is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. if there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.
18 OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the authority's arrangements for accountability and
financial performance.
19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative
purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
The following de-minimis limits are applied by the Council in recognising assets:
- Cost of an individual asset in excess of £6,000.
- A group of assets having a total cost in excess of £6,000 with an individual cost of more than £250 where the assets are functionally
interdependent, have broadly simultaneous purchase dates and are under single managerial control.
- Costs associated with the initial equipping and set-up costs of a new building or significant refurbishment irrespective of their individual or collective
cost.

Page 43
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 21

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
- The purchase price.
- Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management.
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance
(i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and
Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally.
Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
- Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – at depreciated historical cost.
- Council offices - current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value - EUV)
- Surplus assets - the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at the highest and best use from a market participant's
perspective.
- All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value - EUV).
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used
as an estimate of fair value.
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different
from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.
Where decreases in value are identified they are accounted for by:
- Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down
against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).
- Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising
before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Component accounting
Component accounting thresholds have been set as the lower of:
* Component assets over £350,000 (2016/17 £350,000) in value; or
* Component assets value at least 20% of the overall asset value.
The component asset is only recognised at the point of valuation of the overall asset.
The 2017/18 valuation identified no assets meeting the component accounting thresholds. The same position was found for 2016/17.
Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any
possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:
- Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down
against that balance up to the amount of the accumulated gains and thereafter to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
- Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
- Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised, and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their
useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). Depreciation on assets acquired commences with effect from 1 April in
the next financial year.
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:
- Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line over the useful life of the properties.
- Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line over the useful lives of the assets.
- Infrastructure and community assets – straight-line over the useful life of the assets.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item,
the components are depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through its
continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the
amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for
Sale.

Page 44
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 22

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the
lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale, (adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale), and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals
(75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce
the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
20 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by
a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the
Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that
the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the
end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim),
this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the
obligation.
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the Council's control. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances
where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the Council's control.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow
of economic benefits or service potential.
21 RESERVES
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating
amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred,
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits
and do not represent usable resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.
22 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current
asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the
Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is
no impact on the level of Council Tax.

Page
45 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 23

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
23 VAT
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is
excluded from income.
24 GROUP ACCOUNTS
The Code states that Group Accounts shall be prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. The accounting policies of the Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities shall align with the policies of the Council,
for the purpose of Group Accounts, where materially different. Such adjustments that are necessary to align the group accounting policies are
made as Consolidation adjustments.
Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Council has material interests in companies and other separate entities that have the nature of being subsidiaries, joint ventures and
Associates and require it to prepare Group Accounts.
Basis of Consolidation
The Group Accounts consolidate the Council's accounts with those of Gloucestershire Airport Ltd, in which the Council has a 50% shareholding
(the remaining 50% is owned by Cheltenham Borough Council). Certain entities in which the Council has an interest have not been included in
the group accounts as the impact of incorporating these into the group accounts are considered to be immaterial.
Accounting Policies
The Group Accounts are prepared in accordance with the policies set out above, with the following additions and exceptions:The financial statements for Joint Ventures, Associates and Subsidiaries have been prepared under the historical cost convention (except
certain items that are shown at fair value) in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102).
Since Investment Property and Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) assets held by the airport have been valued at fair value no adjustments
are required to the value of non-current assets on consolidation with the Council's accounts.

Page
46 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 24

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 47

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
For the years ended 31 March 2017 & 2018
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’
(i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. The Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Council.
General
Fund
Balance
£000
Balance at 1 April 2016

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

Capital
Total
Grants
Usable Unusable
Total
Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000
£000
£000
£000

5,211

2,712

2,358

10,281

7,288

17,569

(4,542)

-

-

(4,542)

(4,060)

(8,602)

5,253

(792)

1,316

5,777

(5,777)

-

711

(792)

1,316

1,235

(9,837)

(8,602)

5,922

1,920

3,674

11,516

(2,549)

8,967

(18,304)

-

-

(18,304)

16,248

(2,056)

18,736

(1,137)

493

18,092

(18,092)

-

432

(1,137)

493

(212)

(1,844)

(2,056)

6,354

783

4,167

11,304

(4,393)

6,911

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulation (Note 6)
Increase/(Decrease) in 2016/17
Balance at 31 March 2017
Movement in Reserves during 2017/18
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulation (Note 6)
Increase/(Decrease) in 2017/18
Balance at 31 March 2018

Page
48 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 26

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
For the years ended 31 March 2017 & 2018
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Group, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true
economic cost of providing the Group’s services, more details of which are shown in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Usable Reserves
Council's
Share of
Subsidiaries,
Total
Council
Joint
Group
Ventures and
Associates
£000
£000
£000
Balance at 1 April 2016

Unusable Reserves
Council's
Share of
Subsidiaries,
Total
Council
Joint
Group
Ventures and
Associates
£000
£000
£000

Total
Group
Reserves

£000

10,281

1,577

11,858

7,288

10,185

17,473

29,331

(4,542)

(2,883)

(7,425)

(4,060)

2,816

(1,244)

(8,669)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulation

5,777

-

5,777

(5,777)

-

(5,777)

-

Increase/(Decrease) in 2016/17

1,235

(2,883)

(1,648)

(9,837)

2,816

(7,021)

(8,669)

11,516

(1,306)

10,210

(2,549)

13,001

10,452

20,662

(18,304)

93

(18,211)

16,248

127

16,375

(1,837)

-

-

-

-

-

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustment between company reserves

Balance at 31 March 2017
Movement in Reserves during 2017/18
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustment between company reserves

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulation
Increase/(Decrease) in 2017/18
Balance at 31 March 2018

18,092

-

18,092

(18,092)

-

(18,092)

-

(212)

93

(119)

(1,844)

127

(1,717)

(1,837)

11,304

(1,213)

10,091

(4,393)

13,128

8,735

18,825

PageCITY
49 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 27

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
For the year ended 31 March 2018
The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers how the funding available to the authority (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used
in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is
allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s services. Income and Expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
2016/17
General
Fund
Outturn
excluding
earmarked
reserve
movement
£000

Net
Expenditure
Adjusted for Chargeable
Movement
to the
on
General
Earmarked
Fund
Reserves
Balance
£000
£000

2017/18

Adjustment Net Expenditure
between the
in the
funding and Comprehensive
accounting
Income and
basis (note
Expenditure
28)
Statement
£000
£000

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

General
Fund
Outturn
excluding
earmarked
reserve
movement

Net
Adjusted for Expenditure Adjustment Net Expenditure
Movement Chargeable between the
in the
on
to the
funding and Comprehensive
Earmarked
General
accounting
Income and
Reserves
Fund
basis (note
Expenditure
Balance
28)
Statement
£000
£000
£000

Page 50

1,009

40

969

(132)

1,101

Communities and Neighbourhoods

617

72

545

(432)

977

1,654

(36)

1,690

(914)

2,604

Culture

1,448

73

1,375

(316)

1,691

4,189

181

4,008

(1,171)

5,179

Environment

3,612

(80)

3,692

(786)

4,478

2,045

43

2,002

(463)

2,465

Housing and Planning

1,429

(41)

1,470

(1,189)

2,659

5,338

(53)

5,392

(465)

5,857

Performance and Resources

(719)

95

(814)

(2,810)

1,996

Regeneration and Economy

13,516

270

13,247

(5,955)

19,202

(13,536)

420

(13,958)

702

(14,660)

(20)

690

(711)

(5,253)

4,542

5,211
711

5,922

Net Cost of Services
Other Income and Expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit
Opening General Fund balance including earmarked reserves at 1st
April
Add surplus / (deficit) in year

5,158

(139)

5,297

(1,051)

6,348

(2,534)

(432)

(2,102)

(3,530)

1,428

9,730

(547)

10,277

(7,304)

17,581

(9,711)

998

(10,709)

(11,432)

723

19

451

(432)

(18,736)

18,304

5,922
432

Closing General Fund balance including earmarked reserves at 31
March

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 28

6,354

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
2017/18
Gross
Expenditure
£000

Description

2016/17
Restated *
Net
Net
Expenditure Expenditure
£000
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Communities and Neighbourhoods

1,547

(570)

977

1,101

Culture

3,435

(1,744)

1,691

2,604

Environment

8,591

(4,113)

4,478

5,179

Housing and Planning

4,532

(1,873)

2,659

2,465

Performance and Resources

51,796

(45,448)

6,348

5,857

Regeneration and Economy

6,739

(5,311)

1,428

1,996

76,640

(59,059)

17,581

19,202

829

(315)

514

1,568

(Surplus) / Deficit on Operations
Other Operating Expenditure (Note 8)
Financing and investment income and expenditure (Note 9)
Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income (Note 10)
(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services

25,887

(1,893)

23,994

2,678

16,188
119,544

(39,973)
(101,240)

(23,785)
18,304

(18,906)
4,542

(12,087)

-

(12,087)
246

(6,754)

(4,407)

(4,407)

10,814

Items that will not be reclassified to the (surplus) or deficit on the provision for services
(Gains) / Losses on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets
Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets

246

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (Note 41)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

(11,841)

(4,407)

(16,248)

4,060

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

107,703

(105,647)

2,056

8,602

* 2016/17 portfolio split has been restated to exclude intra-service recharges. Please see Note 28 for details.

Page 51

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 29

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Restated
2016/17

2017/18
Description

Gross
Expenditure
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Communities and Neighbourhoods

1,547

(570)

Culture

3,435

(1,744)

Environment

8,591

(4,113)

Housing and Planning

4,532

(1,873)

Performance and Resources

51,796

(45,448)

Regeneration and Economy

6,739

(Surplus)/Deficit on Operations

1,101

(5,311)

977
1,691
4,478
2,659
6,348
1,428

76,640

(59,059)

17,581

19,202

829

(315)

514

1,568

25,887

(1,893)

23,994

2,678

16,188
119,544

(39,973)
(101,240)

(23,785)
18,304

(18,906)
4,542

(283)

94

190
18,211

(129)
4,507

(12,087)

(6,754)

(4,407)

10,814

Other Operating Expenditure (Note 8)
Financing and investment income and expenditure (Note 9)
Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income (Note 10)
Deficit on Provision of Services

Net
Net
Expenditure Expenditure
£000
£000

Share of the (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of Services
Joint Ventures
Share of Tax Expenses
Joint Ventures
Group Deficit
Items that will not be reclassified to the (surplus) or deficit on the provision for services
(Gains) / Losses on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on pension assets / liabilities
Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets

2,604
5,179
2,465
5,857
1,996

246

Share of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Joint Ventures
Group Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Page
52 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 30

(127)
(16,375)

102
4,162

1,836

8,669

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2018
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council
(assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are
usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The
second category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are
sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.
Notes
Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Heritage Assets
Intangible Assets
Long Term Investments
Long Term Debtors

11
12
13
14
15,44
15,19(i)

Long Term Assets
Short Term Investments
Assets held for Sale
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents

15
16
17
15,19
20

Current Assets
Total Assets
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Provisions (<1yr)

15,21(i)
15,21
22

Current Liabilities
Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Capital Grants Received in Advance
Deferred Income
Other Long Term Liabilities

22
15,21(ii)
35
41

Long Term Liabilities
Net Assets

31/03/2018
£000

31/03/2017
£000

79,767
18,598
6,683
402
5,189
748

63,639
22,817
6,127
749
435
892

111,387

94,659

7,000
83
47
10,640
6,284

44
7,875
2,696

24,054

10,615

135,441

105,274

(12,652)
(6,168)
(1,580)

(14,764)
(3,459)
(1,347)

(20,400)

(19,570)

(207)
(34,762)
(6,070)
(3,127)
(63,964)

(197)
(5,000)
(2,911)
(68,629)

(108,130)

(76,737)

6,911

8,967

Usable Reserves

23

11,304

11,516

Unusable Reserves

24

(4,393)

(2,549)

6,911

8,967

Total Reserves

PageCITY
53 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 31

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL GROUP BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2018
The group balance sheet has been prepared by combining the Council's share of the net assets of Gloucestershire Airport Ltd (50% of
the total, adjusted for revaluations), with the net assets of the Council.
As a Joint Venture, the Council's share of the net assets and liabilities in Gloucestershire Airport Limited has been included as long-term
investment.
Note

31/03/2018
£000

31/03/2017
£000

Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Heritage Assets
Intangible Assets
Long Term Investments
Long Term Debtors
Investment in Joint Venture
Long Term Assets

11
12
13
14
15,44
15,19(i)

79,767
18,598
6,683
402
4,754
748
12,350
123,302

63,639
22,817
6,127
749
892
12,130
106,354

Short Term Investments
Assets held for Sale
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

15
16
17
15,19
20

7,000
83
47
10,640
6,284
24,054

44
7,875
2,696
10,615

Total Assets

147,356

116,969

Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Provisions (<1yr)
Current Liabilities

15, 21(i)
15,21
22

(12,652)
(6,168)
(1,580)
(20,400)

(14,764)
(3,459)
(1,347)
(19,570)

Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Capital Grants Received in Advance
Deferred Income
Other Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

22
15,21(ii)
35

(207)
(34,762)
(6,070)
(3,127)
(63,964)
(108,130)

(197)
(5,000)
(2,911)
(68,629)
(76,737)

18,826

20,662

41

Net Assets
Usable Reserves

23

10,091

10,210

Unusable Reserves

24

8,735

10,452

18,826

20,662

Total Reserves

Page 54
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 32

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is
a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or
from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.
borrowing) to the Council. No separate group cash flow is presented as there are no differences between the group
and council cash flow.

Notes
Deficit on the provision of services

2017/18
£000

2016/17
£000

(18,304)

(4,542)

Adjustments in respect of non-cash movements

30,010

7,868

Adjustments in respect of items that are investing and financing activities

(7,958)

(3,746)

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

25

3,748

(420)

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

26

(7,917)

(2,981)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities

27

7,757

4,476

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

3,588

1,075

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

2,696

1,621

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

6,284

2,696

The Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Overdraft

2017/18
£000

2016/17
£000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

6,284

2,696

Balance at 31st March

6,284

2,696

PageCITY
55 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 33

NOTES TO THE CORE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 56

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT ADOPTED
The Code of Practice requires the Council to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that
has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year. There are standards which are to be adopted in 2018/19 which may impact
upon the Council's accounts.
IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers) uses a control based model of recognising revenue. It is not anticipated that the Council will have any
material revenue streams affected by the Standard as the timing of income is consistent with the provision of Council services.
IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) introduces extensive changes to the classification and measurement of financial assets. The impact will be to reclassify the
Council's available for sale financial investment. No material change in value is anticipated.
IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative) may require further disclosure around Cash Flows from Financing Activities. The Kings Walk
shopping centre deal is likely to fall within the scope of this standard but the additional disclosure required, if any, is likely to be minimal.
IAS 12 (Income Taxes) applies to deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. This is not believed to have an impact on the
Council's Group.

2 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
In applying the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local Government, however, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service
provision.
The rental guarantee sum received for the Kings Walk shopping Centre has been treated as deferred income and is to be released to the Council's General
Fund over five years. The sum received was £4.78m. In 2017/18 £697k was released to the General Fund with the remainder being released in upcoming
financial years.
3 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors, however, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018
for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
Item
Uncertainties
Property, Plant and Equipment Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on
assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance that will
be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic
climate makes it uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain
its current spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into
doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a
Pensions Liability
number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate
used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns
on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

Provision for Business Rates
Appeals

The Council maintains a provision for outstanding business rates
appeals. The provision has been calculated based on the current
list of live appeals, using analysis of historical rates of successful
appeals and percentage reduction in rateable value.

Arrears

At 31 March 2018, the Council had a balance of sundry debtors
of £2.682 million. A review of the aged debt profile and recovery
percentages suggested that an allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately 18.3% is appropriate. In the current economic
climate, however, it is not certain that such a provision would be
sufficient.

Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions
If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls. It is
estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings
would increase by £46k for every year that useful lives had
to be reduced.
The effects of the net pension liability of changes in
individual assumptions can be measured. For instance a
0.5% decrease in the discount rate assumption would
result in an increase in the pension liability of £13.715
million. The assumptions, however, interact in complex
ways. During 2017/18 the Council's actuaries advised that
the net pensions liability had decreased by £2.636 million
as a direct result of changes to the financial assumptions
in the previous year.
The Council has calculated the appeals provision based on
the possible reduction in rates received. If the % of
appeals which were successful increased by 1% across all
classes of property, an additional £822k would have to be
set aside.
If collection rates were to deteriorate, the provision made
for doubtful debts would need to increase based on the
actual levels of recovery achieved. It is estimated that a
1% increase in the required provision would result in an
increase in the allowance of £27k.

4 MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Where items are not disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the nature and amount of material items should be set
out in a note. For Gloucester City Council these include gains and losses arising on asset revaluations and the pensions deficit.
The net revaluation Gains arising from the revaluation of the Council's assets, including investment property, amounted to £11.492 million.
The revaluation includes a loss of £594k recognised in the surplus/(deficit) in the provision of services and a £12.086m gain recorded in
other comprehensive income and expenditure
Refer to notes 11, 12 and 16 for details of the revaluation of property, plant and equipment assets.
Details of the pension deficit are included in note 41.
5 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Council's Audit and Governance Committee on 23rd July 2018. Events taking place after this date
are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March
2018, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
As at 23rd July 2018 (Audit and Governance Committee approval) one post balance sheet events has been identified. An employment tribunal on 27th June
brought costs of £101k against the Council. These have been included in the accounts as a creditor at the balance sheet date.

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
57 COUNCIL
Page 34

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER THE REGULATIONS
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the
Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions
as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against.
General Fund Balance
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid and out of which all
liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also
specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not
necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance, therefore, summarises the resources
that the Council is empowered to spend on its services or capital investment at the end of the financial year.
Capital Receipts Reserve
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute
from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The
balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.
Capital Grants Unapplied
The Capital Grants Unapplied reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the
Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to
meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied
and/or the financial year in which this can take place.

58COUNCIL
GLOUCESTERPage
CITY
Page 35

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER THE REGULATIONS (Continued)
2017/18 Information
Usable Reserves £'000
General
Fund
Balance

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Page 59

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pension Costs (transferred to or from Pensions Reserve)
Charges for depreciation of non-current assets
Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment and assets held for sale
Movement in the fair value of investment property
Capital Grants and Contributions
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Council tax and NNDR net deficit transferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Revenue financing of capital expenditure
Holiday Pay transferred to the Accumulated Absences Account
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal
Total adjustments to Revenue Resources
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to Capital Receipts Reserve
Statutory and voluntary provision for the repayment of debt transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account
Total adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Application of capital grants and contributions to fund Capital expenditure
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash
Total adjustments to Capital Resources
Total Adjustments

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 36

259
(3,328)
(594)
(22,294)
7,044
(1,583)
886
18
11
(599)
(20,180)

-

(7,044)
-

-

(7,044)

914
529
1,443

(914)
(914)

-

(18,736)

2,053

6,551
6,551
(493)

(2)
2,051
1,137

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER THE REGULATIONS (Continued)
2016/17 Information
Usable Reserves £'000
General
Fund
Balance

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Page 60

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pension Costs (transferred to or from Pensions Reserve)
Charges for depreciation of non-current assets
Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment and assets held for sale
Movement in the fair value of investment property
Capital Grants and Contributions
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Council tax and NNDR net deficit transferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Holiday Pay transferred to the Accumulated Absences Account
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal
Total adjustments to Revenue Resources
Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to Capital Receipts Reserve
Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals funded by capital receipts
Statutory and voluntary provision for the repayment of debt transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account
Total adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Application of capital grants and contributions to fund Capital expenditure
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash
Total adjustments to Capital Resources
Total Adjustments

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 37

566
(3,801)
(1,710)
(2,032)
1,886
(357)
(678)
17
(1,467)
(7,576)

-

(1,886)
(1,886)

1,861
461
2,322

(1,861)
(1,861)

-

(5,253)

2,655
(2)
2,653
792

570
570
(1,316)

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 TRANSFERS TO/(FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2017/18.
Balance at Transfers
Transfers
31/03/2017 Out 2017/18 In 2017/18
£000
£000
£000

Reserve
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Balance at Balance at Transfers
Transfers Balance at
31/03/2018 31/03/2016 Out 2016/17 In 2016/17 31/03/2017
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000

General Fund:
3 Choirs Reserve
Historic Buildings Reserve
Portfolio Reserves
Members Allocation Reserve
Shopmobility Reserve
Regeneration Reserve
Insurance Reserve
Land Adoption Reserve
VAT Shelter Reserve
Business Rates Reserve
Trading Development Reserve
Environmental Reserve
Pension Contingency
Repairs Reserve
Community Builder Reserve
Planning Grant Reserve
Economic Development Reserve
Flooding Works Reserve
Meet and Greet Reserve
Police Contribution Reserve
Lottery Reserve
Great Places Reserve

53
48
4
29
552
10
881
513
620
50
1,000
400
30
30
20
10
4
15
-

3
117
80
50
437
50
-

12
273
651
50
55
35
19
93

53
60
1
29
435
10
801
736
834
50
1,000
400
85
65
20
10
4
15
19
93

5
53
35
9
29
510
10
710
291
200
50
1,000
275
400
-

5
5
275
-

13
42
171
222
420
30
30
20
10
4
15

53
48
4
29
552
10
881
513
620
50
1,000
400
30
30
20
10
4
15

Total

4,269

737

1,188

4,720

3,577

285

977

4,269

Reserve
No.
Further details of reserve balances
2

Historic Buildings Reserve
This reserve was set up to spread the funds required to finance the refurbishment of historic buildings in the City over a number of years and will
fund an agreed award to the Llanthony Priory Trust.

3

Portfolio Reserves
This represents an annual sum put in reserve for housing surveys undertaken every 3 to 4 years.

4

Members Allocation Reserve
The reserve represents the remainder of members individual grant allocations to be spent in 18/19

5

Shopmobility Reserve
Donated funds for shopmobility for use specifically on the shopmobility service.

6

Regeneration Reserve
The reserve is intended for the delivery of key regeneration priorities.

7

Insurance Reserve
This reserve is intended to cover possible insurance claims not able to be met from the Insurance Provision (see note 22, page 49).

8

Land Adoption Reserve
The reserve contains contributions received from developers upon the adoption of open space on housing development. The reserve will be used to
fund increased grounds maintenance costs in future years.

9

VAT Shelter Reserve
Earmarked for future regeneration and housing projects

10

Business Rates Reserve
A reserve to be used to to protect the Council's General Fund from fluctuations in business rates income in future years.

11

Trading Development Reserve
A reserve to provide funding to allow the Council to explore trading development opportunities to generate revenue in future years

12

Environmental Reserve
The Council has ongoing potential environmental liabilities from the housing stock transfer, including potential asbestos work liability.

14

Repairs Reserve
The council has significant exposure to major repairs which are currently unbudgeted and could be a significant risk. This reserve is intended to
assist in offsetting potential future liabilities.

15

Community Builder Reserve
A reserve to fund future community building work.

16

Planning Grant Reserve
A reserve to hold funder to meet the costs of the required Self Build and Brownfield registers

17

Economic Development Reserve
The Council has put aside some funding to meet the costs of business grants given.

18

Flooding Works Reserve
This reserve holds fund which the Council will use on future flood prevention capital projects

19

Meet and Greet Reserve
The reserve holds the remainder of the funding that the Council has put to one side to fund the Coach Meet and Greet Scheme

20

Police Contribution Reserve
This reserve holds funding committed to fund a joint study, with the Police, into the impacts of participatory budgeting.

21

Lottery Reserve
This reserve holds funding generated by Gloucester Lottery to be distributed to the voluntary sector

22

Great Place Reserve
This reserve holds funding committed to fund a joint study, with the Police, into the impacts of participatory budgeting.

Page 61

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 38

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
GCC
2017/18
£000
Precepts and Grants paid to parish councils
(Gains) / Losses on disposal of non current assets
Revaluation losses arising on revaluation of non-current assets
Total

236
(315)
593
514

GCC
2016/17
£000
252
(394)
1,710
1,568

Group
2017/18
£000
236
(315)
593
514

Group
2016/17
£000
252
(394)
1,710
1,568

GCC
2017/18
£000
1,515
(1,893)
1,690
388
22,294
23,994

GCC
2016/17
£000
242
(2,236)
1,941
699
2,032
2,678

Group
2017/18
£000
1,515
(1,893)
1,690
388
22,294
23,994

Group
2016/17
£000
242
(2,236)
1,941
699
2,032
2,678

GCC
2017/18
£000

GCC
2016/17
£000

Group

Group
2016/17
£000

9 FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Interest payable and similar charges
Interest and Investment property income
Pensions Interest and Expected Return on pensions assets
Expenditure on investment properties
Changes in fair value of investment properties
Total
10 TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

Income from the collection fund - Council Tax income
Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit
Business rates tariff
Business rates levy
Retained Business Rates
Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
New homes bonus
Business rates Section 31 grant
Other Grants
Capital Grants
Total

(7,319)
(886)
15,480
708
(19,704)
(1,092)
(2,696)
(1,222)
(10)
(7,044)
(23,785)

(7,042)
678
16,882
157
(21,249)
(1,856)
(3,831)
(741)
(18)
(1,886)
(18,906)

Page
62 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 39

£000
(7,319)
(886)
15,480
708
(19,704)
(1,092)
(2,696)
(1,222)
(10)
(7,044)
(23,785)

(7,042)
678
16,882
157
(21,249)
(1,856)
(3,831)
(741)
(18)
(1,886)
(18,906)

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements on Balances

Movements in 2017/18
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2017
Additions
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition – Disposals
Assets Impairment recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Impairment recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
Transfers between classes
Assets Written Off
At 31 March 2018

Page 63

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2017
Depreciation Charge
Derecognition – Disposals
Assets Impairment
Assets written Off
Revaluation
At 31 March 2018

Vehicles,
Plant,
Other
Furniture
Land and
and
Infrastructure
Buildings Equipment
Assets
£'000
£'000
£'000
60,457
(30)

11,444
273

Community
Assets
£'000

13,736
217

9,523
407

Assets Under
Construction
£'000
1,129
4,439

2,321
(264)
(4)
(12)
(452)
3,299

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Surplus
Assets
£'000

£'000

1,060

97,349
5,306

2

2,323

(441)
(68)
(116)
96

(264)
(445)
(80)
(568)
3,395
(267)
106,749

65,315

(267)
11,450

13,953

9,746

5,568

717

19,326
1,321

6,421
817

5,696
471

2,252
390

-

15
18
(7)

-

26

33,710
3,017
(7)
(238)
(213)
(9,287)
26,982

691

79,767

1,045

63,639

(220)

(18)
(213)

(9,287)
11,140

7,025

6,167

2,624

Net book value as at 31 March 2018

54,175

4,425

7,786

7,122

Net book value as at 1 April 2017

41,131

5,023

8,040

7,271

1,129

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 40

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Movements on Balances

Comparative Figures 2016/17

Movements in 2016/17

Page 64

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2016
Additions
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition – Disposals*
Assets Impairments
Other movements in cost or valuation
At 31 March 2017

Vehicles,
Plant,
Other Land Furniture
and
and
Infrastructure
Buildings Equipment
Assets
£'000
£'000
£'000

Community
Assets
£'000

Assets Under
Construction
£'000

Surplus
Assets
£'000

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
£'000

54,588
1,466

8,618
2,826

13,456
280

9,064
459

80
1,049

418
-

86,224
6,080

6,176

-

-

-

-

578

6,754

(1,367)

-

(18)

-

-

-

(324)
(82)
60,457

-

-

11,444

13,736

9,523

1,129

82
1,060

(1,385)
(324)
97,349

At 1 April 2016
Depreciation Charge
Derecognition – Disposals
Other movements in cost or valuation
At 31 March 2017

17,572
1,754
19,326

5,598
823
6,421

5,221
475
5,696

1,868
384
2,252

-

7
8
15

30,266
3,444
33,710

Net book value as at 31 March 2017

41,131

5,023

8,040

7,271

1,129

1,045

63,639

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 41

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

- Other Land and Buildings – 8-60 years straight-line
- Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment – 5-10 years straight-line
- Infrastructure and Community Assets – 30-95 years straight-line
The following is a list of the major fixed assets owned by the Council at 31 March 2018.
All assets are owned freehold unless otherwise stated.
Operational assets

Non-operational assets

Other Operational land and buildings
Gloucester Leisure Centre
2 Cemeteries and 1 Crematorium
Kings Square / Kings Walk shopping centre (leasehold)
North Warehouse
Kings Theatre
HKP warehouses (leasehold)
Guildhall
13 Sports Clubs facilities (mixed tenure)
Gloucester Life Museum and Museum of Gloucester
2 Multi-storey Car Parks (1 leasehold)
13 Surface Car Parks (2 leasehold)
Tourist Information Centre (leased)
Oxstalls Tennis Centre
Hempsted Market
Grosvenor House
Kings House
Depot at Eastern Avenue
Bentinck House and Bruton Way
Barbican House, Commercial Road

Investment properties
Eastgate market and shopping centre
Bearland Lodge
Bus station
Gala Club
16 Shops
50% of Gloucestershire Airport (freehold)
The Docks Headlease area including No.3 Albion Cottage(leasehold)
Barbican Land Ladybellgate Street
Former Spartans Club House Site
Blackfriars Inn
Various on Commercial Road (leasehold)
Land Northgate Street
Various Garages

Community & Heritage assets
Various Parks and open spaces
Works of art
Museum Exhibits
Civic regalia

Vehicles plant and equipment
Vehicles and items of plant
Computer equipment
Sports and playground facilities in parks
Infrastructure assets
Street furniture
Public Conveniences
CCTV
Lighting
Capital Commitments
As at 31st of March 2018, the Council has entered into various contracts with companies regarding the Bus Station and Kings Quarter
regeneration to the tune of £7.9m (£0, 2017). A breakdown of the schemes and contracts are analysed below.
Spend as at Outstanding
31/03/2018 Commitment
Contractors
Scheme
Contracted Amount
£'000
Britannia Construction Ltd
Kier Construction
LDA Design
GVA Grimley Ltd

Bus Station
Bus Station
Kings Qtr
Kings Qtr

Page 65

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 42

1,097
6,100
214
448
7,859

£'000
1,097
2,527
183
0
3,807

£'000
0
3,573
31
448
4,052

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Revaluations
In the current year the Council has continued with a rolling programme of asset valuations to ensure that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at
fair value are revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out internally. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the
condition of the asset.
The significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are:
-That the values will remain static during that period;
-The property would be freely exposed to the open market;
-No account has been taken of any higher price or rental offer that might be made by a purchaser or lessee with a special interest;
-The valuation relates to the freehold or leasehold interest and good freehold or leasehold title can be shown.
-The property and its value are unaffected by any matters which would be revealed by a local search.
Fair Value Measurement
The Council measures its surplus assets, investment properties and assets held for sale at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either:
a) in the principal market for the asset
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset.
The Council uses internal valuers to provide a valuation of its assets in line with the highest and best use definition within the accounting standard Internal Financial
Reporting Standard 13 (IFRS 13) - Fair Value Measurement. The highest and best use of the asset being valued is considered from the perspective of a market
participant.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council's fair value measurement of its assets are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset.
The Council recognises transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer to
occur.
12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
(1,679)
(2,191)

Rental income from investment property
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property
Net gain

388

699

(1,291)

(1,492)

The fair value of investment properties has been measured using accepted valuation practice. This approach takes account of quoted prices of similar assets in active
markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength of existing tenants and data and
market knowledge gained in valuing and managing the Council’s asset portfolio. The comparable information used from the market and portfolio is not sufficiently
similar for direct comparison to be made and adjustments have to be made to the observable data from these transactions. Inputs are unobservable, investment
properties are therefore classed as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the
proceeds of disposal.
The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement.
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:
GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
22,817
24,424

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions:
- Purchases
- Subsequent expenditure
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Adjustment
Transfers:
- To/From Property, Plant and Equipment / Surplus Assets
- From Community Assets
- To/From assets for sale
Disposals
Balance at end of the year

21,552
(22,294)

(3,277)
(117)
(83)
18,598

Page 66
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 43

882
404
(2,032)

32
(893)
22,817

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
13 Heritage Assets
Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural,
environmental or historical associations. They are held by the Council in pursuit of its overall objectives in relation to the
maintenance of the heritage. Heritage assets include historical buildings, archaeological sites, military and scientific equipment
of historical importance, civic regalia, museum and gallery collections and works of art.
The heritage assets of the Council are located in the two museums, The Museum of Gloucester and The Gloucester Life
Museum, as well as the Council's offices for items of civic regalia and other similar items. Both museums maintain all their
present collections and, where necessary add to them by purchase, bequest or donation with a particular emphasis on items
that are of specific interest to the locality of Gloucester City and surrounding areas. It is not the policy of the museums or the
Council to dispose of heritage assets for financial or other reasons. Heritage assets of the museums are managed by the
curators who report to the respective museum managers.
The Heritage assets have been classified by the Council's heritage service who have reached the conclusion that the value of
the assets is as determined for insurance valuation purposes.
Details of the Council's heritage assets at 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Numismatics (including Tokens, Coins, Seals & Dyes)
2D & 3D Fine & Decorative Arts (including Oil Paintings) & Ceramics
Archaeology including Table Set
Silver
Domestic life exhibits
Furniture
Working life exhibits
Horological Instruments
Books
Blackfriars Priory
SWRDA Asset Transfer
Miscellaneous items
Total
At valuation
At cost
Total

GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£'000
£'000
478
437
2,024
1,848
1,069
976
710
648
343
314
299
273
204
187
338
309
102
93
60
60
225
225
831
758
6,683
6,128
6,399
284
6,683

5,843
284
6,127

The following table summarises the movement in heritage assets during the year:
GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
6,127
6,127
556
0
6,683
6,127

Balance at beginning of the year
Revaluation surplus/(deficit)
Reclassified to investment property
Additions
Balance at end of the year

PageCITY
67 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 44

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a particular IT
system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment.
All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of use to the Council.
Assets are written off on a straight-line basis based on estimated useful lives of 3,4,5,7 and 10 years. Amortisation of newly acquired
intangibles commences in the year after they are purchased.
Movements in intangible assets during the year are shown below:
Computer Software
2017/18
2016/17
£'000
£'000
4,453
4,299
71
154
(1,038)
3,486
4,453
3,704
3,347
311
357
(931)
3,084
3,704
402
749

Gross book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Assets written off
Gross book value at the end of the year
Amortisation at the beginning of the year
Amortised during year
Assets written off
Amortisation at the end of the year
Net book value at the end of the year
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2017/18
£000
Balance at the beginning of the year:
- Gross carrying amounts
- Accumulated amortisation
- Net carrying amount
Movement in 2017/18
Additions:
Assets Written Off
Amortisation for the period
Net carrying amount at the end of the year
Comprising:
- Gross carrying amounts
- Accumulated amortisation

Page
68 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 45

2016/17
£000

4,453
3,704
749

4,299
3,347
952

71
107
311
402

154
357
749

3,486
3,084
402

4,453
3,704
749

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:
GCC
Long-term
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
Investments
Loans and receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equity investment at cost
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Total Investments

5,189

435
435

7,000
7,000

-

4,754
4,754

-

7,000
7,000

-

748
748

892
892

10,640
10,640

7,875
7,875

748
748

892
892

10,640
10,640

7,875
7,875

(5,000)
(29,762)
(34,762)

(5,000)

(12,652)

(14,764)

(5,000)

(12,652)

(14,764)

(5,000)

(12,652)
(12,652)

(14,764)

(5,000)

(5,000)
(29,762)
(34,762)

-

-

(6,168)
(6,168)

(3,459)
(3,459)

-

-

(6,168)
(6,168)

(3,459)
(3,459)

4,754
435
-

Debtors
Loans and receivables
Financial assets carried at contract amounts
Total Debtors
Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Present Value of Lease liability
Total borrowings

Page 69

Creditors
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities carried at contract amount
Total creditors

GROUP
Long-term
Current
2017/18
2016/17
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
£000
£000

Current
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000

(14,764)

Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses-GCC

Interest expense
Losses on derecognition
Increases/(Reductions) in fair value
Impairment losses
Fee expense
Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Interest income
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
Increases/(Reductions) in fair value
Gains on derecognition
Fee income
Total Income in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Gains on revaluation
Losses on revaluation
Net gain/(loss) for the year

2017/18

2016/17

Assets and
Financial
Liabilities at
Liabilities
Financial
Financial
Fair value
measured at
Assets:
Assets:
through
amortised
Loans and Available for Profit and
cost
receivables
sale
Loss
£000
£000
£000
£000
1,515
1,515
-

(215)
(215)
-

246
246

-

Total
£000
1,515
1,515
(215)
(215)
246
246

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 46

Assets and
Financial
Liabilities at
Liabilities
Financial
Financial
Fair value
measured at
Assets:
Assets:
through
amortised
Loans and Available for Profit and
cost
receivables
sale
Loss
£000
£000
£000
£000
242
242
-

(45)
(45)
-

-

-

Total
£000
242
242
(45)
(45)
-

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities
Financial liabilities and financial assets, represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and creditors, are
carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the
cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions:
- Estimated ranges of interest rates at 31 March 2018 are 2.34% to 2.77% for loans from the PWLB and 0.43% to
0.97% for other loans receivable and payable, based on new lending rates for equivalent loans at that date.
- No early repayment or impairment is recognised.
- Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed to approximate to fair
value.
- The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.
The fair values calculated are as follows:
2017/18
Carrying
Amount
Fair Value
£000
£000
Financial liabilities
Long-term Borrowings
Long-term lease liability
Short-term Borrowings
Short-term Creditors

(5,000)
(29,762)
(12,652)
(6,168)

(6,314)
(29,762)
(12,652)
(6,168)

2016/17
Carrying
Amount
Fair Value
£000
£000
(5,000)
(14,764)
(3,459)

(5,826)
(14,764)
(3,459)

The fair value of the liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes
a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the prevailing rates at the Balance
Sheet date.
2017/18
Carrying
Amount
Fair Value
£000
£000
Financial Assets
Long-term Investments
Short-term Investments
Long-term Debtors
Short-term Debtors

5,189
7,000
748
10,640

2016/17
Carrying
Amount
Fair Value
£000
£000

5,189
7,000
748
10,640

435
892
7,875

435
892
7,875

The fair values of Long Term Debtors, debtors and loans and receivables are estimated to be approximately
equivalent to their amortised cost (cost less provision for bad or doubtful debts).
The long term investment is made up of original £435k investment in airport joint venture, which is difficult to
value, hence shown at amortised cost and the £5m investment in units of CCLA property shares at original price
of 324p. The fair value is based on bid price of 297.33p per unit (£4.757m) as at year end date applying the
Route 1 approach
The fair values of temporary borrowings and creditors (short term payables) approximate to their amortised cost
as shown above.
16 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (GCC and Group)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Gain / Loss on revaluation
Assets transferred to / from held for sale
-Investment property
Balance at the end of the year

Current
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
606
(574)
83
83

Non-Current
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
-

(32)
-

Page
70 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 47

-

-

-

-

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
17 INVENTORIES
2017/18
£000
Consumable stores
Balance outstanding at start of year
Purchased
Consumed
Balance outstanding at year-end

2016/17
£000
44
8
(5)
47

41
7
(4)
44

18 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
As at 31st of March 2018, the Council entered into various contracts with companies for the construction of Bus Station and Kings
Quarter regeneration to the tune of £7.9m (£0, 2017). The bus station is expected to be completed in the Autumn of 2018 and the
Kings Quarter scheme is expected to be the subject of a planning application in the 2018/19 year.
19 DEBTORS
These are amounts owed to the Council by various bodies and persons and which fall due in less than one year
of the balance sheet date.
GCC
Group
2017/18
2016/17
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
£000
£000
Central government bodies
Other Local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Total debtors

316
716
9,608
10,640

464
622
6,789
7,875

316
716
9,608
10,640

464
622
6,789
7,875

19(i) Long Term Debtors
Long term debtors are amounts falling due in more than one year from the balance sheet date.
They consist of the following :GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£'000
£'000
51
62
97
97
506
627
94
106
748
892

Loans to vulnerable people for house renovations
Loans to Marketing Gloucester
Loans to Gloucestershire Airport Ltd-see below
Other loans
Total
Gloucestershire Airport loan details :Current
Interest Rate
(%)
10 Year loan
Balance at 31 March
Less:Amount repayable within twelve months included in short-term debtors

GCC and Group
2017/18
2016/17
£'000
£'000

1.8

627
(121)
506

746
(119)
627

1.5

-

70
(70)
-

506

627

The loan bears interest at 1.8% and is repayable in 6-monthly instalments of £65,831
including interest.
5 Year loan
Balance at 31 March
Less:Amount repayable within twelve months included in short-term debtors
Total

Other loans include an interest-free loan to Gloucester Historic Buildings Ltd and money spent on essential repairs works to private
properties, which have been secured as a charge on the properties concerned ('works-in-default').
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:
GCC
2017/18
£000
Cash held by the Council
Bank current accounts
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group
2016/17
£000

4
6,280
6,284

Page CITY
71
GLOUCESTER
COUNCIL
Page 48

4
2,692
2,696

2017/18
£000
4
6,280
6,284

2016/17
£000
4
2,692
2,696

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
21 SHORT-TERM CREDITORS
GCC
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
811
357
1,108
435
188
76
141
160
230
916
956
0
243
0
2,491
1,515
6,168
3,459

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Other Entities & Individuals
Council Taxpayers
Business Ratepayers
Deferred Income
Lease Liability
Sundry creditors
Total

Group
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
811
357
1,108
435
188
76
141
160
230
916
956
0
243
0
2,491
1,515
6,168
3,459

The amount owed to Other Local Authorities primarily relates to business rates payable to the Gloucestershire Business
Rates Pool
The amounts due to Government departments mainly relates to tax collected to be paid over from PAYE and amounts
relating to business rates owed to Central Government.
21(i) Short Term Borrowings
GCC
2017/18
£000
Aspire Sports and Cultural Trust
Charity deposits
Short-term borrowings with other local authorities
Accrued interest on short-term and long-term borrowings
Greater Manchester Pension Fund

152
7,497
3
5,000
12,652

2016/17
£000
3
151
14,500
110
14,764

Group
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
3
152
151
7,497
14,500
3
110
5,000
12,652
14,764

The fair value of these loans approximates to their carrying value.
21(ii) Long Term Borrowings (GCC and Group)
These consist of loans repayable in excess of twelve months from the balance sheet date. The Council is empowered to
borrow from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or from the money markets. Borrowings repayable in less than one
year are classified as temporary or current borrowings.
An analysis of loans by lender is as follows:

BAE Systems
Long Term Lease liability
Total

Interest
Rate
(%)
3.95
5.80%

2017/18
Amortised
Cost
£000
5,000
29,762
34,762

2017/18
2016/17
Fair
Amortised
Value
Cost
£000
£000
6,314
5,000
29,762
0
36,076
5,000

2016/17
Fair
Value
£000
7,331
7,331

Loans are reflected in the balance sheet at amortised cost. The fair value of the BAE Systems loans are the cost of
settling the liabilities at the balance sheet date. This is more than the amortised cost at 31 March because many of the
Council's loans were at interest rates higher than the rates for similar loans at the balance sheet date.
An analysis by date of repayment (maturity) is shown below.
2017/18
£000
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
Between 5 and 10 years
More than 10 years

34,762
34,762

PageCITY
72 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 49

2016/17
£000
5,000
5,000

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
22 PROVISIONS (GCC and Group)
Provisions more than 1 year
These are amounts set aside to meet losses which are likely or certain to occur in the future for greater than 1 year.
GCC and Group
Injury and
Damage
Compensa
Total
tion
Claims
£000
£000
Balance at 1 April 2017
197
197
Additional provisions made in 2017/18
58
58
Amounts utilised in 2017/18
(48)
(48)
Balance at 31 March 2018
207
207
Consists of:
Insurance claims provision
207
207
Balance at 31 March 2018
207
207
Insurance and Injury Compensation Claims Provision
The insurance provision is an amount set aside to cover known or likely losses or liabilities arising in respect of certain risks
which the Council is not able, or has chosen not, to cover by external insurance. This includes policy excesses in respect of
public liability claims, employee liability claims and claims in respect of property damage. This provision is expected to be
utilised to cover future claim settlements.
Claims relate to personal injuries sustained where the Council is alleged to be at fault. Provision is made for those claims where
it is deemed probable that the Council will have to make a settlement.
Provisions less than 1 Year
These are amounts set aside to meet losses which are likely or certain to occur in the future for less than 1 year.
GCC and Group
NNDR
Other
Total
Appeals Provisions
£000
£000
1,187
160
1,347
600
62
662
(286)
(143)
(429)
1,501
79
1,580

Balance at 1 April 2017
Additional provisions made in 2017/18
Amounts used in 2017/18
Balance at 31 March 2018
Consists of:
NNDR Appeals
Restructuring Provision
Legal Services provision
Accumulated Absence provision
Balance at 31 March 2018

1,501
1,501

10
18
51
79

Legal Service Provision
The Legal Services provision relates to ongoing litigation claims against the Council, these are likely to be resolved within 1 year.
Accumulated Absences Provision
This is the value of holiday and flexi outstanding at 31 March 2018. This is a short term provision for less than a year.
NNDR Appeals Provision
This provision covers the estimated cost to the Council resulting from appeals by ratepayers against their rateable value.

Page 73

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 50

1,501
10
18
51
1,580

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23 USABLE RESERVES
Movements in the Council’s and The Group's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
24 UNUSABLE RESERVES
GCC
2017/18
£000
38,065
(63,964)
22,442
49
(691)
(51)
(243)
(4,393)

Revaluation Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Short-term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account
Financial Instruments Available for Sale Reserve
Total Unusable Reserves

Group
2017/18
£000
47,943
(64,771)
26,500
49
(691)
(51)
(243)
8,735

GCC
2016/17
£000
26,998
(68,629)
40,670
51
(1,577)
(62)
(2,549)

Group
2016/17
£000
37,289
(69,667)
44,418
51
(1,577)
(62)
10,452

(i) Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant
and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:
- Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
- Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or
- Disposed of and the gains are realised.
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

Balance at 1 April
Upward revaluation of assets
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses
not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Surplus on revaluation of assets
Difference between fair value depreciation and
historical cost depreciation
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

2017/18
£000
Total
26,998
12,833

2016/17
£000
General
20,921
6,766

(747)
39,084

(12)
27,675

(594)
(425)

(677)
-

Balance at 31 March

38,065

26,998

(ii) Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets
under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The
Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated
on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such
gains. Notes 6 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.

Balance at 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment and assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the CIES
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in
Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that have been
applied to capital financing and application of grants to capital
financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Direct Revenue Financing
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged
against the General Fund and HRA balances
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the CIES
Balance at 31 March

Page 74
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 51

GCC Only
2017/18
2016/17
£000
£000
40,670
45,673
(3,017)
(594)
(311)
(1,583)

(3,444)
(1,710)
(357)
(356)

(599)
34,566

(1,467)
38,339

1,019
35,585

677
39,016

2,053

2,655

6,551
18

570
-

529
44,736
(22,294)
22,442

461
42,702
(2,032)
40,670

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
24 UNUSABLE RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(iii) Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for
funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Council makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly
responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall between the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside
by the time the benefits come to be paid.
2017/18
£000
Balance at 1 April
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31 March

2016/17
£000

(68,629)
4,406

(58,381)
(10,814)

(3,969)
4,228
(63,964)

(3,412)
3,978
(68,629)

(iv) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to
take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are
backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
2017/18
£000
51

Balance at 1 April
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash
Balance at 31 March

PageCITY
75 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 52

(2)
49

2016/17
£000
53
(2)
51

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
24 UNUSABLE RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(v) Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax and NonDomestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax and Business
rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection
Fund.

Balance at 1 April
Amount by which Council Tax and Non-Domestic rates income credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council Tax and Non-Domestic rates income
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31 March

2017/18
£000
(1,577)

2016/17
£000
(899)

886
(691)

(678)
(1,577)

(vi) Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from
accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

Balance at 1 April
Settlement or Cancellation of Accrual made at the end of the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year
Balance at 31 March

2017/18
£000
(62)
62
(51)
(51)

2016/17
£000
(79)
79
(62)
(62)

(vii) Financial Instruments Available for Sale Reserve
The Financial Instruments available for sale reserve holds the movements in the value in available for sale financial instruments
to reflect the difference between statutory requirements and proper accounting practices for such assets
2017/18
£000
Balance at 1 April
Movement in the fair value of available for sale assets
Balance at 31 March

0
(243)
(243)

Page
76 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 53

2016/17
£000
0
0
0

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
25 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
Council
2017/18
£000
(Deficit)/surplus on Provision of Services
Adjustments in respect of non-cash movements
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Revaluation losses charged to net cost of services
Amortisation of intangible assets
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term debtors
Increase in creditors
Decrease/(Increase) in long-term debtors
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Decrease) in provisions
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale
sold
Adjustment in respect of pension fund deficit
Adjustment for items that are investing and financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Capital Grants credited to CIES

Net Cash flows from Operating Activities
The cash flows from operating activities include the following items:
Interest received
Interest paid

Council
2016/17
£000

(18,304)

(4,542)

3,017
22,888
311
(2,765)
5,836
144
(3)
243

3,444
3,743
356
567
(1,672)
191
(3)
341

599
(259)
30,011

1,467
(566)
7,868

(914)
(7,044)
(7,958)

(1,860)
(1,886)
(3,746)

3,749

(420)

145
(1,512)

60
(245)

26 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Council
2017/18
£000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Short-term/long-term investments purchases
Capital Grants Received
Net cash flows from investing activities

Council
2016/17
£000

(7,037)

(7,520)

917
(12,000)
10,203
(7,917)

1,863
16
2,660
(2,981)

27 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Council
2017/18
£000
9,870
(2,113)
7,757

Lease Incentives Received
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing
Net cash flows from financing activities

Page 77
GLOUCESTER
CITY COUNCIL
Page 54

Council
2016/17
£000
4,476
4,476

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
28

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS FOR THE EXPENDITURE AND
FUNDING ANALYSIS
The expenditure and funding analysis (EFA), documents the adjustments made to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to get back to the funding position. The following note splits out the detail
of the adjustments made between the two positions.

(i) Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 2017/18
Adjustments
Adjustments
Other
for Capital
for Pensions Adjustments
Items
£000
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Culture and Leisure
Environment
Housing and Planning
Performance and Resources
Regeneration and Economy
Net Cost of Services
Other Income and Expenditure

£000

£000

TOTAL
£000

(307)
(139)
(601)
(943)
(594)
(2,289)
(4,873)

(121)
(177)
(188)
(253)
(461)
(215)
(1,415)

(4)
3
7
4
(1,026)
(1,016)

(432)
(316)
(786)
(1,189)
(1,051)
(3,530)
(7,304)

(15,547)

1,675

2,440

(11,432)

Difference between General Fund Surplus or
Deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Surplus or Deficit
(20,420)

260

1,424

(ii) Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 2016/17
Adjustments
Adjustments
Other
for Capital
for Pensions Adjustments
Items
£000
£000
£000

(18,736)

TOTAL
£000

Communities and Neighbourhoods
Culture and Leisure
Environment
Housing and Planning
Performance and Resources
Regeneration and Economy
Net Cost of Services

(71)
(830)
(1,083)
(311)
(642)
(1,094)
(4,031)

(74)
(82)
(89)
(152)
82
(104)
(419)

13
(2)
1
0
95
(1,613)
(1,506)

(132)
(914)
(1,171)
(463)
(465)
(2,810)
(5,955)

Other Income and Expenditure

(1,588)

984

1,306

702

(5,619)

565

(200)

(5,253)

Difference between General Fund Surplus or
Deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Surplus or Deficit

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement has been restated for 2016/17 to exclude interservice recharges. The amounts, and impact, is as follows.

Portfolio
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Culture and Leisure
Environment
Housing and Planning
Performance and Resources
Regeneration and Economy
Net Cost
29

Original
2016/17
CIES
£000
1,976
3,570
6,837
4,969
1,820
30
19,202

2016/17
Recharge
£000
875
966
1,658
2,504
(4,037)
(1,966)
0

Revised
2016/17
CIES
£000
1,101
2,604
5,179
2,465
5,857
1,996
19,202

ACQUIRED, DISCONTINUED AND TRANSFERRED OPERATIONS
There have been no acquired or discontinued or transferred operations during 2017/18.

Page 78

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 55

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 TRADING OPERATIONS
The council operates a number of services on a trading basis including the commercial estates and markets. The income and
expenditure relating to these operations are shown below.

City Estates
St.Oswald's Park
Eastgate Market
Other markets
Lettings & Catering Services
Total

2017/18
£000
£000
Income
Expenditure
(1,225)
204
(11)
18
(263)
216
(52)
44
(555)
985
(2,106)
1,467

£000
Net
(1,021)
7
(47)
(8)
430
(639)

2016/17
£000
£000
Income
Expenditure
(1,702)
191
(4)
(269)
255
(68)
24
(398)
355
(2,441)
825

£000
Net
(1,511)
(4)
(14)
(44)
(43)
(1,616)

The expenditure of these operations is allocated or recharged to headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Net surplus on Trading Operations
Net surplus credited to Other Operating Expenditure

2017/18
£000
(639)
(639)

2016/17
£000
(1,616)
(1,616)

2017/18
£000
340
2
342

2016/17
£000
331
1
332

31 MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES
The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year.

Allowances
Expenses
Total

Details of the allowances paid to each individual councillor are published in the Gloucester Citizen newspaper and on the Council's
website - www.gloucester.gov.uk
32 EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS
The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims, statutory
inspections and non-audit services provided by the Council’s external auditors:
2017/18
£'000
Fees payable to KPMG LLP for
- External audit services
- Certification of grant claims and returns
Total audit fees

71
15
86

Page 79

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 56

2016/17
£'000
63
10
73

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
33 OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid to the Council's senior employees' is as follows:

Managing Director

Corporate Director

Corporate Director

2017/18
84,216
14,736
£98,952

2017/18
84,203
14,736
£98,939

Head of Policy and
Resources - Section
151 Officer

Senior Officer
Salary, fees & allowances
Bonuses
Expenses allowance
Compensation for loss of employment
Employer's pension contribution
Any other emoluments
Total

2017/18
115,969
20,529
£136,498

2016/17
115,721
18,958
£134,679

2016/17
£74,025
£11,104
£85,129

2016/17
69,658
10,449
£80,107

2017/18
£76,656
£13,410
£90,066

2016/17
72,255
10,838
£83,093

* The Managing Director role is split between the City and County Councils, the remuneration paid is split equally between both organisations
*The Section 151 Officer role was the Head of Finance up to 01 June 2017
The Council's other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding pension contributions) were paid the following
amounts:
Remuneration Band

Number of Employees
2017/18
2016/17
1
2
1
1
1

£50,000 to £54,999
£55,000 to £59,999
£60,000 to £64,999
£65,000 to £69,999
£70,000 to £74,999
£75,000 to £79,999

34 TERMINATION BENEFITS
Details of termination benefits paid in 2017/18 are as follows:

Less than £20,000
Between £20,000 and £40,000
Between £40,000 and £60,000
Between £60,000 and £80,000
Between £80,000 and £100,000
Between £100,000 and £150,000
Total

Number of Compulsory
Number of Other
Total Exit Packages by
2017/18
2016/17
2017/18
2017/18
2016/17
2016/17
Number of
Compulsor
Number of
y
Other
Redundanc
Departures
ies
Number
Agreed
Number
Number
Number
6
1
17
23
4
5
3
1
8
11
1
3
3
2
2
9
2
30
4
39
6

Page
80 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 57

Total Cost of Exit
2017/18
2016/17

£'000
167
314
162
142
785

£'000
34
22
56

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 GRANT INCOME
The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
2017/18:
2017/18
£'000
Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
Revenue Support Grant
Capital Grants
New Homes Bonus
Business Rates Section 31 Grant
Transition Grant
Transparency Grant
Credited to Services
Homelessness and other housing
Mandatory Rent Allowances
Rent Rebates
Community Grants
Other
Total grants

2016/17
£'000

(1,092)
(7,044)
(2,696)
(1,222)
(10)
(12,064)

(1,856)
(1,886)
(3,831)
(741)
(10)
(8)
(8,332)

(466)
(40,846)
(377)
(885)
(42,574)

(10)
(42,752)
(379)
(35)
(600)
(43,776)

(54,638)

(52,108)

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income as they have
conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the donor. The balances at the year-end are as
follows:
Long-term Liabilities
31/03/2018
£'000
Capital Grants Received in Advance
Bodiam Avenue
Coney Hill South
Cotswold View
Flood income
Green Farm
British Energy
Hempsted Grange
Hammersons
Railway Triangle
St Oswalds
Travis Perkins
Tolsey Gardens
Kings Walk Contributions
Other contributions
Total

35
56
271
61
81
150
55
2
56
423
31
4,105
744
6,070

There are no capital grants received in advance that are classified as current liabilities.

PageCITY
81 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 58

31/03/2017
£'000
35
56
271
30
81
150
143
55
2
56
450
31
1,551
2,911

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
36 RELATED PARTIES
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – defined as bodies or individuals that have the potential to
control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess
the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit
another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.
Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for providing the statutory
framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of
the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills, housing benefits etc.). Grant receipts held as received in
advance at 31 March 2018 are shown in Note 35.
Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Council’s standing orders and the relevant officers did not take part in any
discussion or decision relating to these payments.
2017/18
Number
of
Related
Parties

2016/17

Payments
Made or
Due
£'000

Income

Number

Payments
Made or
of Related
Due
Parties
£'000

Rec'd
£'000

Income
Rec'd
£'000

Central Government
Revenue Support Grant
Other Government grants
Council Tax and Housing Benefit grants
NNDR

1
1
1
1

26,136

(1,092)
(5,279)
(43,131)
-

1
1
1
1

27,367

(1,856)
(5,235)
(43,131)
-

Other Local and Police Authorities
Precepts

2

51,159

-

2

48,719

-

Gloucestershire County Council
inc Pension Fund contributions

8

4,228

-

8

3,978

-

Gloucestershire Airport Limited
Loan interest and rents

1

-

(63)

2

-

(51)

Quedgeley Parish Council

1

236

-

1

252

-

Others
Gloucester Law Centre
Gloucester Wildlife Trust
Marketing Gloucester Limited
Aspire Sports and Cultural Trust
Hucclecote Community Association
Active Gloucestershire
Gloucester Docks Estate Company
Create Gloucestershire
Llanthony Secunda Priory
Strike a Light

1
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1

1

76
35
419
463
-

-

38
264
428
2
15
67
23
30
16

(438)
-

2
2
-

(351)
-

Amounts due to or from related parties included in debtors and creditors as at 31 March 2018:
2017/18
£'000
Short-term Debtors
Long-term Debtors
Short-term Creditors
Short-term Borrowings

1,054
603
2,290
7,497

Page 82

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 59

2016/17
£'000
582
724
1,437
14,500

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
37 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets acquired under finance
leases and contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years
by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a
measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this
note.

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

2017/18
£000
25,671

2016/17
£000
21,481

5,306
21,552
71
1,583
54,183

6,080
1,286
154
356
29,357

(2,053)
(6,551)
(18)
(529)
45,032

(2,655)
(570)
(461)
25,671

19,890

4,661
-

(529)
-

(461)
(10)

19,361

4,190

Capital investment
- Property, Plant and Equipment, heritage assets and assets held for sale
- Investment Properties
- Intangible Assets
- Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)
Sources of finance
- Usable Capital Receipts
- Capital Grants and Contributions
- Revenue Financing
Revenue Provision (including Minimum Revenue Provision)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement
Explanation of movements in year
Increase in underlying need to borrow for capital investment:
- Supported by Government financial assistance
- Unsupported by Government financial assistance
- Representing liability on new finance lease
Amounts 'set aside' for debt repayment
Capital Grant repaying expenditure financed by borrowing in prior year
Increase / (Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement
38 LEASES
(i) GCC as Lessor
Finance Leases

The Council has two finance leases. The rental for both leases was paid at inception with the exception of an annual rental of £1 per annum.
Accordingly there are no minimum lease payments outstanding at 31 March 2018.
The Council does not have any other finance leases as lessor.
Operating Leases
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:
a) The provision of community services such as sport and recreation facilities, tourism services and community centres; and
b) For economic development purposes to provide suitable accommodation for local businesses.
Rentals received during the year and included in the net cost of services were £1.290 million (2016/17:£1.747 million). The future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are as follows:
2017/18
£'000
842
3,251
92,043
96,136

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total

PageCITY
83 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 60

2016/17
£'000
1,529
5,299
124,969
131,797

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38 LEASES (Continued)
(ii) GCC as Lessee
Operating Leases
The Council has a number of operating leases in respect of buildings and car parks and items of property, plant and equipment.
Total lease payments were £0.393 million in 2017/18 (2016/17 :£0.490 million) made up as follows:
2017/18
2016/17
£'000
£'000
393
490
393
490

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rentals
Sub-lease payments receivable
Total
The Council has the following commitments representing the minimum lease payments in respect of operating leases:

2017/18
£'000
287
1,056
18,174
19,518

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total

2016/17
£'000
476
1,772
31,997
34,245

Finance Leases
The Council has one finance lease. This was entered into in 17/18 and represents a change in the Council's interest in the Kings Walk
shopping centre. Upon completion the Council recognised a lease liability relating to future rental payments of £29.762m. A right of use asset
was recognised with a value of £19.892m representing the lease liability of £29.762m after deduction of lease incentives received on completion
of £9.870m. The asset has subsequently been revalued to a value of £2.9m representing the fair value as determined by independent valuers.
This value is recorded within Property Plant and Equipment on the Balance Sheet. The previous Shopping Centre arrangement had been
categorised as an investment property.
The interest cost recorded as financing expenditure in year was £1.292m
Income received from tenants at the centre in 2017/18, net of the Authority's costs was £1.27m. Income of £697k was also recognised from a
rental guarantee deposit held. The remaining balance of this deposit is £4.083m and this is recorded as a creditor within the balance sheet.
The lease liability is recorded as long-term borrowing within the balance sheet with a value of £29.762m. Accrued interest of £243k is included
within current creditors.
The table below shows future lease payments at both their expected cash flow and their present value as at the balance sheet date.
Total Lease
Payments
£'000
1,429
6,012
94,853
102,295

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total

Present
Value
£'000
1,277
4,668
22,835
28,780

39 REVALUATION LOSSES
The Code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for revaluation losses and reversals charged or credited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services and to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 11,12,
13 and 14 reconciling the movement over the year in the Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Heritage assets and Intangible
Asset balances.
40 CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COSTS
No borrowing costs were capitalised during the year.

Page
84 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 61

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES
Participation in Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will
not actually be paid until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments, which needs to be disclosed at the
time employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund which is a defined benefit statutory pension scheme
administered by the County Council in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 1997 (as
amended). It is contracted out of the State Second Pension. It is also a Funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees
pay contributions into a Fund, set at a level intended to balance pension liabilities with investment assets.
Further information can be found in the Gloucestershire County Council LGPS Annual Report which is available (from November
each year) from:
Business Management Directorate
Gloucestershire County Council
Shire Hall
Westgate Street
Gloucester
GL1 2TG
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than when
the benefits are eventually paid as pensions, however, the charge we are required to make against Council Tax is based on the
cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services :
Current service cost (apportioned across services)
Effects of settlements
Settlements and Curtailments (included in Non-Distributed costs)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net interest expense
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
-Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense)
-Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
-Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from business combination and disposal
-Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions
-Other
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of Services for post
employment benefits in accordance with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in the year:
- employer's contributions payable by the general fund to the scheme
- retirement benefits payable to pensioners

2017/18
£000

2016/17
£000

2,078
201

1,448
(15)
38

1,690

1,941

3,969

3,412

1,739
2,667
-

12,173
926
(23,913)
-

8,375

(7,402)

(3,969)

(3,412)

4,228
-

3,978
-

8,634

(6,836)

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
31 March 2018 is a net deficit of £35.680 million (2016/17: £40.086 million).
Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation)
Funded liabilities: Local
Government Pension Scheme
2017/18
£000
160,434
2,078

Opening balance at 1 April
Current service cost
Effect of Settlements
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Effects of business combinations and disposals
Remeasurement gains and losses:
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
-Other
Losses/(gains) on curtailments
Benefits paid
Closing balance at 31 March

3,970
330

(2,667)

(926)
23,913

201
(5,651)
158,695

38
(5,585)
160,434

Page 85
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 62

2016/17
£000
136,682
1,448
(82)
4,578
368
-

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Continued)
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets
Local Government Pension Scheme

Opening balance at 1 April
Interest income
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense
Effect of Settlements
Effect of business combinations and disposals
Employer contributions
Contributions by scheme participants
Benefits paid
Closing balance at 31 March

2017/18
£000
91,805
2,280

2016/17
£000
78,301
2,637

1,739

12,173
(67)
3,978
368
(5,585)
91,805

4,228
330
(5,651)
94,731

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current
investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.
Scheme History
31-Mar-18
£'000
Present value of liabilities:
Local Government Pension Scheme
Fair value of assets:
Local Government Pension Scheme
Deficit in the scheme

31-Mar-17
£'000

(158,695)

(160,434)

94,731
(63,964)

91,805
(68,629)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post employment retirement benefits.
The total net liability of £63.964 million has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, however,
statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. Over the remaining working life
of employees i.e. before payments fall due, as assessed by the scheme actuary, finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary
benefits when the pensions are actually paid. The total contributions made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was £4.228 million (2016/17: £3.978 million).
The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees i.e.
before payments fall due, as assessed by the scheme actuary.
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable
in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and
Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County
Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2018.
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
Local Government Pension
Scheme
2017/18
2016/17
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men
- Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men
- Women

22.4
24.6

22.4 years
24.6 years

24
26.4

24.0 years
26.4 years

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions

2.70%
2.40%

2.70%
2.40%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into Retirement lump sum

2.60%
68%

2.50%
68%

Page
86 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 63

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Continued)
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example,
assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did
not change from those used in the previous period.
Impact on the Defined
Benefit Obligation
Approximate
Approximate
Monetary
% Increase in
Amount
Liability
£000
9%
13,715
1%
1,009
8%
12,591

0.5% Decrease in real discount rate
0.5% Increase in the salary increase rate
0.5% Increase in the pension increase rate

The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the
following categories, by proportion of the total assets held:
2017/18

Asset Category

Equity Securities
Consumer
Manufacturing
Energy & Utilities
Financial Institutions
Health & Care
Information Technology
Other
Debt Securities
Corporate Bonds (investment grade)
Corporate Bonds (non-investment
grade)
UK Government
Other
Private Equity
All
Real Estate
UK Property
Overseas Property
Investment Funds and Unit Trusts
Equities
Bonds
Hedge Funds
Commodities
Infrastructure
Other
Derivatives
Inflation
Interest Rate
Foreign Exchange
Other
Cash and Cash Equivalents
All
Totals

2016/17

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Quoted
prices not
in active
markets

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

Percentage
of Total
Assets

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Quoted
prices not
in active
markets

Total

Percentage
of Total
Assets

%

£'000

£'000

£'000

%

4,595
2,464
1,802
3,807
1,523
235
2,872

-

4,595
2,464
1,802
3,807
1,523
235
2,872

5%
3%
2%
4%
2%
0%
3%

4,453
2,387
1,747
3,690
1,476
228
2,783

-

4,453
2,387
1,747
3,690
1,476
228
2,783

5%
3%
2%
4%
2%
0%
3%

4,444

-

4,444

5%

4,307

-

4,307

5%

342
6,861
1,042

-

342
6,861
1,042

0%
7%
1%

331
6,650
1,009

-

331
6,650
1,009

0%
7%
1%

-

241

241

0%

-

233

233

0%

4,616
-

1,481
514

6,097
514

6%
1%

4,474
-

1,435
498

5,909
498

6%
1%

3,762
5,728
-

42,765
532
3,664

46,527
6,260

3,664

49%
7%
0%
0%
0%
4%

3,646
5,551
-

41,444
515
3,551

45,090
6,066
3,551

49%
7%
0%
0%
0%
4%

53
20

-

53
20

0%
0%
0%
0%

52
19

-

52
19

0%
0%
0%
0%

1,368
45,535

49,196

1,368
94,731

1%
100%

1,326
44,129

47,676

1,326
91,805

1%
100%

PageCITY
87 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 64

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (Continued)

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The County Council has
agreed a strategy with the schemes actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels are
monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 2020.
The Council is anticipated to pay £4.094m contributions to the scheme in 2018/19.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 15.8 years for 2017/18.
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Council is currently involved in an employment dispute with a former member of staff. The likelihood or quantum of potential
future costs are not known at the balance sheet date.

Page
88 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 65

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
43 NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.
Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.
Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock
market movements.
The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury team, under policies approved by the
Council in the annual treasury management strategy. The Council provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.
Credit Risk
This arises from deposits with banks, financial institutions and other local authorities and from credit exposure to the Council's customers.
Deposits are not made with banks or building societies unless such institutions have independently assessed credit ratings at least equivalent to
Fitch F1 short term
and A- long term or, in the case of non-rated UK building societies, have total assets in excess of £500 million. Limits are placed on the amount
and length of loans to individual institutions according to their respective credit rating or asset size.
The Council maintains strict credit criteria and it is considered that the risk of default remains low.
The Council's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its short-term investments and deposits with banks and other financial institutions of
£6.28million (2016/17: £2.692million) cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the
principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their
commitments and, along with short-term investments with other public sector bodies, are considered to have a low credit risk.
Full details of long-term investments are disclosed in note 44. Long-term debtors, as detailed in note 19(i), include the loans to Gloucestershire
Airport Limited totalling £0.506 million (2016/17:£0.627 million) and are considered to have a low credit risk.
The Council does not generally allow credit for customers and £740k, of the debtors balance of £10.64 million (see Note 15 ) is past its due date
for payment as follows:
£'000
138
416
186
740

Less than 4 months
4 months- 1 year
More than 1 year
Total

The Council has set aside provisions for unrecoverable or doubtful debts based on experience of uncollectability, and it is estimated uncollectible
amounts will be able to be met from these.
Liquidity Risk
The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. If unexpected
movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no
significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. The maturity analysis of financial
liabilities is as follows:
Maximum

Long term loans - period until repayment

%
50
50
50
80
100

Less than 1 year
1 - 2 years
2 - 5 years
5 - 10 years
Over 10 years

Actual
31/03/2018
%
0%
0%
0%
0%
100%
100%

Full details of the maturity analysis in respect of long-term borrowings are included in note 21(ii). All trade and other payables and short-term
borrowings are due to be paid in less than one year.
Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates
have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:
- Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise
- Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall
- Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise
- Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.
Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, however, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate
borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements
in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Page 89
GLOUCESTER
CITY COUNCIL
Page 66

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
43 NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.
During periods of falling interest rates and, where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to
losses. The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a proportion of Government grant payable on financing costs will normally move with prevailing
interest rates or the Council’s cost of borrowing and provide compensation for a proportion of any higher costs.
The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is
used to update the budget quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new
borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.
According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect
would be:
Average
amount
Outstanding
£000s
Borrowings
Long-term-fixed rate
Short-term-variable

5,000
12,652

Actual
Projected
Actual
Interest
Projected
Interest
Interest rate Paid/(Rece Interest Rate Paid/Receiva
ivable)
ble
%
£000s
%
£000s

3.95%
0.66%

17,652
Investments
Short-term-variable
Net loss/(gain) on deficit/(surplus) for the year

7,000

198
84

4.95%
1.66%

281

0.56%

39

248
210
458

1.56%

109

Variation
£000s
(50)
(127)
(177)
70
(107)

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
Price Risk
The Council does not invest in quoted shares and the shares it owns are not carried at fair value. As a result the Council is not exposed to movements in
market prices. For the impact on the pension scheme, see Note 43.
Foreign exchange Risk
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange
rates.
44 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Long term investments are investments repayable in (or intended to be held for) more than 1 year and are shown at cost.
They consist of the following:
GCC
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-17
£'000
£'000
Share capital - Gloucestershire Airport Ltd
435
435
Government Stock
CCLA
4,754
Total
5,189
435

Group
31-Mar-18
£'000
£'000
4,754
4,754

During the year the Council invested £5m to purchase units of CCLA shares, a property investment funds at a market price of 324p per unit. As at 31st
March , the bid price per unit was 297.33p (£4,757k), hence the fair value amount as reflected in balance sheet and recognised through the income and
expenditure accounts. This being an application of the Route 1 fair value approach.

Page 90
GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 67

-

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
The Council’s group accounts combine the Council's accounts with those of Gloucestershire Airport Limited in which the Council
has a 50% shareholding (the remaining 50% of the shares are owned by Cheltenham Borough Council). Gloucestershire Airport is
accounted for as a joint venture, using equity accounting principle
The purpose of the Group Accounts is to reflect the full value of the Council's investments in these entities within the Council's
financial statements, since the Council's shareholdings may not fully reflect its share of the respective entities' assets and liabilities.
The following entities in which the Council has an interest have not been included in the Group accounts as the Council's share of
income and net assets is considered to be immaterial and that their inclusion would have an insignificant impact on the group:
Council
Share
GL1 Sports Limited
100%
Dormant company
Marketing Gloucester Limited
100%
Gloucester Law Centre
36%
Linking Communities
29%
Race Equality Council for Gloucestershire
31%
Gloucestershire Airport Limited has been categorised as a joint venture company as the decisions regarding the operating and
financial policies of the company require the consent of all parties. For the purposes of the group accounts Gloucestershire Airport
has been treated as a jointly controlled entity (joint venture) and has been consolidated in accordance with IAS 31.
Gloucestershire Airport Limited (GAL)
Gloucestershire Airport Limited is a wholly owned airport company which was voluntarily established during 1992/93 by Gloucester
City Council together with Cheltenham Borough Council, using powers available to them under the Airports Act (1986). This
replaced the previous joint committee arrangements for the airport. The shares allotted were divided equally between the two
councils. The market value of the shares is unknown as they are not quoted shares. They are classified within the Council’s
individual accounts as a long-term investment.
The registered name of the airport company is Gloucestershire Airport Ltd (Registered Number 2774189). The draft accounts of
the company for the year ended 31 March 2018 reflected the following:
2017/18
£000
186
24,699

After tax operating (loss)/profit
Net assets

2016/17
£000
71
24,260

For the purposes of the accounts the Airport has been classified as a Joint Venture as it is jointly owned by two local authorities,
neither of which has overall control. These show the full value of the Council's investment within its financial statements, since the
value of the Council's shares do not fully reflect the value of the airport land.

PageCITY
91 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 68

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
45 NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS (continued)
The Group Balance Sheet has been prepared by combining the Council’s 50% share of the Airport’s net assets as a long-term investment,
eliminating the share capital. Since FRS102 requires Investment Property (ands allows Property, Plant and Equipment at 'deemed cost') to
be measured at fair value, the revaluation adjustments previously applied to bring the airport's accounts into line with the Council's
accounting policies are no longer required. For the purposes of the airport's accounts its non-current assets were revalued at fair value as at
31st March 2015, 2016 and 2017 by an external valuer.
There is no requirement to adjust for transactions carried out and balances held between the Council and Gloucestershire Airport Limited.
The cash flows of the Airport are also not required to be included in the Group Cash flow Statement.
In the autumn of 2009, the Council agreed to facilitate borrowing to finance the runway safety project at Gloucestershire Airport, to provide a
safer runway with a computerised instrument landing system (ILS) which was completed in the 2012/13 financial year. The Council loaned
£1.550million (2016/17:£1.550m) to the Airport to help fund this project. In 2013/14 the loan was converted from an indefinite period loan to
two interest-bearing loans, one for £350k repayable over 5 years and one for £1.2m repayable over 10 years.
(Refer to note 19(i) for details).
The following table discloses the council’s share of the Airport’s net assets as follows:
Gloucestershire Gloucester Gloucestershire Gloucester
Airport Limited City Council's Airport Limited City Council's
Share
Share
£
£
£
£
2017/18
2017/18
2016/17
2016/17
£000
£000
£000
£000
5,580
2,790
4,428
2,214

Turnover
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Profit for the financial year after taxation
Fixed Assets
Current Assets
Liabilities due within one year
Liabilities due after one year
Net pension liability

566
(380)
186

283
(190)
93

(187)
258
71

(94)
129
35

33,876
751
1,781
6,532
1,614

16,938
375
890
3,266
807
12,350
(435)
11,915

33,241
990
2,007
5,887
2,077

16,621
495
1,004
2,944
1,039
12130
-435
11695

Less: Investment
Share of Assets consolidated using the equity approach
The Airport did not pay any dividend for the year ended 31st March 2018 (2017: £Nil).

The accounts of GAL for the year ending 31 March 2018 can be obtained from the Airport Company Secretary at the company's registered
office
- The Terminal Building, Staverton, Nr Cheltenham, Glos, GL51 6SR.

Page 92

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 69

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
45 NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS (continued)
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN GROUP ACCOUNTS AND GCC ACCOUNTS
Adjusting for Intra-group Transactions and Balances
Adjustments have been made in respect of inter-group debtors and creditor balances between the Council and its subsidiaries. Inter-group
transactions relating to services and other charges have also been eliminated on consolidation. This adjustment has been made in accordance with
the Code.
Usable and Unusable Reserves
Transfers have been made between usable reserves and unusable reserves in respect of the classification of the pension reserves in subsidiary
companies which are, effectively, included in retained earnings. In the group accounts these have been transferred from usable reserves to unusable
reserves to ensure consistency of treatment with the Council's accounts.

Page
93 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
CITY
Page 70

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 94

COLLECTION FUND
COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
Note

2017/18
£'000
£'000
Council Business
Tax
Rates

£'000

2016/17
£'000

Total

Total

(51,966)

(52,852)

(59,655)

(59,655)

(56,709)

(59,655)

(51,966) (111,621) (109,561)

INCOME
Non Domestic Rates
Collectable from Business Ratepayers

2,4

Council Tax
Collectable from Council Tax Payers

1

(51,966)

EXPENDITURE
Non-Domestic Rates
Payment to Gloucester City Council
Payment to Central Government
Payment to Gloucestershire County Council

20,909
26,136
5,227

Council Tax Precepts
Gloucester City Council
Gloucestershire County Council
Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire

20,909
26,136
5,227

21,894
27,367
5,473

7,226
43,286
7,873

6,945
41,097
7,622

785
175

742
(1,091)
785
175

170
538
10
761
179

750
59,096

(3,012)
49,910

(2,262)
109,006

(811)
111,245

(559)

(2,056)

(2,615)

1,684

(1,183)
(1,742)

4,306
2,250

3,123
508

1,439
3,123

7,226
43,286
7,873

Write-Offs
Change in bad debt provisions
Interest on NNDR refunds
Change in Provision for NNDR Appeals
Cost of NNDR Collection

(54)
15

Distribution of previous years' estimated Collection Fund surplus/(deficit)

(Increase)/Decrease in Fund
Balance of Fund at beginning of year
Balance of Fund at 31 March

PageCITY
95 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 72

796
(1,106)

COLLECTION FUND
The Collection Fund is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund.
The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities
and the Government of Council Tax and Non-domestic rates.
1

COUNCIL TAX
The figure shown is net of Council Tax benefits and transitional relief which are paid for by the Council's general fund.
Council tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which have been classified into eight
valuation bands estimating 1 April 1991 values for this specific purpose. Individual charges are calculated by setting the amount of income
required to be taken from the collection fund by the City and County Councils and Gloucestershire Police Authority for the forthcoming year
(the precepts) and dividing this by the Council Tax base. The tax base is the total number of properties in each band (adjusted by discounts)
converted to a band D equivalent. This basic amount Council Tax for a band D property is multiplied by the proportion specified for the
particular band to give an individual amount due.
The Council Tax base for the year (to the nearest whole equivalent) was calculated as follows:
Band

Estimated No. of
taxable properties
after effect of discounts

Ratio

Band D
equivalent
dwellings

A

55

5/9

31

A

13,919

6/9

9,279

B

14,148

7/9

11,004

C

12,254

8/9

10,892

D

5,311

9/9

5,311

E

3,382

11/9

4,134

F

793

13/9

1,145

G

140

15/9

233

H

3

18/9

5

Total

50,005

42,035

Less: Council Tax Support Scheme

(4,942)

Less adjustment for collection rates and for anticipated changes
during the year for successful appeals against valuation banding,
new properties, demolitions, disabled persons relief and exempt
properties (1.25% of total band D equivalent dwellings)
Council Tax Base for 2017/18
Council Tax Base for 2016/17

(387)

36,706
36,240

The Council Tax Base for 2017/18 multiplied by the Average Band D Council Tax
Charge gives the Total of Precepts and Demands for the Year:
Tax Base

36,706
X
1,584.17

Average Band D Charge
Precepts and Demands (£000s)

58,148

Properties within the boundaries of Quedgeley Parish Council
pay an additional Council Tax sum to fund the activities of the
Parish Council. For the 2017/18 year this was as follows.
Tax Base

6,204
X

Average Band D Charge

38.09

Precept

236

PageCITY
96 COUNCIL
GLOUCESTER
Page 73

COLLECTION FUND
2 INCOME FROM BUSINESS RATEPAYERS
Under the arrangements for uniform business rates, the Council collects non-domestic rates for its area which are based on local rateable values
multiplied by a uniform rate (the Multiplier) set by the Government. Certain reliefs are available and the figure shown as collectable is net of these
reliefs.
The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2018 was £129.452 million (£126.007 million at 31 March 2017) and the national non-domestic
multiplier for 2017/18 was 47.9p (2016/17 :49.7p), resulting in net income after transitional, small property, empty property and mandatory reliefs of
£51.314 million (£52.852 million in 2016/17).
The Business Rates Retention scheme splits rate income between central government and local authorities according to a set percentage split in each
area. For the Gloucester City Council area 50% of income goes to Central Government, 40% to Gloucester City Council and 10% to Gloucestershire
County Council. The Collection Fund Statement shows the sums received by each organisation for Business Rates in 2017/18.
As part of the scheme Central Government established a baseline funding level for every authority. A system of tariffs, paid by authorities who have
gained, and top ups, paid to those who have lost out, ensures that each authority receives their baseline funding. The tariff paid by Gloucester City
Council from its general fund in 2017/18 was £15.480 million.
3 FUND BALANCE
The balance of the fund is shared between the Council and its major precepting authorities in the following year. The billing authority has to estimate the
surplus/deficit for the end of each financial year by January 15 of that year.
This Council Tax balance is shared by the City and County Councils and Gloucestershire Police Authority according to the proportion that their precept
constitutes of the total for precepts for that year.
The surplus/deficit will be shared out in its entirety between the Council and County Council and Police Authority. The County Council and Police
Authority share will be carried as creditors/debtors and the Council's share will be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The
Collection Fund Adjustment Account is then needed to reconcile the net credit made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for Council
Tax to the statutory amount in the Statement of General Fund Movement.
The closing surplus for 2017/18 is £1.742 million (2016/17 surplus £1.183 million). This is apportioned as follows:
2017/18
£'000
(1,293)
(239)
(210)
(1,742)

Gloucestershire County Council
Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire
Gloucester City Council
Total

2016/17
£'000
(876)
(161)
(146)
(1,183)

The fund surplus is to be partly distributed to the respective parties in 2017/18 as a surplus of £1 million was declared in January 2017.
Any balance on the collection fund for NNDR is shared between Central Government, The City Council and the County Council in the proportions of
50%, 40% and 10% respectively. As with Council Tax, the County Council and Police Authority share is carried as a creditor and the Council's share was
debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Collection Fund Adjustment Account is used to reconcile the net debit made to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for NNDR to the statutory amount in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The collection fund relating to NNDR recorded an in year surplus of £2.056 million in 2017/18 (£1.705m deficit in 2017/18). The closing deficit is
apportioned between the relevant bodies as follows.
Apportionment of Net Deficit relating to NNDR

2017/18
£'000
225
1,125
900
2,250

Gloucestershire County Council
Central Government
Gloucester City Council
Total

2016/17
£'000
430
2,153
1,723
4,306

The fund deficit is to be fully recovered from the respective parties in 2018/19 as a deficit of £2.254 million was declared in January 2018.
4 NON-DOMESTIC RATES APPEALS
When the new arrangements for the retention of business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013, local authorities assumed the liability for refunding
ratepayers who have successfully appealed against the rateable value of their properties on the rating list.
This will include amounts that were paid over to Central Government in respect of prior years. Previously, such amounts would not have been
recognised as income by the local authorities, but would have been transferred to DCLG.
The new arrangements give rise to the need to make a provision for the future cost of these appeals. The estimate made for the likely future value of
appeals as at 31 March 2018 was £3.752 million. This has been split amongst the three recipients of Business Rates Income according to their
respective share.
2017/18
£'000
1,877
1,501
375
3,752

Central Government
Gloucester City Council
Gloucestershire County Council
Total

Page 97

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 74

2016/17
£'000
1,483
1,186
297
2,966

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL
TERMS

Gloucester City Council Statement of Accounts 2017/2018

Page 98

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
To help you understand Gloucester City Council's accounts, some of the terms used are briefly explained
below :
Accounting Period
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months, commencing on 1st April for
local authority accounts.
Account
A generic term for statements setting out details of income and expenditure or assets and liabilities or both,
in a structured manner. Accounts may be categorised by the type of transactions they record, e.g.
management accounts, balance sheets.
Accruals
Sums included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the accounting period but
for which payment has not been made/received at the balance sheet date.
Amortised Cost
The original cost less any depreciation or impairment (if applicable).
Bad or Doubtful Debts
It is common practice for an organisation to create a provision for bad debts representing the estimated
amount of debt existing at the 31 March which is deemed to be irrecoverable.
Balances
Also known as 'working balances', these are 'contingency' reserves not set aside for any specific purpose but
to cover possible unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure.
Budget
The Council's aims and policies in financial terms. Also referred to as 'Estimate'.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on capital assets which have a long term value to the authority e.g. land, buildings and
equipment (known as fixed assets) or the payment of grants to other people for the purchase or
improvement of capital assets e.g. house renovation grants (known as deferred charges).
Capital Financing
The raising of money to pay for capital expenditure. In the past the cost of capital assets was often met by
borrowing, but capital expenditure may also be financed by other means such as contributions from revenue
accounts, the proceeds from the sale of capital assets, capital grants, and contributions from developers or
others.
Capital Financing Costs
Principal and interest repayments relating to loans.
Capital Grants
Grants from the Government, the National Lottery and developers towards capital expenditure on a specific
service or project.
Capital Receipts
Proceeds arising from the sale of capital assets or from the repayment to the Council of capital grants and
loans. Capital receipts may be used to finance additional capital spending.
Collection Fund
The collection fund brings together income from council tax and business ratepayers. From this fund the
City, County Council and Police Authority precept for their annual net expenditure.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 76
Page
99

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
Community assets
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, and that have no determinable useful life.
Examples of community assets are parks and historic buildings.
Contingent Liability
A liability which exists at the balance sheet date where the outcome will be confirmed only on the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, for example the default by a
borrower on a loan from a third party for which the authority has given a guarantee.
Contingent Asset
As with contingent liability, only an asset.
Creditors
Amounts owed by the authority for work done, goods received or services rendered within an
accounting period, but for which payment was not made at the balance sheet date.
Current Assets
Assets which can be expected to be consumed or realised during the next accounting period.
Current Liabilities
Amounts which will become due or could be called upon during the next accounting period.
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Expenditure which may be financed from capital resources but which does not result in tangible
assets, for example on house renovation grants.
Depreciation
The cost of the "wearing out" of a fixed asset.
Debtors
Amounts owed to the authority but for which payment was not made at the balance sheet date.
Employee Costs
These include salaries, wages and related national insurance and pension costs payable by the City
Council, together with training expenses and charges relating to the index - linking of the pensions of
former employees.
Fair Value
The value at which a liability (eg a loan) may be settled or extinguished.
Final Accounts
Accounts prepared for an accounting period, usually in a summarised form. These accounts show the
net surplus (profit) or deficit (loss) on individual services together with a balance sheet. They are
produced as a record of stewardship and are available to interested parties. Local authorities are
required to publish each year a Statement of Accounts (final accounts and balance sheet) as specified
in the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) Regulations 2011.
Finance Lease
A lease whereby at the end of the lease period the Council receives part of the proceeds arising from
the sale of the asset.
Financial Year
The local authority financial year commences 1st April and finishes 31st March the following year.
Fixed assets
Assets that yield benefits to the local authority for a period of more than one year.

GLOUCESTER
PageCITY
100 COUNCIL
Page 77

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
General Fund
The Council's main account which includes all services except Council Housing. The net expenditure on the
account is financed from Government Revenue Support Grant.
Government Grants
Payments by Central Government towards local authority expenditure. They may be specific e.g. Housing
Benefits, or general e.g. Revenue Support Grant.
Gross Book Value
The historical cost or current value of a fixed asset.
Gross Expenditure
The total cost of providing services before any income is deducted.
Impairment
A reduction in market value of an asset as a result for example of damage or reduction in market price.
Improvement Grants
Statutory or discretionary payments that local authorities make to tenants or owners of houses lacking basic
amenities to enable them to bring dwellings up to modern standards. The maximum amounts payable are
determined by government, which reimburses the authority for part of the cost it incurs in providing the grants.
Infrastructure Assets
A type of fixed asset, for example highways and footpaths.
Interest
An amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it is invested or borrowed.
Investment Properties
Interest in land and/or buildings which is held for its investment potential.
Minimum Revenue Provision
The minimum amount which must be charged to an authority's revenue accounts for repayment of debt. It is
calculated by applying a prescribed percentage to outstanding debt less certain allowances.
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)_
An NNDR multiplier is set annually by central government and the rates due, calculated by multiplying the rate
by a business property's rateable value, is collected by charging authorities and paid into a central pool
maintained by the Government.
The proceeds are redistributed by the government between local authorities according to a formula.
Net Book Value
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current value
less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.
Net Expenditure
Gross expenditure less any related income.
Non-Distributed Costs
Costs which are not attributable to any specific service, and are therefore retained at the corporate centre.
Operating Lease
A lease whereby at the end of the lease period the Council does not receive any proceeds arising from the sale
of the asset.
Precept
The amount which a Precepting Authority (i.e. a County Council) requires from a Charging Authority (district
council) to meet its expenditure requirements.
Provision
An amount set aside in a separate account to cover known or likely losses. An example of a provision is the
Insurance Provision.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page 78
Page
101

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
Reserve
An amount set aside in a separate account for future use. Reserves may be capital (can only be used for
capital purposes) or revenue (can be used by revenue accounts). Reserves can be earmarked for a specific
purpose or classified as general i.e. not earmarked for a particular purpose, for example the general fund
revenue balance.
Revenue Account
Accounts covering income and expenditure relating to the day to day running of Council services.
Revenue Support Grant
A general grant paid to all authorities to help finance the cost of services.
Revised Budget
An estimate of likely actual expenditure, made towards the end of the financial year. Also referred to as
'Revised Estimate'.
Stock
Items of raw materials and stores an authority has purchased to use on a continuing basis which are not used
at the year end.
Value For Money
An expression describing the benefit obtained (not just in financial terms) for a given input of cash. The
phrase is widely used within public bodies, but there are many difficulties in its use because value is a
subjective measure and there are rarely supporting objective measures. The Audit Commission is required to
consider value for money with the three objectives of economy of input, efficiency of operation and
effectiveness of output in service provision.

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Page102
79
Page

Agenda Item 9

Date:

23rd July 2018

Meeting:

Audit and Governance Committee

Subject:

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2017/18

Report Of:

Head of Policy and Resources
Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor)

Wards Affected:

Not applicable

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Theresa Mortimer - Head of Audit Risk Assurance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email:
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No

Tel: 01452 396338

1: Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2017/18
2: Revised Local Code of Corporate Governance (LCCG) 2017/18
3: Council Wide Governance Assurance Map 2017/18

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To summarise Gloucester City Council’s corporate governance arrangements in
place during 2017/2018, via the publication of an AGS, (signed by the Leader and
the Managing Director), supported by a revised Local Code of Corporate
Governance 2017/2018, which is in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1999, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authorities
Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance – Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government Framework 2016 and to provide the Committee with the Council Wide
Governance Assurance Map 2017/18.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Audit and Governance Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
 the AGS 2017/18 (including the actions planned by the Council to further
enhance good governance arrangements), as set out in Appendix 1, be
approved.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

In April 2016, CIPFA and SOLACE published ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: Framework 2016 and this applies to annual governance statements
prepared for the 2017/2018 financial year. Guidance notes were also published to
assist Council Leaders and Chief Executives in reviewing and testing their
governance arrangements against the revised seven principles for good
governance.
1
Page 103

3.2

The key focus of the framework is on sustainability: economic, social and
environmental and the need to focus on the longer term and the impact actions may
have on future generations.

3.3

In response to the above, we therefore:


reviewed the existing governance arrangements against the revised principles
set out in the Framework;



developed and implemented a refreshed local code of corporate governance,
based on the principles, including an assurance framework for ensuring
ongoing effectiveness; and



will report publically, via the Annual Governance Statement on compliance
with our code on an annual basis, how we have monitored the effectiveness of
our governance arrangements in the year and on planned improvement areas.

3.4

The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Leader and Managing Director
(Head of Paid Service) and must accompany the Annual Statement of Accounts.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of the recommendation made in this
report.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

There are no alternative options that are relevant to this matter.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 6 (1) (a) requires the Council to conduct
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control required by
regulation 3, and (b) to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

The improvement actions identified as part of the annual review and included within
the AGS will be monitored by Senior Management and the Audit and Governance
Committee during 2018/2019.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

There are no direct financial costs arising out of this report.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report).

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

Nothing specific arising from the report recommendations.
2
Page 104

(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report).
10.0

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

Failure to deliver effective governance will impact on the ability of the Council to
achieve its vision, priorities and key actions. It is important to recognise that the
purpose of the AGS is not just to be ‘compliant’, but also to provide an accurate
representation of the arrangements in place during the year and to highlight those
areas where improvement is required.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

There are no ‘Community Safety’ implications arising out of the recommendations in
this report.
Sustainability

12.2

There are no ‘Sustainability’ implications arising out of the recommendations in this
report.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

There are no ‘Staffing and Trade Union’ implications arising out of the
recommendations in this report.

Background Documents:
Reference and Council website links to supporting reports and documentation are made
within the AGS and LCCG.

3
Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Annual Governance Statement
2017/18

Page 107

Contents
Scope of Responsibility ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 3
What is Governance? ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 4
What is the purpose of a Governance Framework? ............................................................................................................................................. 4
What is the Annual Governance Statement? ........................................................................................................................................................ 5
What is a Governance Assurance Framework? ................................................................................................................................................... 6
What is the Council’s Governance Assurance Framework? ................................................................................................................................. 7
How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?.............................................................................................................................. 8
How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its governance arrangements? ....................................................................... 8
What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework? .......................................................................................................................... 9
Page 108

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement actions from 2016/17? ..................................................................................... 18
What are the key 2017/18 Governance matters identified? ................................................................................................................................ 19
Certification......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 24

2

Scope of Responsibility
Gloucester City Council (GCC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards,
and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
GCC acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is effective governance within the Council and as such has developed a Code of
Corporate Governance that defines the principles and practices that underpin the governance arrangements operating within the Council.
Page 109

The Code is reviewed and updated annually and is consistent with the seven core principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government framework - 2016 Edition’, the key focus being on sustainability i.e. economic, social and environmental and the need to focus on
the longer term and the impact actions may have on future generations.
A copy of the Code can be accessed on the Council’s website. However, a summary of the seven core principles upon which it is based can
be found on page 9 of this document.
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015, regulation 6(1) (a) and (b), which requires the Council to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).
The responsibility for leading and directing the annual reviews of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the
Code and providing ongoing oversight and robust challenge, is the Council’s Statutory Officers, comprising, the Managing Director, Chief
Financial Officer (S151 Officer) and the Monitoring Officer and when completed, the findings are reported to and improvement actions
identified, monitored by the Audit and Governance Committee.

3

What is Governance?
Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open,
honest and accountable manner. Good governance leads to effective:
 leadership and management;
 performance and risk management;
 stewardship of public money; and
 public engagement and outcomes for our citizens and service users.

What is the purpose of a Governance Framework?
Page 110

The governance framework comprises the culture, values, systems and processes by which an organisation is directed and controlled. It
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate services and value for money. The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It assures that in conducting its business, the Council:
 operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner;
 makes sure that public money and assets are safeguarded from inappropriate use, or from loss and fraud, properly accounted for and

used economically, efficiently and effectively;
 has effective arrangements for the management of risk;
 secures continuous improvement in the way that it operates;
 enables human, financial, environmental and other resources to be managed efficiently and effectively;
 properly maintains records and information; and
 ensures its values and ethical standards are met.

4

What is the Annual Governance Statement?
The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement, in order to
report publicly on the extent to which we comply with our own Local Code of Corporate Governance, including how we have monitored the
effectiveness of our arrangements in year and on any planned changes to our governance arrangements in the coming year.
In this document the Council:
 acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance;
 summarises the key elements of the governance framework and the roles of those responsible for the development and maintenance

of the governance environment;
 describes how the Council has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any

planned changes in the coming period;
Page 111

 provides details of how the Council has responded to any issue(s) identified in last year’s governance statement; and
 reports on any key governance matters identified from this review and provides a commitment to addressing them.

The Annual Governance Statement reports on the governance framework that has been in place at Gloucester City Council for the year
ended 31st March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.
It should be noted however, that any system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The Council’s Governance Assurance Framework, which underpins the AGS, has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31st March
2018 and up to the date of approval of the AGS and Statement of Accounts.

5

What is a Governance Assurance Framework?
Assurance provides confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls are in place and are operating effectively and that
objectives are being achieved. An Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior Management identify the principal
risks to the Council meeting its key objectives, and through which they map out both the key controls to manage them and how they have
gained sufficient assurance about the effectiveness of those controls. The assurance framework underpins the statements made within the
Annual Governance Statement.
A governance assurance process is in place to provide a framework for the annual assessment of the effectiveness of the governance
arrangements operating within the Council. This includes overview and oversight and robust challenge by the Council’s Statutory Officers i.e.
the Managing Director, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
Page 112

In addition, ‘the three lines of defence assurance model’ is in place which helps Members and Senior Management to understand where
assurances are being obtained from, the level of reliance they place on that assurance and identify potential gaps in assurance.
The Three Lines of Defence in effective Risk Management and Control
Assurance can come from many sources within the Council. The Three Lines of Defence is a concept for helping to identify and understand
the different sources of assurance.
By defining these sources into three categories i.e. the First Line (functions that own and manage risks e.g. management and supervisory
controls), the Second Line (functions that oversee risks e.g. Governance structures and processes such as Audit and Governance
Committee, Scrutiny, Boards) and the Third Line (functions that provide independent assurance on the management of risks e.g. HMRC,
Information Commissioner, Internal/External Audit), helps the Council understand how each contributes to the overall level of assurance and
how best they can be integrated and supported. Please see page 7 below which summarises the Council’s governance assurance framework,
which is based on the three lines of defence model.

6

What is the Council’s Governance Assurance Framework?
Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
Audit and Governance Committee
(AGS Approval Committee)

Leader, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer, Senior Management Team
(Provides oversight of the 3 lines of defence assurance framework)

1st Line of Defence
Page 113

2nd Line of Defence

3rd Line of Defence

Business and Operational
Management

Oversight and Support

Independent Assurance

Delivering objectives, identifying risks
and improvement actions, implementing
controls, progress reporting, provides
management assurance, ensuring
compliance

Independent challenge and audit,
reporting assurance, audit opinion
assurance levels

Committee and Scrutiny Functions

Operational Management and Staff

Internal Audit

Senior Management Functions

Managing Performance and Data
Quality

External Audit

Strategy / Policy / Direction setting,
decision-making, assurance oversight

Quality Control Checks

Risk Management
Functional Compliance (Information
Management, HR, Legal, Contract and
Financial Management)

Support

Programme and Project Management

Delivery of Service Business Plans

Validate

External Inspections

Review Agencies

Regulators

7

How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?
In preparing the Annual Governance Statement the Council has:
 reviewed the Council’s existing governance arrangements against the revised CIPFA / SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in

Local Government framework - 2016 Edition’ good practice guidance;
 updated the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance to reflect this guidance which includes the revised seven principles of

good governance and associated required actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance; and


assessed the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance.

Page 114

How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of
its governance arrangements?
The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance arrangements. The key sources of assurance that inform this review are
outlined below:
 The development and implementation of a Member / Management governance assurance framework which enables the Council to

gain assurance that good governance actions and behaviours are operating within the Council;
 The work of Members and Senior Officers of the Council who have responsibility for good governance;
 The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report on Internal Audit Activity 2017/2018, which provides the independent assurance that key

risks (financial and non-financial) are being adequately controlled and provides an opinion on the effectiveness of these
arrangements;
 The annual report on Risk Management Activity 2017/2018;
 Any comments made by the Council’s External Auditors; and
 Any other review agencies and inspectorates.
8

What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework?
The Council aims to achieve good standards of governance by adhering to the seven core principles below, which form the basis of the
Council’s Code of Corporate Governance:

G. Implementing good practices
in transparency, reporting, and
audit to deliver effective
accountability

C. Defining outcomes in terms
of sustainable economic, social
and environmental benefits

Page 115

A. Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law

F. Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

The following pages provide a summary of actions and
behaviours taken by the Council in relation to each of
these seven core principles and associated sub
principles.

B. Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement

D. Determining the
interventions
necessary to optimise
the achievement of the
intended outcomes

E. Developing the
entity’s capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and
the individuals within it

9

Principle A
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule
of law
Supporting Principles:
Behaving with integrity

Demonstrating strong commitment to
ethical values

Respecting the Rule of Law

How we do this:


Page 116







The Council has an Audit and
Governance Committee to promote
high standards of Member conduct.
Elected Members must follow a
Code of Conduct to ensure high
standards in the way they
undertake their duties. The
Monitoring Officer advises
Members on the Code of Conduct.
Officer behaviour is governed by
the Officers’ Code of Conduct. The
Code has been formulated to
provide a set of standards of
conduct expected of employees at
work.
External providers of services
acting on behalf of the Council are
also required to comply with the
Code of Conduct.
These Codes are regularly
reviewed to ensure they are
operating effectively.







Arrangements exist to ensure that
Members and officers are not
influenced by prejudice, bias or
conflicts of interest in dealing with
different stakeholders. These
include:
o Registers of disclosable conflicts
of interests;
o Declarations of disclosable
conflicts of interests and
disclosable other interests at the
start of meetings; and
o Registers of gifts and hospitality.
A corporate complaints procedure
exists to receive and respond to
any complaints received.
Actively seek to deter and prevent
fraud and corruption and ensure
where irregularity is suspected that
it is thoroughly investigated.
The required leadership and staff
‘behaviours’ are embedded into the
performance appraisal process.





The Constitution sets out the
responsibilities of the Council, the
Cabinet, Scrutiny and other
Committees, as well as officers,
including decision making powers.
The Council has a duty to appoint
three of its staff to specific roles,
these being:
-The Head of Paid Service
(Managing Director), who has
overall accountability for the
governance arrangements
operating within the Council.
-The Monitoring Officer who has a
key role in ensuring that decisions
taken by the Council are within the
law and the Council complies with
the provisions of its Constitution.
-The Chief Financial Officer is the
principal financial adviser to the
Council and is responsible for the
proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs and
internal control environment.
10

Principle B
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
Supporting Principles:
Engaging comprehensively with
institutional stakeholders

Openness

Engaging stakeholders effectively,
including individual citizens and
service users

How we do this:

Page 117

 The Gloucester City Council Plan
2017-2020 sets out our key
objectives, actions, projects,
measures and targets.
 Cabinet Member decisions and
significant officer decisions are also
reported on the Council’s website.
 The Council publishes an annual
report on the activity of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.
 Data is published in accordance with
the Local Government Transparency
Code which enables more power to
be placed into citizens’ hands to
increase democratic accountability
and make it easier for local people to
contribute to the local decision
making process and help shape
public services.









Elected Members are
democratically accountable to their
local area and this provides a clear
leadership role in building
sustainable communities.
The Council's planning and
decision-making processes are
designed to include consultation
with stakeholders and the
submission of views by local
people.
Formal Public Consultation
arrangements and public meetings
held to ascertain stakeholder views
prior to developing and
implementing key policy changes.
Developed and implemented
alternative service delivery models
to allow for resources to be used
more efficiently and effectively.

 The long-term vision for the Council is
set out in the 2012 - 2022 vision
statement which is informed by public
consultation.
 Elected Members have the
opportunity to scrutinise decisions that
have been taken by the Members
through the ‘call-in’ mechanism. This
allows an opportunity for further
consideration of the issue before
implemented.
 Have Your Say: If you have ever
wanted to make your views heard, but
simply don’t have the time to attend
public meetings or events, our free
email alerts service will help keep you
connected and updated on the things
that matter to you and will enable you
to have your say on a variety of issues
and topics within Gloucester. Please
sign up here.
 City Life is the Council's digital
newsletter for the residents of
Gloucester. Latest issue is here.
11

Principle C
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environmental benefits
Supporting Principles:
Defining outcomes

Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

How we do this:


Page 118





The Joint Core Strategy (JCS) is a partnership between
Gloucester City Council, Cheltenham Borough Council
and Tewkesbury Borough Council, supported by
Gloucestershire County Council which will set out a
strategic planning framework for the three areas.
Gloucester City Plan: Gloucester is a transforming,
growing and regeneration City. Together with the Joint
Core Strategy (JCS), the Gloucester City Plan (GCP)
will continue Gloucester's regeneration journey by
providing the development framework to guide the City's
future growth up to 2031. It covers a timeframe of 15
years between 2016 and 2031.
A Budget and Medium Term Money Plan, Capital
Programme and annual budget process ensure that
financial resources are directed to the Council’s priorities
and targets. These are reported to and monitored by the
Senior Management Team, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and Cabinet.













Together Gloucester is a savings programme which has
identified efficiency savings across the organisation in a
systematic and considered manner.
The Council aims to ensure that the purchase or
commissioning of goods, services or works required to
deliver services is acquired under Best Value terms.
The Council has developed business continuity plans to
ensure that critical service delivery can be maintained or
recovered during an emergency.
The Council’s decision making process requires
consideration of the ‘sustainability’ i.e. economic, social
and environmental impacts of policies and plans when
taking decisions about service provision.
The Council works with partner organisations where
there are shared objectives and clear economic benefits
from joint working.
Programme and project management arrangements
require consideration of Political, Environmental,
Societal (i.e. increased demand for a service and
demographic changes), technological, legislative,
economic and efficiency issues, risks and opportunities
and value for money.

12

Principle D
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
Supporting Principles:
Determining interventions

Planning interventions

Optimising achievement of intended
outcomes

How we do this:


Page 119




The Council’s decision making
process ensures that decision
makers receive objective and
robust analysis of a variety of
options indicating how the intended
outcomes will be achieved,
providing information on the risks
and opportunities associated with
those options, thus helping to
inform those decisions.
Public consultation is undertaken to
ensure that feedback from citizens
and service users are fully
considered when making decisions
about service improvements /
changes.
The Council has a complaints
procedure to enable our customers
to tell us how we are doing,
whether good or bad, so we can
review what we do and change the
way we work to enable us to deliver
excellent customer service.





The Council has developed annual
Service Plans, Service Level
Agreements, Shared Service
Agreements and contracts with
defined outcomes and a balanced
set of measures and risks to
evaluate performance. These plans
are aligned to the Council Plan,
Joint Core Strategy and City Plan
objectives.
Performance reporting
arrangements are in place
analysing trends and latest budget
position which are monitored at
management and committee
meetings and mitigation strategies
are implemented to manage
current and emerging risks.









The Council has developed and
implemented a Budget and Medium
Term Financial Plan.
The financial plan demonstrates
how the Council’s financial
resources will be deployed over the
next five years to deliver declared
aims and priorities.
The Money Plan sets out the
overall shape of the Council’s
budget by determining the level of
resources that will be available and
how these are currently allocated
between services.
The Council ensures the
achievement of ‘social value’ (i.e. a
way of thinking about how scarce
resources are allocated and used
when awarding a contract) when
commissioning services and
service planning.

13

Principle E
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
Developing the capability of the Council’s leadership and
other individuals

Supporting Principles:
Developing the Council’s capacity



How we do this:


Page 120










The Council participates in relevant benchmarking
exercises and peer reviews to help inform how the
resources are allocated, so that outcomes can be
achieved effectively and efficiently.
Collaborative working and alternative service delivery
models are fully considered as part of the option
appraisal process, when looking to determine how the
Council’s resources are allocated in order to meet our
priorities.
The Council has refreshed its workforce organisational
development plan to align with the Council’s new
structure / operating model.
A Talent Management Programme has been
implemented to support succession planning.
The Council has access to an Occupational Health
Service that offers health assessments, health
screening, health and well-being advice, ill health
retirement advice, rehabilitation advice and advises
managers on health related performance or attendance
issues and an Employee Assistance Programme which
provides staff counselling and advice.
Managers and staff have access to a HR Advice line
and HR Case Team who deal with employee relations
issues.










The Council’s Constitution clearly defines the statutory
and distinctive leadership roles of the Leader of the
Council and the Managing Director, whereby the
Managing Director leads on implementing strategy and
managing the delivery of services and other
requirements set by Members.
A Members Development Programme is in operation,
which supports continued Member development.
The Council’s staff performance appraisal process and
talent assessment / management arrangements are in
place. This provides an opportunity to reflect on how the
individual is performing, what is going well and also
where the individual may need further support or
development as part of their role.
The above includes leadership skills and behaviours as
these behaviours are essential for the delivery of our key
priorities, to continue to support our savings targets, and
form part of our on-going commitment to personal and
professional development.
A training programme specifically for Team Leaders has
been developed and launched with a bespoke training
programme for the Leadership/Management team, being
scoped with a view to launching in September 2018.
Both programmes are 12 months in duration and
supported by action learning sets and coaching. Eight
senior managers are currently being trained to Institute
in Leadership and Management level 5 in coaching, as
an additional developmental support for staff.
14

Principle F
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
Supporting Principles:
Managing Performance

Robust internal control

 City Council Plan 20172020 outlines our
priorities which are built
on four clear priorities i.e.
Growing Gloucester’s
Economy, Working with
our Communities,
Creating Pride in our City
and Improving our
Environment and Strong
Finance and
Performance.
 A business planning
framework is in operation
which sets out our key
priorities/ tasks / targets /
risks for the day job in
order to meet these
priorities.
 Officers hold bi-monthly
performance meetings
with their relevant
Cabinet Portfolio Holder.
 Priorities are monitored
through our performance,
programme and project
management framework
and overseen by, and
reported to the relevant
Committees and Cabinet.

 There is an Internal Audit
(IA) function (100%
compliant with Public
Sector Internal Audit
Standards) which has
provided a satisfactory
independent opinion on
the effectiveness of the
Council’s control
environment comprising,
risk management, control
and governance.
 The Council takes fraud,
corruption and
maladministration very
seriously and has
established policies and
processes which aim to
prevent or deal with such
occurrences. These can
be found within the Anti
Fraud and Corruption
Policy Statement and
Strategy.
 The Audit and
Governance Committee
is responsible for
monitoring and reviewing
the above.

Managing Data

Managing Risk
How we do this:

Page 121

 The Council has a Risk
Management Policy /
Strategy which clearly
defines the roles and
responsibilities for
managing risk,
confirming that risk
management is an
integral part of all our
business activities
including all aspects of
business planning,
option appraisals and
decision making.
 Business Continuity
arrangements are in
place for critical
services to ensure they
can continue to operate
in an emergency.
 The Audit and
Governance Committee
monitor the adequacy
of the risk identification,
monitoring and control
of strategic and
operational risk within
the Council.

 Data is managed in
accordance with the law.
The key information
management and
security policies in place
or being refreshed are:
The Data Protection
Policy, Freedom of
Information Publication
Scheme and Information
Security Incident
Management Policy.
 Information Sharing
protocols are in place
when sharing data with
third parties.
 Policy ownership rests
with the Senior
Information Risk Officer
(SIRO) and the
Information Security
Board Members who are
responsible for agreeing,
monitoring, promoting
and reviewing Policy
implementation.

Strong public financial
management
 Robust budget
management
arrangements are in
place including
monitoring and review by
the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and
Cabinet.
 External Audit review
and report on the
Council’s financial
statements (including this
Annual Governance
Statement), providing an
opinion on the accounts
and concluding on the
arrangements in place
for securing economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness in the use
of resources (the value
for money conclusion).
 The Audit and
Governance Committee
monitor the effectiveness
of the Chief Financial
Officer’s responsibility for
ensuring an adequate
internal / financial control
environment.

15

Principle G
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Supporting Principles:
Implementing good practices in
transparency

Implementing good practices in
reporting

Assurance and effective
accountability

 The published Annual Statement of
Accounts is the statutory summary of the
Council's financial affairs for the financial
year. The purpose of the Annual
Statement of Accounts is to give clear
information on the income and
expenditure of the Council and to
demonstrate the Council's stewardship
of public money for the year.
 The Council publishes an Annual
Governance Statement in order to report
how we have monitored the
effectiveness of our governance
arrangements (self assessed against the
seven key principles set out within our
Code of Corporate Governance) in year
and on any planned changes in the
coming year.
 The Audit and Governance Committee
review and approve the Annual
Statement of Accounts and Annual
Governance Statement.

 Accountability and decision making
arrangements are clearly defined within
the Council’s Constitution. These
accountabilities include arrangements
when delivering services with our key
partners.
 The Audit and Governance Committee
provide independent assurance to the
Council on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the governance
arrangements and internal control
environment operating within the
Council.
 Risk based internal auditing provides
ongoing assurance that the key risks
material to achieving the Council’s
objectives are being managed.
 Peer reviews and benchmarking
undertaken to ascertain good practice
and implement improvements as
identified.

How we do this:

Page 122

 Agendas and minutes of Council,
Cabinet and Committee meetings
including Scrutiny are publicly available
on the Council’s website.
 The Council has a Freedom of
Information Act publication scheme (to
ensure the members of the public have
access to all recorded information held
by the Council.
 Compliance with the Local Government
Data Transparency Code which sets out
the minimum data that the Council
should be publishing, the frequency it
should be published and how it should
be published e.g. expenditure exceeding
£500, grants to voluntary, community
and social enterprise organisations,
senior salaries etc. This makes it easier
for local people to contribute to the local
decision making processes and help to
shape public services.

16

What are the key roles of those responsible for developing and
maintaining the Governance Framework?
The Council

Cabinet
Audit and Governance
Committee

Committees

Page 123

Managing Director (MD)
Senior Management Team
Chief Financial Officer (s151)

Monitoring Officer

- Approves the Council Plan.
- Approves the Constitution (including Standing Orders and Financial Regulations).
- Approves key policies and budgetary framework.
- The main decision-making body of the Council.

- Comprises six Cabinet Members (including the Leader) who have responsibility for particular portfolios.
- Provides independent assurance to The Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance arrangements, risk
management framework and internal control environment.
- Promotes high standards of Member conduct and approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.

- There are four main Committees (excluding the Audit and Governance Committee). The Overview and Scrutiny Committee
scrutinises the Council’s performance. The Planning Committee and Licencing Enforcement Committee oversee relevant
regulatory matters and the General Purposes Committee makes recommendations to Council on a range of matters including
amendments to the Constitution and electoral matters.
- The Managing Director has overall accountability for the governance framework.
- Implements the policy and budgetary framework set by the Council and provides advice to Cabinet and the Council on the
development of future policy and budgetary issues and oversees the implementation of Council policy.
- Accountability for developing and maintaining the Council’s governance, risk and control framework.
- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.
- To advise the Council on ethical issues, standards and powers to ensure The Council operates within the law and statutory Codes
of Practice.
- Overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Confidential Reporting Procedure for Employees. (Whistleblowing)
and contributes to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.

Internal Audit

- Provides independent assurance and annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk
management and control framework.
- Delivers an annual programme of risk based audit activity, including counter fraud and investigation activity.
- Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk.

External Audit

- Audit / review and report on the Council’s financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement), providing an opinion
on the accounts and use of resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources (the value for money conclusion).

Managers

- Responsible for developing, maintaining and implementing the Council’s governance, risk and control framework.
- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.

17

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement
actions from 2016/17?
The Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 contained the following key improvement actions. Details of the issues and how they have been addressed
during the year have been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at their meeting on 22nd January 2018. Please note that where actions are
ongoing they have been carried forward into the 2017/2018 Action Plan.
AGS 2016/17 review
reference

Position as at 31st March 2018

Action

Page 124

AGS Assurance Framework Future Financial Sustainability / Efficiency Savings

Carried forward into the 2017/ 2018 AGS Action Plan

AGS Assurance Framework Governance Arrangements – New Operating Model



Local Government Association – Corporate Peer
Challenge on New Operating Model


General Data Protection

Carried forward into the 2017/ 2018 AGS Action Plan

Data Protection (GDPR)

Implementation Programme in place

Corporate Performance / Risk Management

Carried forward into the 2017/ 2018 AGS Action Plan

Regulation (GDPR) 2016
Director’s Assurance
Statement
AGS Assurance Framework Workforce and Organisational Development Plan

Implementation Programme in place

18

What are the key 2017/18 Governance matters identified?
The review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework has identified the following actions that will need to be addressed during 2018/19,
which includes the carried forward actions from 2016/2017.
Review
Reference
AGS

Future Financial Sustainability / Efficiency Savings

Assurance

The Money Plan sets out the Council’s strategic approach to the management of its finances and presents

Framework

indicative budgets and Council Tax levels for the medium term. It also comments on the significant

Governance matters identified/actions taken

Target
Date
31st March
2019

Lead Officer
Head of
Policy and
Resources

financial risks facing the Council in the forthcoming years and explains what the Council is doing to reduce
those risks. The Money Plan forecasts indicate the need for a continued delivery of savings in each year
of the Plan. In February 2018, Council approved the implementation of the target savings for the Money

Page 125

Plan 2018-23. In addition to savings in previous years, further savings of £1.649m in 2017/18 were
included. With the inclusion of settlement figures for 2018/19 and the assumption of further formula grant
reductions over the life of the plan, further savings will be required.
The financial gap is £0.037m in 2018/19 which rises to £1.108m by 2022/23.
Due to the high levels of further savings required, the Council put in place a transformation programme
called ‘Together Gloucester’ to deliver required efficiencies in line with the Council’s Money Plan. Together
Gloucester was tasked to design organisational transformation while delivering the efficiencies the Council
needs to deliver. Together Gloucester delivered £1.23m of savings in 2017/18. The Council’s challenge is
to continue this journey of transformation to fully implement Together Gloucester and designed outcomes.
Actions: Close monitoring of budgets will be carried out in each financial year. Continuous monitoring of
service pressures and ongoing focus on preventative support.

19

Review
Reference
AGS

Governance matters identified/actions taken
Local Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge

Assurance
Framework

Target
Date
st
31 March
2019

Lead Officer
Managing
Director

Context
Peer challenges are improvement-focused and tailored to meet individual councils’ needs. They are
designed to complement and add value to a council’s own performance and improvement focus. The
peers used their experience and knowledge of local government to reflect on the information presented to
them by people they met, things they saw and material that they read. The team provide feedback as
critical friends, not as assessors, consultants or inspectors. Peers reviewed a range of information to
ensure they were familiar with the council, the challenges it is facing and its plans for the future Progress.

Page 126

Focus and Scope
The peer team considered the following five questions which form the core components looked at by all
Corporate Peer Challenges. These are the areas we believe are critical to councils’ performance and
improvement: (1) Understanding of the local place and priority setting, (2) Leadership of Place,
(3) Financial planning and viability, (4) Organisational leadership and governance and (5) Capacity to
deliver.

In addition, the Council asked the peer team to consider/review/provide feedback on: (1) the Council’s
progress since the 2013 peer challenge; (2) Partnership arrangements; (3) Social benefits from physical
regeneration, (4) Capacity to deliver projects and transformation and (5) Business continuity resilience and
emergency planning capacity.

20

Review
Reference

Governance matters identified/actions taken

Target
Date

Lead Officer

Outcomes
The team were very positive about the progress the Council has made since the last peer challenge in
2013. They told us that there is strong confidence in political and managerial leadership arrangements and
that we have strong financial management. The team recognised the significant level of top quality
regeneration that has been delivered within the City over a sustained period of time and our positive work
with partners in delivering benefits to the community. They were positive about our shared arrangements
with the County Council that deliver value for money and improve our resilience. The team said that the
City Council is regarded as a strong, credible and reliable partner with a focus and ability to deliver on
shared projects. They congratulated the Council on completing the first phase of the Together Gloucester
transformation programme on time and for meeting financial savings targets, but pointed out that we now

Page 127

need to deliver the next phases to include an improved IT platform and the promotion of new forms of
customer access.
Actions
We know that there are areas where we can do better and the team left us with a number of helpful
challenges. We need to put in place a coherent transformation programme and a clearer narrative for our
internal transformation plans. The team challenged us to identify and promote Gloucester’s ‘Unique
Selling Point’ and that we use this consistently for inward investment, tourism, cultural and economic
development regeneration and to establish a stronger identity for Gloucester. The team also urged us to
find effective ways to harness the co-operation, spending power and resources of local, county and
regional partners to shape and deliver Gloucester based solutions which have a beneficial social impact
and make the most of our ‘asset based community development’ approach. We are embracing this
challenge and have responded to the team’s recommendation with an action plan that we will deliver over
the next year.

21

Review
Reference
Revised
CIPFA Audit

Governance matters identified/actions taken

CIPFA Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition)

Target
Date
st
31 March
2019

Lead Officer
Chief Internal
Auditor

Committees: Audit Committees are a key component of corporate governance. They provide a high-level focus on
assurance and the Council’s arrangements for governance, managing risk, maintaining an effective
Practical
Guidance
for Local
Authorities
and Police
(2018
Edition

control environment, and reporting on financial and non-financial performance.
This revised edition updates the core functions of the audit committee in relation to governance, risk
management, internal control and audit. This includes new legislation affecting audit committees in
combined authorities and updates to regulations and statutory guidance. The updates to the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards and Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework and
associated guidance are also considered for their impact on the work of the audit committee.

Page 128

There are significant changes to the core functions of the committee in relation to external audit, reflecting
the new arrangements for auditor appointment and new guidance on ethical standards for auditors issued
by the Financial Reporting Council. Both developments require greater attention to be given to this
important area. The audit committee role in relation to counter-fraud has also been updated to reflect the
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption.

The guidance continues to include a strong focus on the factors that support improvement. These include
the knowledge and skills that audit committee Members require and a focus on where the audit committee
adds value

Action: The Chief Internal Auditor will review the guidance (when published) and will provide support to
the Audit and Governance Committee to enable the evaluation of the Council’s Committee against the
revised guidance, making recommendations for improvement where necessary.

22

Review
Reference
AGS

Corporate Performance / Risk Management

Assurance

The Council Plan details the priorities and strategic objectives of the Authority. Performance and risk

Framework

review and management against the Council Plan is needed to ensure internal and external (e.g.

Governance matters identified/actions taken

Target
Date
30th
September
2019

Lead Officer
Head of
Policy and
Resources

stakeholder) awareness and understanding of the Council’s progress against the objectives and further
action required.
The Council has therefore embarked upon a significant review and refresh of its approach to performance
and risk measurement, management and reporting. Investment has been made in a new Performance
and Risk Management Software system (Pentana Performance) and following the implementation of
Together Gloucester the Council is currently finalising a comprehensive service planning and reporting
process which will map the resources, priorities, projects and programmes, risk, deliverables,

Page 129

interdependencies, milestones and outcomes and establish effective performance management
measures. This revised process involves review at one-to-one level with Heads of Service, strategic
review at Senior Management Team and political review via Portfolio Holders and Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and feeds into individual Personal Performance Plans and reviewed in regular 1:1’s and
Appraisals. Strategic risk management update and reporting is currently in place in line with the Council’s
Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy, however will be further enhanced when fully integrated
into the revised corporate performance management, monitoring and reporting automated process. The
year end performance report will be taken from information on the new performance management system
and will include the Council’s key performance indicators.
Prior to the above process being fully operational, a corporate performance and risk report will be
presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee alongside the financial performance reporting process.
Action: To monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s revised corporate performance / risk management
approach, to ensure that it reflects the needs and the structure of the Council and provides the relevant
performance and risk assurances and supports decision making.

23

Certification
I can confirm that the Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 2016.
Signed:

Jon Topping
Chief Financial Officer (S151 Officer)
31 May 2018

Date:
Page 130

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined above and within the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, have
been effectively operating during the year with the exception of those areas identified on pages 19 – 23 above. We propose over the coming
year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will
address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation
during the year and as part of our next annual review.

Signed:

Date:

Paul James
Leader of the Council

Jon McGinty
Managing Director

31 May 2018

31 May 2018

24

Page 131

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Code of Corporate
Governance
Corporate
2017-2018

1

March 2018

Page 133

Contents
Contents ................................................................................................................................ 2
Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 3
What do we mean by Governance?....................................................................................... 3
Core Principles ...................................................................................................................... 3
Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good
governance. ........................................................................................................................... 4
Appendix B - Gloucester City Council’s Corporate Governance Framework ......................... 8

Page 134

2

Introduction
The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based upon the CIPFA / SOLACE
publication entitled “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016
Edition.”

What do we mean by Governance?
‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’
as comprising the arrangements (including political, economic, social, environmental,
administrative, legal and other arrangements) put in place to ensure that the intended
outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. The Framework also states that to
deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working
for them must aim to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the public interest at all
times.

Core Principles
The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based on seven core principles:A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and

respecting the rule of law;
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental

benefits;
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended

outcomes;
E. Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the

individuals within it;
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public

financial management; and
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability.
The Code specifically identifies the actions and behaviours taken by the Council in relation
to each of these core principles and associated sub principles. The Code, along with its
supporting infrastructure is set out below at Appendix A and is summarised in diagrammatic
form in Appendix B.
The Audit and Governance Committee is currently responsible for approving this Code and
ensuring it is annually reviewed and updated accordingly.
Page 135

3

Council Actions and Behaviours
 Ensure that Members and Officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visible and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting
the reputation of the Council;
 Ensure that Members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the Council and its staff and that they are communicated and
understood. These will build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (The Nolan Principles);
 Lead by example and use the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other actions; and
 Demonstrate, communicate and embed the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which will be reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure they are operating effectively.

Openness

Respecting
the Rule of
Law

Demonstrating
strong
commitment to
ethical values

Sub
Principles

Engaging stakeholders
Engaging
effectively, including
comprehensively
individual citizens and with institutional
service users
stakeholders

(B) Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder
engagement

Page 136

(A) Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
Commitment to ethical values, and respecting the
rule of law

Principle

Behaving with
integrity

Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance.

 Seek to establish, monitor and maintain the Council’s ethical standards and performance;
 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical values and ensure they permeate all aspects of the Council’s culture and operation;
 Develop and maintain robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values; and
 Ensure that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards expected by the
Council.
 Ensure Members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations;
 Create the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders, and Members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and
regulatory provisions;
 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other stakeholders;
 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively; and
 Ensure corruption and misuse of power is dealt with effectively.
 Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the Council’s commitment to openness;
 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption will be for openness. If that is not the case, a
justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential will be provided;
 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to stakeholders and will be explicit about the criteria, rationale and
considerations used. In due course, the Council will ensure that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear; and
 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective interventions / courses of action.
 Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that
outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably;
 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively; and
 Ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a shared commitment to change, a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners and that the added value of
partnership working is explicit.
 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the Council will meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service users and other
stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes;
 Ensure that communication methods are effective and that Members and Officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement;
 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds including reference to
future needs;
 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been taken into account;
 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity; and
 Take account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service users.

4

Sub
Principles

Council Actions and Behaviours

Defining
outcomes

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the Council’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provides
the basis for the Council’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions;
 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year or longer;
 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available;
 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes; and
 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best use of the resources available.

Sustainable
Optimising
Determining economic, social
achievement of Planning interventions interventions
and environmental
intended outcomes
benefits

Page 137

(D) Determining the interventions necessary to optimise
the achievement of the intended outcomes

( C) Defining outcomes in terms of
sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

Principle

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions about service provision;
 Take a longer term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the Council’s intended
outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints;
 Determine the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental benefits, through
consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs; and
 Ensure fair access to services.
 Ensure decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and including the risks
associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided; and
 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer required in order to prioritise
competing demands within limited resources available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts.






Establish and implement robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets;
Engage with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered;
Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including shared risks;
Ensure arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to changing circumstances;
Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and projects is to be
measured;
 Ensure capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly;
 Prepare budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan; and
 Inform medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.
 Ensure the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints;
 Ensure the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the medium and longer term;
 Ensure the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the external environment that
may arise during the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage; and
 Ensure the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning. The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional
benefit to the community…over and above the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”.

5

Managing
Performance

Managing
Risk

Developing the capability of the Council’s
leadership and other individuals

Developing
the
Council’s
capacity

Sub
Principles

Robust internal
control

(F) Managing risks and performance through
robust internal control and strong public
financial management

Page 138

(E) Developing the Council’s capacity, including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Principle

Council Actions and Behaviours
 Review operations, performance use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness;
 Improve resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how the Council’s resources are
allocated so that outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently;
 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved; and
 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.
 Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared
understanding of roles and objectives is maintained;
 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body;
 Ensure the Leader and the Managing Director have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the Managing Director leads the Council in
implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by Members and each provides a check and a balance for each other’s authority;
 Develop the capabilities of Members and senior management to achieve effective shared leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to changing
legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental changes and risks by:
 ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development matching individual and
organisational requirements is available and encouraged;
 ensuring Members and Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able
to update their knowledge on a continuing basis; and
 ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and
external.
 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage public participation;
 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensure leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections;
 Hold staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs; and
 Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.
 Recognise that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making;
 Implement robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensure that they are working effectively; and
 Ensure that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated.
 Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post implementation review;
 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the Council’s financial, social and environmental
position and outlook;
 Ensure an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during and after
decisions are made thereby enhancing the Council’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible;
 Provide Members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement; and
 Ensure there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).
 Align the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives;
 Evaluate and monitor the Council’s risk management and internal control arrangements on a regular basis;
 Ensure effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place;
 Ensure additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor;
 Ensure an Audit and Governance Committee which is independent of the executive and accountable to the Council:
 provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment; and
 that its recommendations are listened to and acted upon.

6

Managing Data

Sub
Principles

Implementing
Assurance
Implementing good
Strong public
good practice
and effective
practices in
financial
in
accountability
reporting
management
transparency

Page 139

(G) Implementing good practices in transparency,
reporting and audit to deliver effective
accountability

(F) Managing risks and performance
through robust internal control
and strong public financial
management

Principle

Council Actions and Behaviours
 Ensure effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data;

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies; and
 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring;

 Ensure financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance; and
 Ensure well –developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls.
 Write and communicate reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended audience ensuring that they
are easy to access and interrogate; and
 Strike a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide
and for users to understand.
 Report at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable way;
 Ensure Members and senior management own the results;
 Ensure robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publish the results on this assessment
including an action plan for improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (Annual Governance Statement);
 Ensure that the Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate; and
 Ensure the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison
with other similar organisations.
 Ensure that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon;
 Ensure an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place which provides assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that
recommendations are acted upon;
 Welcome peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implement recommendations;
 Gain assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and evidence this in the annual governance statement; and
 Ensure that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and that the need for wider public accountability has been recognised and met.

7

Appendix B - Gloucester City Council’s Corporate Governance Framework
3

Core
Principles

‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’ as comprising the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and
achieved. The framework also states that to deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working for them must try to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the
public interest at all times.
(A) Behaving with
integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values, and respecting
the rule of law

(B) Ensuring openness
and comprehensive
stakeholder
engagement

(C) Defining outcomes in
terms of sustainable
economic, social, and
environmental benefits

(D) Determining the
interventions
necessary to optimise
the achievement of the
intended outcomes

(E) Developing the Council’s
capacity, including the
capability of its
leadership and the
individuals within it

(F) Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

(G) Implementing good
practices in
transparency,
reporting, and audit to
deliver effective
accountability

The Constitution

The Gloucester City Council
Plan 2017-2020
Decision Making Protocols

Cabinet Reports

Consultation Planning and
Implementation Protocol
Budget Consultation

The Constitution

The Constitution

Member Development Working
Group / Framework
Member Induction Programme

Audit and Governance
Committee
Scrutiny Framework

Audit and Governance
Committee
Scrutiny Framework

Workforce and Organisational
Development Strategy
Leadership Performance
Management and Leadership
Development Programme

Standing Orders /Financial
Regulations
External audit of accounts
and value for money opinion
/ Statement of Accounts /
Medium Term Financial Plan
Risk Management Policy /
Strategy / Toolkit

External audit of accounts
and value for money opinion
Annual Statement of
Accounts

Schemes of Delegation /
Decision making protocols
Audit and Governance
Committee

Page 140

Evidence of Good Governance

Scrutiny Framework

Council website records all
council meetings and key
decisions
Scrutiny Annual Report

The Gloucester City Council
Plan 2017-2020
Scrutiny Framework

Stakeholder Engagement

Decision Making Protocols

Option Appraisals

Decision Making Protocols

Contract Standing Orders /
Financial Regulations

Public Meetings

Cultural Vision and Strategy
2016-2026

The Gloucester City Council
Plan 2017-2020

Statutory Officers Roles
Managing Director, Chief
Financial Officer/Monitoring
Officer / Legal Services
Members and Officers
Codes of Conduct

Public Consultations

Option Appraisals

Money Plan

Staff Performance
Development Review / Talent
Management

Annual Statement of
Accounts and Annual
Governance Statement
published
Joint Core Strategy

Regeneration and Economic
Development Strategy 20162021

Decision Making Protocols

LGA Corporate Peer Challenge

Information Governance

Chief Internal Auditors
Annual Opinion / Report

Service Level / Outcome
Agreements

Strategic Plans

Benchmarking

Strategic Risk Register /
Operational Risk Registers

Internal Audit Service

Strategic performance,
financial and risk reporting
framework
Open Data and
Transparency Code
Customer feedback /
Complaints, Comments,
Compliments Procedure
FOI Publication Scheme

Service Plans

Risk Management Policy /
Strategy

Internally led reviews /
independent challenge

Risk Based Internal Auditing
Service / planning

Risk Management Policy /
Strategy
Social Value Considerations

Alternative Service Delivery
Models
Strategic performance,
financial and risk reporting
framework
Service Plans

Alternative Service Delivery
Models
Shared Services Programme

Chief Internal Auditors
Annual Opinion / Report
Strategic performance,
financial and risk reporting
framework
Anti-fraud and Corruption
Policy / Strategy

Strategic performance,
financial and risk reporting
framework
Open Data and
Transparency Code
Website

Public Consultations

Safety, Health and Wellbeing

Members / Officers Register
of Interests / Register of
Gifts and Hospitality
Protocol for Member Officer
Relations
Anti-fraud and Corruption
Policy and Strategy
Anti-Bribery and Anti Money
Laundering Policies
Whistleblowing Policy

Risk Management Policy /
Strategy
Procurement Strategy /
Guidance

City Plan

Strategic performance,
financial and risk reporting
framework
Environmental Information
Regulations (EIR)

Continuing Professional
Development Programmes

Periodic staff surveys

Anti Bribery Policy / Anti
Money Laundering Policy
Emergency Planning /
Business Continuity
Management

Annual Governance
Statement / Assurance
Framework

FOI Publication Scheme

Complaints, Comments and
Compliments procedure

8

Code of Corporate
Governance
2017 - 2018
March 2018

Page 141

9

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 – Assurance Map
Policy and Resources Assurance Statements – Summary

Jon McGinty

Corporate Director

Jonathan Lund

Head of Policy and Resources

Jon Topping

Seven Core Governance Principles

Page 143

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to
respecting the rule of law.
b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and
comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes.
e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.
f.

My service area manages risk and performance through robust
internal control, strong public financial management, and
managing data appropriately.

g. My service area has implemented good practice in
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability.

Fully compliant
Partially compliant
Not compliant

Policy and Governance

Managing Director

Key

Finance

Paul James

Property
Commissioning

Leader of the Council

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 – Assurance Map
Cultural and Trading Services Assurance Statements – Summary
Key

Managing Director

Jon McGinty

Partially compliant

Corporate Director

Jonathan Lund

Not compliant

Head of Cultural and Trading Services

Jill Riggs

Seven Core Governance Principles

Page 144

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to
respecting the rule of law.
b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and
comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes.
e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.
f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust
internal control, strong public financial management, and
managing data appropriately.
g. My service area has implemented good practice in transparency,
reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability.

Cultural Development

Fully compliant

Visitor Experience

Paul James

Bereavement Services

Leader of the Council

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 – Assurance Map
Communities Assurance Statements – Summary
Key

Managing Director

Jon McGinty

Partially compliant

Corporate Director

Anne Brinkhoff

Not compliant

Head of Communities

Lloyd Griffiths

Seven Core Governance Principles

Page 145

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to
respecting the rule of law.
b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and
comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes.
e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.
f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust
internal control, strong public financial management, and
managing data appropriately.
g. My service area has implemented good practice in
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability.

Customer Service
Transformation

Fully compliant

Housing

Paul James

Community Wellbeing

Leader of the Council

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 – Assurance Map
Place Assurance Statements – Summary
Key
Fully compliant

Managing Director

Jon McGinty

Partially compliant

Corporate Director

Anne Brinkhoff

Not compliant

Head of Place

Ian Edwards

Seven Core Governance Principles

Page 146

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to
respecting the rule of law.
b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and
comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable
economic, social and environmental benefits.
d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes.
e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it.
f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust
internal control, strong public financial management, and
managing data appropriately.
g. My service area has implemented good practice in
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability.

City Improvement and
Environment

Paul James

City Growth and
Delivery

Leader of the Council

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 – Assurance Map
Legal Assurance Statements – summary
Leader of the Council

Paul James

Managing Director

Jon McGinty

Corporate Director

Jonathan Lund

Head of Legal

Shirin Wotherspoon

Head of Legal
During the course of the year, Council Solicitor – One Legal lead Officer confirmed they were satisfied that the governance arrangement were operating effectively
within One Legal and there are no significant governance issues to report.

Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Meeting:

Cabinet
Audit and Governance Committee

Subject:

Treasury Management Update – Annual Report 2017/18

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Finance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

13 June 2018
23 July 2018

No
Tel: 396242

1. Prudential and Treasury Indicators
2. Interest rate forecasts

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2017/18. This report meets the requirements
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the Code), and the
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, (the Prudential
Code.

1.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore,
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury
activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved
by members.

1.3

This report will highlight issues specific to the Council and also highlight interest rate
forecasts as provided by the Council’s treasury advisors Capita Asset Services.

1.4

The body of the report provides an overview of the Councils performance for
2017/18;



Appendix 1 highlights the key performance indicators in line with the
Councils Treasury Management Strategy.
Appendix 2 Interest Rate Forecast.

Page 149

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Audit and Governance Committee is asked, subject to any recommendations it
wishes to make to Cabinet, to note the contents of the report.

2.2

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the contents of the report be noted.

3.0

Annual Investment Strategy
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2017/18, which includes
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 23rd March 2017.
It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being:


Security of capital;



Liquidity; and



Yield

3.1

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic
climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash
flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months, with
highly credit rated financial institutions, using our suggested creditworthiness
approach, including a minimum sovereign credit rating, and Credit Default Swap
(CDS) overlay information.

3.2

Investment rates available in the market were broadly stable during the year
continuing at historically low levels as a result of the ultra-low Bank Rate. The
Council maintained an average balance of £7.4M internally managed funds. The
comparable performance indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, which was
0.20%. The Council investment funds were available on a temporary basis, and the
level of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments,
receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme. The Council does not
hold cash balances for investment purposes (i.e. funds available for more than one
month).
Investment performance for the financial year 2016/2017
Benchmark

Benchmark Return

Council Performance

Investment Interest Earned

7 day

0.20

0.35

£14k

3 month

0.32

N/A

N/A

As illustrated, the Council outperformed the benchmark by 0.14 bps.

Page 150

4.0

New Borrowing

4.1

As depicted in the graph and table below, PWLB 25 and 50 year rates have been
volatile during the year with little consistent trend. However, shorter rates were on a
rising trend during the second half of the year and reached peaks in February /
March

4.2

No long term borrowing was undertaken during the period.

4.3

PWLB certainty rates, for the financial year to the 31st March 2017

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

25 Year

50 Year

1/4/17

0.85%

1.25%

1.93%

2.62%

2.37%

31/3/18

1.67%

2.05%

2.43%

2.77%

2.49%

Low

0.80%

1.14%

1.78%

2.52%

2.25%

Date

03/05/2017

15/06/2017

15/06/2017

08/09/2017

08/09/2017

High

1.51%

2.01%

2.53%

2.93%

2.64%

Date

21/03/2018

15/02/2018

15/02/2018

15/02/2018

15/02/2018

1.11%

1.50%

2.08%

2.69%

2.41%

Average

Page 151

4.4

Borrowing in advance of need.
The Council has not borrowed in advance of need during the period ended 31st
March 2018.

5.0

Debt Rescheduling

5.1

During the year ended 31st March 2018, no debt rescheduling was undertaken.

6.0

Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits

6.1

It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the
affordable borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the approved TMSS.

6.2

During the financial year the Council has operated within the treasury limits set out
in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and in compliance with
the Council's Treasury Management Practices. The Council debt profile is currently
structured on short term borrowing. The Council is able to benefit from reduced
costs associated with short term borrowing compared to longer term rates while
operating within the Councils borrowing requirements, this strategy will continue to
be reviewed in line with market expectations. The prudential and treasury
Indicators are shown within appendix 1.

Page 152

7.0

Other

7.1

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy,
(CIPFA), issued a revised Treasury Management Code and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes, and a revised Prudential Code.
A particular focus of these revised codes was how to deal with local authority
investments which are not treasury type investments e.g. by investing in purchasing
property in order to generate income for the Authority at a much higher level than
can be attained by treasury investments. One recommendation was that local
authorities should produce a new report to members to give a high level summary
of the overall capital strategy and to enable members to see how the cash
resources of the Authority have been apportioned between treasury and nontreasury investments. Officers will report to members when the implications of these
new codes have been assessed as to the likely impact on this Authority.

7.2

The EU set the date of 3 January 2018 for the introduction of regulations under
MIFID II. These regulations govern the relationship that financial institutions
conducting lending and borrowing transactions will have with local authorities from
that date. This has had little effect on this Authority apart from having to fill in forms
sent by each institution dealing with this Authority and for each type of investment
instrument we use, apart from for cash deposits with banks and building societies.

7.3

The Council continued to maintain an under-borrowed position in 2017/18.

7.4

This under-borrowing reflects that the Council resources such as reserves and
provisions will have reduced debt rather than be externally invested. This strategy is
sensible, at this point in time, for two reasons. Firstly, there is no differential
between the marginal borrowing rate and investment rate so there is nothing to be
gained by investing Council resources externally. Secondly, by using the resources
to reduce debt the Council will reduce exposure to investment counterparty risk.

7.5

The Council will continue to monitor its approach to under borrowing in light of
market movement and future events.

7.6

The Council has utilised short term borrowing in 2017/18 as part of its overall
borrowing strategy, this policy has allowed the Council to benefit from lower interest
rates available over the short term, reducing borrowing costs significantly in the
short term. Over our current 2017/18 borrowing requirement, the Council has been
able to obtain short term borrowing at 0.5 to 0.95% compared to current long term
rates at 2.43% for 10 years.

7.7

The Council will continue to monitor its approach to short term borrowing in
accordance with our treasury advisor forecasts and future Council events which
impact on the Council borrowing requirement.

8.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

8.1

This report notes the treasury management performance of the Council. There are
no anticipated ABCD implications from this report.
Page 153

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

Contained in the report
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

There are no legal implications from this report
(Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

11.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

11.1

There are no specific risks or opportunities as a result of this report

12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

12.1

A PIA screening assessment has been undertaken and the impact is neutral. A full
PIA is not required.

13.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

13.1

None
Sustainability

13.2

None
Staffing & Trade Union

13.3 None

Page 154

Appendix 1
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 31st March 2018
2017/18 Budget
£’000

Annual (Apr-Mar)
Actual
£’000

Authorised limit for external debt

£40M

£40M

Operational boundary for external debt

£35M

£35M

Gross external debt

£35M

£17.65M

N/A

£0M

£35M

£17.65M

Under 12 months

0% - 100%

71.43%

12 months to 2 years

0% - 100%

0%

2 years to 5 years

0% - 100%

0%

5 years to 10 years

0% - 100%

0%

10 years to 20 years

0% - 100%

0%

20 years to 30 years

0% - 100%

28.57%

30 years to 40 years

0% - 100%

0%

40 years to 50 years

0% - 100%

0%

Upper limit of fixed interest rates based on net debt

100%

71.43%

Upper limit of variable interest rates based on net
debt

100%

28.57.%

Treasury Indicators

Investments
Net borrowing

Maturity structure of fixed and variable rate
borrowing - upper and lower limits

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2
INTEREST RATES FORECASTS
The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following
forecast:

At its November quarterly Inflation Report meeting, the MPC gave forward guidance that
they expected to increase Bank Rate only twice more in the next three years to reach 1.0%
by 2020. This was a very relaxed rate of increase in Bank Rate in line with previous
statements that Bank Rate would only go up very gradually and to a limited extent.
The February quarterly Inflation Report included a marginal improvement in terms of GDP
growth over the previous quarterly forecasts. Forecasts for GDP growth were upped from
1.6% in 2018 and 1.7% in 2019 and 2020, to 1.8% for all three years. The MPC has
therefore taken on board the fact that growth in the UK economy in 2017 was better than
had been expected at 1.8% and also that it had been on an upward trend during the second
half of the year. In addition, strong world growth and, in particular, strong economic growth
in our major export market, the EU, has stimulated UK growth in 2017 and will be a positive
influence in 2018.
The forecasts for inflation were revised to be still above the inflation target of 2% in three
years’ time at 2.2%; this was despite the forecasting model being based on including one
extra rise in Bank Rate over this period than had been included in the Bank’s previous
quarterly forecast. The MPC also highlighted a change in their attitude to place more
importance on achieving the 2% target within the 18 - 24 months’ time horizon
whereas previously they had been more prepared to look at the three year time horizon.
This implies that the MPC are on guard to raise rates “earlier and greater than anticipated”.

Page 157

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Date:

23rd July 2018

Meeting:

Audit and Governance Committee

Subject:

Internal Audit / External Audit Working Protocol

Report Of:

Head of Policy and Resources
Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor)

Wards Affected:

Not applicable

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Theresa Mortimer - Head of Audit Risk Assurance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email:
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No

Tel: 01452 396338

1: Internal Audit / External Audit Working Protocol

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

Gloucester City Council faces ever-increasing pressure on their resources. External
and internal auditors can assure management and the Audit and Governance
Committee that audit resources are being applied efficiently and represent good
value for money by demonstrating their commitment to work together effectively.
This protocol sets out the arrangements to support that commitment.

1.2

The objectives of this protocol are to:
 provide a framework for cooperation in planning and conducting respective
audit work;
 maximise the benefit from available audit resources, through agreed
coordination arrangements; and
 assist the Audit and Governance Committee to fulfil its responsibility for
overseeing effective liaison between both external and internal audit.

1.3

To achieve these objectives, the auditors need to work together effectively with
clear communication throughout the year. This document reflects the commitment
to promote productive joint working between audit teams.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

Audit and Governance Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
 the Internal Audit / External Audit Protocol as set out in Appendix 1, be
approved.

3.0

Background and Key Issues
1
Page 159

What is the difference between Internal and External Audit?
3.1

External Audit is governed by the Code of Audit Practice determined by the National
Audit Office. The work essentially forms two elements: (a) an independent opinion
on the financial statements, and (b) a value for money conclusion focusing on the
Council’s arrangements to take properly informed decisions and deploy resources
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

3.2

Whereas internal auditors are required to adhere to the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) 2017. Internal audit’s scope of work is wide ranging and it
serves the Council by helping it accomplish its objectives and improving operations,
risk management, internal controls and governance processes. Internal Audit is
concerned with all aspects of the organisation, both financial and non-financial and
the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide an annual opinion on the
effectiveness of those arrangements.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of the recommendation made in this
report.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

There are no alternative options that are relevant to this matter.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendation

6.1

Internal and external auditors, along with senior management are a critical part of
the governance arrangements of the Council, their work significantly contributing to
the statutory Annual Governance Statement.

6.2

The work of the internal and external auditors within the Council is co-ordinated for
optimal effectiveness and efficiency and the External Auditor will meet periodically
with the Chief Internal Auditor to discuss emerging issues and to avoid, where
possible, disruption to the business and duplication of activity.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

The protocol will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect changes to internal
audit standards, international standard on auditing and codes of practice and
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee accordingly.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

There are no direct financial costs arising out of this report.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report).

9.0

Legal Implications
2
Page 160

9.1

Nothing specific arising from the report recommendations.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report).

10.0

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications
 Not sharing good practice;
 Duplication of audit activity; and
 Inefficient use of audit resources.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

There are no ‘Community Safety’ implications arising out of the recommendations in
this report.
Sustainability

12.2

There are no ‘Sustainability’ implications arising out of the recommendations in this
report.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

There are no ‘Staffing and Trade Union’ implications arising out of the
recommendations in this report.

Background Documents:





Appendix 1: Internal Audit / External Audit Working Protocol
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017
International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 610
National Audit Office – Code of Practice

3
Page 161

This page is intentionally left blank

Internal Audit – External Audit Working Protocol
for Gloucester City Council
Page 163

June 2018

Ian Howse
Partner
T +44 (0)2920 264 319
E ihowse@deloitte.co.uk

Jon Topping
Head of Policy and Resources
T +44 (0)1452 396242
E jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk

Theresa Mortimer
Head of Audit, Risk, Assurance (ARA), Gloucestershire County Council’s Area
Finance Officers Team, and Insurance Services
T +44 (0)1452 396338
E theresa.mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk

© 2018 Deloitte LLP

Introduction and Principles

Introduction
The protocol sets out the key principles and procedures underpinning the
working relationship between Internal Audit and the Council's external
auditors, Deloitte. It establishes a framework for coordination,
cooperation and exchange of information.

Page 164

The protocol is based on the understanding of International Standards on
Auditing (ISA), in particular ISA 315 (identifying and assessing risks of
material misstatement through understanding the entity and its
environment) and ISA 610 (using the work of internal auditors).

© 2018 Deloitte LLP

Principles
ISA 315 states the internal audit function is likely to be relevant to the
audit of the financial statements if the nature of their work relates to the
entity's financial reporting.
ISA 610 recognises external audit and internal audit have different
objectives and priorities. The external auditor has the sole responsibility
for the opinion on the financial statements and using the work of internal
audit does not impact on this responsibility in any way. Therefore the
external auditor needs to consider how and whether it is appropriate to
place reliance on the work of internal audit.

2

Procedures

Together Internal Audit and Deloitte will:
•

Meet on a quarterly basis to share and discuss audit plans, update
and review issues identified through on-going or planned work, review
progress and exchange key findings. Such discussions will inform
Deloitte's and Internal Audit's audit approach.

Page 165

•

Liaise to identify and exchange knowledge of emerging or identified
key risk areas.

•

Use quarterly meetings to ensure reporting lines to the Audit and
Governance Committee are clear and information provided is clear
and timely.

Internal Audit will:

Deloitte will:
•

Advise Internal Audit which of the financial systems we consider are
key to the production on the financial statements.

•

Share testing strategies with Internal Audit on a timely basis to
maximise the scope to ensure effective and efficient use of resources
for both parties.

•

Share details of our approach as requested.

Way Forward

•

Provide details to Deloitte of fraud above £10,000 and details of any
identified or potential cases of corruption.

This protocol has been discussed and agreed with Gloucester City
Council’s Chief Internal Auditor.

•

Provide Deloitte with appropriate access to working papers and
relevant documents, and with electronic access to published internal
audit reports on key financial systems which may impact upon on the
audit approach.

The protocol will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect changes to
internal audit standards and the ISAs.

•

Share its approach to systems audit work and associated
documentation with Deloitte.

© 2018 Deloitte LLP

3

Page 166
“Deloitte” is the brand under which tens of thousands of dedicated professionals in independent firms throughout the world collaborate to provide audit,
consulting, financial advisory, risk management, tax, and related services to select clients. These firms are members of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited,
a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL”). Each DTTL member firm provides services in particular geographic areas and is subject to the laws
and professional regulations of the particular country or countries in which it operates.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NWE LLP, a member firm of DTTL. Deloitte NWE LLP does not provide services to clients.
© 2018 Deloitte LLP

4

Agenda Item 12

Date:

23rd July 2018

Meeting:

Audit and Governance

Subject:

Benefit Accuracy Rates Update

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance & Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Alison Bell, Intelligent Client Officer (Revenues and Benefits)

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: Alison.Bell@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396401

None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To update and provide a review to Audit and Governance on the accuracy rate of
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support assessments and the impact upon
customers.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Audit and Governance is asked to RESOLVE that the Housing Benefit accuracy
rate as outlined in this report be noted.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

Civica UK Ltd is responsible for administering housing benefit and council tax
support on behalf of the Council. The Council are required to monitor the work
carried out by Civica and undertake at least 10% quality assurance reviews under
the contracting out regulations.

3.2

The checking of 10% of decisions made is a contractual requirement and is part of
The Contracting Out (Functions of local Authorities: Income-Related benefits) Order
2002.

3.3

Following the departure of the Contract Technician in January 2017, the
responsibility for checks was passed to the Intelligent Client Officer for Revenues
and Benefits. It was decided that due to the level of decisions made, and number to
be checked, Civica (Hull) would perform the quality assurance checks on the
Gloucester caseload for 6 months from June 2017 under a temporary contract.

3.4

These checks have been monitored since implementation by the Intelligent Client
Officer and it was agreed to extend the contract for a further 6 months to ensure a
full 10% check was completed on the financial year’s decisions for 2017/18.
Page 167
1

3.5

The first 3 months of 2017/18 (April – June) were not subject to a 10% check while
revised arrangements were put in place. However Civica (Hull) were instructed to
perform increased checks at 13.5% between July 2017 – March 2018 to ensure the
contractual obligations were met and the Local Authority (LA) Error rates were kept
to a minimum. This is in line with the requirements at paragraph 3.2 above

3.6

The Local Authority (LA) error and admin delay overpayment rate is determined by
thresholds set by the DWP; these thresholds are expressed as a percentage of total
correct payments. The thresholds are:



Lower threshold 0.48%
Upper threshold 0.54%
DWP fully fund benefit that has been overpaid due to LA error and delay up to the
lower threshold and at 40% between the lower and upper threshold. 100% of
subsidy is lost if the LA Error rate falls above the upper threshold.

3.7

2017/18 has been a strong year for housing benefit and council tax support
decisions and the financial error rate of the quality assurance checks continues to
fall.

3.8

Despite the impact of projects and the implementation of Universal Credit over the
last 12 months the financial errors made is at a significantly lower level.

3.9

The table below shows the financial error rates from 2015/16 to 2017/18:
Year

3.10

Total
number of
decisions
made

Total
number of
decisions
checked

2015/16

56750

6180

% of
checks
made by
client/3rd
party
10.89

Number of
financial
errors

%
Financial
error rate

2016/17

54728

4631

8.46

403

8.70%

2017/18

45740

3903

8.53

252

6.46%

823

13.32%

The accuracy level continues to be discussed at monthly operational board
meetings with Civica and monitored closely; the team continue to work hard to keep
the level of financial errors in their work to a minimum, despite its level being
outside of contract.

Details of further work to improve performance
3.11

The Department of Work and Pensions Fraud and error work has been more
abundant in recent years and more initiatives have been taken up since the last
report.

3.12

The Wider Use of Real Time Information (WURTI) replaced the Real Time
Information (RTI) project in July 2017 and continues to be processed by the team.
The expectation that this replacement would further improve the accuracy of
Housing and Council Tax Support assessments in the future is seen in this report to
be accurate.
Page 168
2

3.13

The Right Benefit Initiative 2017/18 was also taken up by the department which has
replaced the previous Fraud and Error Initiative Scheme (FERIS). This scheme is
focused on earnings cases which includes occupational/non-state pensions. In
essence of the above, this initiative is also due to be replaced with a new scheme of
Verified Earnings and Pensions Service (VEP) notifications which are due to start
June 2018.

3.14

Universal Credit’s full service has now landed in Gloucester from February 2018
which also provides the department with real-time income changes so Local Council
Tax Support claims will remain up to date. The impact on the caseload remains to
be seen as we are in the early stages of implementation. However, this will be
reflected in the report for next year.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

This report has been reviewed and there is no Asset Based Community
Development implications connected with this.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

There are no alternatives to consider in this case

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

To update Audit and Governance of the current performance

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

These are covered in the body of the report.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

Financial Services have been consulted on the preparation of this report. Details
are in the body of the report.

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

This is not applicable as is for information only.

10.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

Risk to reputation and lack of transparency

10.2

Analyse current performance and ensure that action continues to be taken to
maintain improvements.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

This is not applicable as the contents of this report are for information only.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Page 169
3

12.1

None

Page 170
4

Agenda Item 13

Meeting:

Audit and Governance Committee

Subject:

AMEY Street Care Contract Update

Report Of:

Jonathan Lund – Corporate Director

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jonathan Lund – Corporate Director

Date:

23rd July 2018

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jonathan.lund@gloucester.gov.uk

No

Tel: 396276

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide an update on matters related to the Street Scene Contract.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1.1 Audit and Governance Committee is asked to:
RESOLVE to receive and note the report.
3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

Councillors will be aware that the year-end financial monitoring reports showed a
significant variance between forecast and actual budgets for the Environment
Portfolio. The cause of the variance was the year-end outturn income for recycling.

3.2

The actual income generated in 2017/18 was £446,019 generated from the sale of
7134 tonnes of recyclate. The previous quarter Amey had forecast a year end
income at £699,000 as a worst case scenario with a best case scenario at
£796,224.

3.3

The Council challenged Amey on the year end out-turn. Records provided by Amey
showed that 9209 tonnes of recycling had been collected from residents of
Gloucester and taken over the weighbridge at Eastern Avenue. We asked Amey to
account for the difference of 2075 tonnes.

3.4

The Council’s case was that if Amey had secured industry average recycling prices
over 2017/18 the income received for the 7134 tonnes sold would have been
£50,521 higher than reported.

3.5

We also contended that the 2075 tonnes of waste unaccounted for had an industry
average value of £246,509. The Council therefore withheld payments to Amey
totalling £297,031.
1
Page 171

3.6

Early accounts from Amey failed either to recognise or account for the gap. They
indicated that some of the difference may be due to weighbridge discrepancies.

3.7

At another meeting Amey shared the figures attached at Appendix A to this report.
The table at the left of the Appendix shows the figures provided by Amey, the table
on the right is the same figures properly tabulated. Councillors will clearly see
significant inconsistencies. The document raised more questions than it answered
and was subsequently described by Amey as illustrative only.

3.8

At the latest meeting Amey provided the following account
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Recycling Waste in
Recycling sold
Co-mingled waste
Contaminated Waste
Rejected by Off-takers
Sold but not invoices
Stock in hand
Total out

9209
7134
723
697
292
93
255
9194

3.9

At line 3 above the Council has received £45,190 in compensation for this comingled waste. This was approved by the Council in January and March 2018 to
speed the catch-up process following bad weather disruption. The waste was sent
for mechanical sorting and recycling.

3.10

At lines 4 and 5 it shows that 989 tonnes of recycling was so contaminated that it
was rendered worthless. This represents nearly 11% of the total recycling collected
and is disturbingly high for a kerbside sort scheme. In Cheltenham and Cotswold
their kerbside sort maintains 0% contamination and at Tewkesbury a co-mingled
service achieves 5% contamination.

3.11

At line 7 there is a stock in hand figure of 255 tonnes but the account fails to show
any stock at the start of the year. We know this to be inaccurate. As a consequence
of the above the Council continues to withhold payment to Amey. In addition, there
is a risk that the County Council, which has paid recycling credits for 9209 tonnes of
recycling, will seek repayment in respect of the recycling sent to landfill. This sum is
in the region of £40,500. Amey has indicated that by withholding payment the
Council may be in breach of contract.

3.12

At Council on 12 July 2018 the details set out above were reported and it was noted
that action is being taken to consider whether grounds exist to terminate the
contract with Amey. The results will be reported back to the Cabinet. Council also
agreed to explore other avenues for delivering the Council’s waste and street scene
services.

2
Page 172

Page 173

This page is intentionally left blank

Gloucester City Council
Audit and Governance Work Programme 2017-2018
(Updated 11 July 2018)
Item
23 July 2018
1. Audit and Governance Committee
Action Plan
2. Statement of Accounts

Format

Lead Officer

Comments

--------------

Written report

Audit and Gov

Head of Policy and
Resources

3. KPMG External Audit Report
2017/2018 (ISA 260 Report to
those charged with governance)
4. Annual Governance Statement
2017/18

Written Report

Audit and Gov

KPMG

Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

Written Report

Audit and Gov

Head of IA&RM Shared
Service

Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

5. Treasury Management Six
Monthly Update 2017/18

Written Report

Audit and Gov

Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

6. Internal Audit/External Audit Joint
Working Protocol
7. Benefit Accuracy Report

Written Report

Audit and Gov

Written Report

Audit and Gov

8. Amey Street Scene Contract
9. Internal Audit Annual Activity
Report

Verbal Update
Written Report

Audit and Gov
Audit and Gov

Head of Policy and
Resources/Accountancy
Manager
Head of IA&RM Shared
Service
Head of Policy and
Resources
Corporate Director
Head of IA&RM Shared
Service

Page 175

--------------

Standing agenda item requested by the
Committee
Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

Requested
Requested by Committee

Agenda Item 14

10. Audit and Governance Committee
Work Programme
17 September 2018
1. Audit and Governance Committee
Action Plan
2. Strategic Risk Register Update

Timetable

Committees

Requested
Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

Timetable

--------------

---------------

Standing Agenda Item

Timetable

-------------

------------

Audit and Gov

Head of IA&RM Shared
Service

Standing agenda item requested by the
Committee
Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

Written Report

3. Business Rates Pooling Annual
Report
4. Local Government Ombudsman,
annual standards and complaints
monitoring report
5. Audit and Governance Committee
Work Programme

Written Report

Audit and Gov

Written Report
Timetable

Audit and Gov

Head of Policy and
Resources
Monitoring Officer

Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme
Part of the Committee’s annual work
programme

-------------

-------------

Standing Agenda Item

Page 176

Agenda Item 15

Date:

23rd July 2018

Meeting:

Audit and Governance Committee

Subject:

Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity 2017/18

Report Of:

Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor)

Wards Affected:

Not applicable

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Theresa Mortimer - Head of Audit Risk Assurance

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email:
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No

Tel: 01452 396338

1: Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity 2017/18
2: Summary Activity Progress Report 2017/18

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide the Committee with an annual report on Internal Audit Activity which fully
meets the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual reporting requirements, as set out in the
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS) 2017.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Audit and Governance Committee is asked to RESOLVE to:
(1) Assess, from the findings set out in this Internal Audit Annual Report, whether it
can take reasonable assurance that the internal control environment, comprising
risk management, control and governance is operating effectively; and
(2) Note that the performance of Internal Audit meets the required standards.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state that ‘a relevant authority must
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account Public Sector
Internal Auditing Standards or guidance’.
During 2017/18, Internal Audit work was carried out in accordance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017 and the CIPFA Local Government
Application Note for the UK PSIAS.

1
Page 177

3.2

The PSIAS define internal audit as ‘an independent objective assurance and
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations.
It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes’.

3.3

To achieve full effectiveness, the scope of the internal audit function should provide
an unrestricted range of coverage of the organisation’s operations and the internal
audit function should have sufficient authority to access such records, assets and
personnel as are necessary for the proper fulfilment of responsibilities. These
access rights are specified in the Internal Audit Charter and Code of Ethics, which
have been approved by Members.

3.4

The PSIAS requires the Chief Internal Auditor to ‘provide a written report to those
charged with governance timed to support the Annual Governance Statement’. The
content of the report is prescribed by the PSIAS which specifically requires Internal
Audit to:


Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s internal control environment and disclose any qualifications to that
opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification;



Compare the actual work undertaken with the planned work, and present a
summary of the audit activity undertaken from which the opinion was derived,
drawing attention to any issues of particular relevance;



Summarise the performance of the Internal Audit function against its
performance measures and targets; and



Comment on compliance with the PSIAS.

3.5

A separate report containing the Annual Governance Statement is included on the
agenda for the Audit and Governance Committee on 23rd July 2018.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of the recommendation made in this
report.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

No other options have been considered as the purpose of this report is to inform the
Committee of the Internal Audit work undertaken to date, and the assurances given
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment operating in
the areas audited. Non completion of the Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity
would lead to non compliance with the PSIAS and the Council’s Constitution (see
report section 6.2 and 6.3).

2
Page 178

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

The role of the Audit Risk Assurance shared service is to examine, evaluate and
provide an independent, objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s internal control environment, comprising risk management, control and
governance. Where weaknesses have been identified, recommendations have
been made to improve the control environment.

6.2

The PSIAS state that the Chief Internal Auditor should report on the outcomes of
Internal Audit work, in sufficient detail, to allow the Committee to understand what
assurance it can take from that work and/or what unresolved risks or issues it needs
to address.

6.3

Consideration of reports from the Chief Internal Auditor on Internal Audit’s
performance during the year, including updates on the work of Internal Audit, is also
a requirement of the Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference (part of
the Council Constitution).

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

In accordance with the PSIAS, and reflected within the Audit and Governance
Committee’s work programme, Internal Audit Activity Progress Reports against the
2018/2019 audit plan, are scheduled to be presented to the Audit and Governance
Committee at the scheduled 2018/2019 Committee meetings.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

There are no direct financial costs arising out of this report.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report).

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

Nothing specific arising from the report recommendations.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report).

10.0

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an independent,
objective assurance opinion from being provided to those charged with governance
that the key risks associated with the achievement of the Council’s objectives are
being adequately controlled.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

A requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 is for the Council to
undertake an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes taking into account public sector
internal auditing standards or guidance.

3
Page 179

The Internal Audit Service is delivered by Audit Risk Assurance which is an internal
audit and risk management shared service between Gloucester City Council, Stroud
District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. Equality in service delivery is
demonstrated by the team being subject to, and complying with, the Council’s
equality policies.
11.2

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

There are no ‘Community Safety’ implications arising out of the recommendations in
this report.
Sustainability

12.2

There are no ‘Sustainability’ implications arising out of the recommendations in this
report.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

There are no ‘Staffing and Trade Union’ implications arising out of the
recommendations in this report.

Background Documents:





Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015;
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017;
CIPFA Local Government Application Note for the UK PSIAS; and
Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference.

4
Page 180

Page 181

Contents
(1)

Introduction .........................................................................................................................1

(2)

Responsibilities ..................................................................................................................1

(3)

Purpose of this Report .......................................................................................................1

(4)

Chief Internal Auditor’s Opinion on the Council’s Internal Control Environment ........2
(4a)

Scope of the Internal Audit Opinion .......................................................................................2

(4b)

Limitations to the scope of our activity...................................................................................3

(5)

Summary of Internal Audit Activity undertaken compared to that planned..................3

(6)

Summary of Internal Audit Activity undertaken which informed our opinion ..............6

(7)

(8)

(6a)

Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control .....................................................7

(6b)

Limited Control Assurance Opinions......................................................................................7

(6c)

Audit Activity where a Limited Assurance Opinion has been provided on Control .........7

(6d)

Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions..............................................................................8

(6e)

Internal Audit recommendations made to enhance the control environment...................8

(6f)

Risk Assurance Opinions ........................................................................................................8

(6g)

Internal Audit’s Review of Risk Management .......................................................................8

(6h)

Gloucester City Council’s Corporate Governance Arrangements .....................................9

Summary of additional Internal Audit Activity ...............................................................10
(7a)

Special Investigations/Counter Fraud Activities .................................................................10

(7b)

Local Government Transparency Code 2015.....................................................................12

Internal Audit Effectiveness.............................................................................................14

Completed Internal Audit Activity during the period April – June 2018 .................................18
Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control............................................................18
Summary of Substantial Assurance Opinions on Control.............................................................23
Summary of Consulting Activity and/or support provided where no opinions are provided ....26

i

Page 182

(1)

Introduction

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local
Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter states that
‘a relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness
of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector
internal auditing standards (PSIAS) or guidance’.
The standards define the way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established and
undertake its functions. The Council’s Internal Audit Service is provided by Audit Risk
Assurance under a Shared Service agreement between Gloucester City Council, Stroud
District Council and Gloucestershire County Council and carries out the work required to
satisfy this legislative requirement and reports its findings and conclusions to management
and to this Committee.
The standards also require that an independent and objective opinion is given on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment, comprising risk management,
control and governance, from the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service.
The Shared Service Internal Audit function conforms to the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

(2)

Responsibilities

Management are responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management
processes, control systems (financial and non financial) and governance arrangements.
Internal Audit plays a key role in providing independent assurance and challenge, advising
the organisation that satisfactory arrangements are in place and operating effectively.
Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance for the Council. There are a range of
external audit and inspection agencies as well as management processes which also
provide assurance and these are set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance
and its Annual Governance Statement.

(3)

Purpose of this Report

One of the key requirements of the PSIAS is that the Chief Internal Auditor should provide
an annual report to those charged with governance, to support the Annual Governance
Statement. The content of the report is prescribed by the PSIAS which specifically requires
Internal Audit to:
 Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
internal control environment and disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together
with the reasons for the qualification;

1

Page 183

 Compare the actual work undertaken with the planned work, and present a summary
of the audit activity undertaken from which the opinion was derived, drawing attention
to any issues of particular relevance;
 Summarise the performance of the Internal Audit function against its performance
measures and targets; and
 Comment on compliance with the PSIAS.
When considering this report, the Committee may also wish to have regard to the quarterly
interim Internal Audit progress reports presented to the Committee during 2017/18 and the
Annual Report on Risk Management Activity 2017/18 presented to the Committee.

(4)

Chief Internal Auditor’s Opinion on the Council’s Internal
Control Environment

In providing my opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most
that Internal Audit can provide is a reasonable assurance that there are no major
weaknesses in risk management arrangements, control processes and governance. The
matters raised in this report, and our quarterly monitoring reports, are only those that were
identified during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement
of all the weaknesses that may exist or represent all of the improvements required.
Chief Internal Auditor’s Opinion
I am satisfied that, based on the internal audit activity undertaken during 2017/18 and
management’s actions taken in response to that activity, enhanced by the work of other
external review agencies, sufficient evidence is available to allow me to draw a reasonable
conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Gloucester City Council’s overall internal
control environment.
In my opinion, for the 12 months ended 31st March 2018, Gloucester City Council has a
satisfactory overall control environment, to enable the achievement of the Council’s
outcomes and objectives.
This opinion will feed into the Annual Governance Statement which will be published
alongside the Annual Statement of Accounts.

(4a)

Scope of the Internal Audit Opinion

In arriving at my opinion, I have taken into account:
 The results of all internal audit activity undertaken during the year ended 31st March
2018 and whether our high and medium priority recommendations have been
accepted by management and, if not, the consequent risk;

2

Page 184

 The effects of any material changes in the organisation’s risk profile, objectives or
activities;
 Matters arising from internal audit quarterly progress reports or other assurance
providers to the Audit and Governance Committee;

 Whether or not any limitations have been placed on the scope of internal audit
activity; and

 Whether there have been any resource constraints imposed on internal audit which
may have impacted on our ability to meet the full internal audit needs of the
organisation.

(4b)

Limitations to the scope of our activity

There have been no limitations to the scope of our activity or resource constraints imposed
on internal audit which have impacted on our ability to meet the full internal audit needs of
the Council. Whilst the core Internal Audit service is provided by the Audit Risk Assurance
Shared Service, during 2017/18 the Chief Internal Auditor has:
 Commissioned external specialist ICT audit via Warwickshire County Council’s
Internal Audit Framework Agreement;
 Set up joint working arrangements in relation to Internal Audit and Risk Management
with the Chief Internal Auditor at Warwickshire County Council;
 Arrangements in place with Gloucestershire NHS Counter Fraud Service to provide
support with investigations; and
 An agreement in place with Gloucestershire’s Counter Fraud Unit to provide counter
fraud support.

(5)

Summary of Internal Audit Activity undertaken compared to
that planned

The underlying principle to the 2017/18 plan is risk and as such, audit resources were
directed to areas which represented ‘in year risk’. Variations to the plan are required if the
plan is to adequately reflect the ongoing changing risk profile of the Council.
Since the original risk based plan was approved in March 2017 by the Audit and Governance
Committee, a number of additional audit and consultancy activities have proved necessary
and some of the original planned audits have been deferred into the 2018/19 Internal Audit
Plan (based on appropriate client request and to ensure the audit adds value). Plan changes
are detailed in Appendix 2 (the Summary Activity Progress Report 2017/18).
The net effect is that although the work undertaken was slightly different to that originally
planned we are able to report that we achieved 97% of the overall revised plan 2017/18,
against a target of 85%.
3

Page 185

The bar charts below summarise the percentages of planned audits per service area (i.e.
Corporate, Finance, Regeneration and Economic etc.) and category of activity (i.e.
fundamental financial systems, governance etc.) compared with the percentage of actual
audits completed.

Example rationale for the variance between 2017/18 planned and actual days per service
area include (but are not exclusive to):
 New activity requests:
o
o
o
o

ICT Assurance Mapping (including policy review) – Consultancy;
Planning Appeal;
Housing Discretionary Payments; and
Additional ICT Activity.

 Audit activity where actual days were in excess of those originally budgeted, due to
the findings and outcomes of the audit work e.g. Project Solace, Benefits 2,
Complaints Handling and Code of Conduct for Employees.
 The impact of counter fraud and investigation actual days, following case referral by
the Council (i.e. actuals days have been allocated to the service area, rather than
Council Wide).
 Lower than planned risk management support being required by the Council within
2017/18.
4

Page 186

Example rationale for the variance between 2017/18 planned and actual days per category
include (but are not exclusive to):
 The impact of counter fraud and investigation actual days, following case referral by
the Council;
 New activity requests being mainly audit in nature, rather than consultancy; and
 Lower than planned risk management support being required by the Council within
2017/18. Risk management support is expected to increase within 2018/19,
alongside the Council update to the performance management and risk management
system.

5

Page 187

(6)

Summary of Internal Audit Activity undertaken which
informed our opinion

The schedule provided at Attachment 1 within this report provides the summary of 2017/18
audits which have not previously been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.
The schedule provided at Appendix 2 contains a list of all of the audit activity undertaken
during 2017/18, which includes, where relevant, the assurance opinions on the effectiveness
of risk management arrangements and control processes in place to manage those risks and
the dates where a summary of the activities outcomes has been presented to the Audit and
Governance Committee. Explanations of the meaning of these opinions are shown below.

Assurance
Levels

Risk Identification Maturity

Substantial

Risk Managed
Service area fully aware of the risks relating to the area
under review and the impact that these may have on
service delivery, other services, finance, reputation, legal,
the environment, client/customer/partners, and staff. All
key risks are accurately reported and monitored in line
with the Corporate Risk Management Strategy.

 System Adequacy – Robust
framework of controls ensures
that there is a high likelihood of
objectives being achieved

Risk Aware
Service area has an awareness of the risks relating to the
area under review and the impact that these may have
on service delivery, other services, finance, reputation,
legal, the environment, client/customer/partners, and
staff, however some key risks are not being accurately
reported and monitored in line with the Corporate Risk
Management Strategy.

 System Adequacy – Sufficient
framework of key controls for
objectives to be achieved but,
control framework could be
stronger

Risk Naïve
Due to an absence of accurate and regular reporting and
monitoring of the key risks in line with the Corporate Risk
Management Strategy, the service area has not
demonstrated an adequate awareness of the risks
relating to the area under review and the impact that
these may have on service delivery, other services,
finance, reputation, legal, the environment,
client/customer/partners and staff.

 System Adequacy – Risk of
objectives not being achieved due
to the absence of key internal
controls

Satisfactory

Limited

Control Environment

 Control Application – Controls are
applied continuously or with minor
lapses

 Control Application – Controls are
applied but with some lapses

 Control Application – Significant
breakdown in the application of
control

6

Page 188

(6a)

Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control

The below pie charts show the summary of the risk and control assurance opinions provided
within each category of opinion i.e. substantial, satisfactory and limited. ARA can report that
the Council is showing that 92% of the activities reviewed have received a substantial
(38%) or satisfactory (54%) opinion on control. Whilst 8% of the opinions on control are
limited, this maybe related to transformational change, continued focusing of our activity on
the key risks of the Council and specific requests from the Audit and Governance Committee
and Corporate Directors, who are asking for areas to be reviewed where issues have arisen
or where independent assurance is required.
Risk and Control Opinions 2017/18

(6b)

Limited Control Assurance Opinions

Where audit activity records that a limited assurance opinion on control has been provided,
the Audit and Governance Committee may request Senior Management attendance to the
next meeting of the Committee to provide an update as to their actions taken to address the
risks and associated recommendations identified by Internal Audit.

(6c) Audit Activity where a Limited Assurance Opinion has been provided on
Control
During 2017/18, two limited opinions on control were provided. These related to:
Audited Service Area

Date reported to Audit and Governance
Committee

Officers’ Code of Conduct

18th September 2017

Project Solace

22nd January 2018

7

Page 189

(6d)

Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions

Where audit activity records that a satisfactory assurance opinion on control has been
provided where recommendations have been made to reflect some improvements in control,
the Audit and Governance Committee and Senior Management Team can take assurance
that improvement actions have been agreed with management to address these.

(6e) Internal Audit recommendations made to enhance the control
environment
Year

Total No.
of high
priority
recs.

% of high
priority recs.
accepted by
management

Total No.
of medium
priority
recs.

% of medium
priority recs.
accepted by
management

Total No.
of recs.
made

2016/17

12

100%

89

100%

101

2017/18

7

100%

52

100%

59

The Audit and Governance Committee and Senior Management Team can take assurance
that all high priority recommendations will remain under review by Internal Audit, by
obtaining regular management updates, until the required action has been fully completed.

(6f)

Risk Assurance Opinions

During 2017/18, it is pleasing to report that no limited assurance opinions on risk have been
provided on completed audits from the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan.
In the cases where a limited assurance opinion is given, the Shared Service Senior Risk
Management Advisor is provided with the Internal Audit reports, to enable the prioritisation of
risk management support.

(6g)

Internal Audit’s Review of Risk Management

During 2017/18, 100% of the audited areas rated the effectiveness of risk management
arrangements as substantial (46%) or satisfactory (54%) with 0% obtaining a limited
assurance opinion. This evidences that risk management continues to be further embedded
into the Council’s business activities.
The assurance statements obtained from the Corporate Directors and Heads of Service
across the Council (when formulating the Annual Governance Statement), provided
reasonable assurance that the majority of management apply the Council’s Risk
Management Strategy and principles within their service areas.
This together with our own assessment, have led Internal Audit to conclude that the risk
management arrangements within the authority are effective.

8

Page 190

(6h)

Gloucester City Council’s Corporate Governance Arrangements

The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish
an Annual Governance Statement. The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the
Leader, Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer and must accompany the Annual
Statement of Accounts.
In April 2016, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authorities Chief Executives (SOLACE) published ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016’ and this applies to annual governance
statements prepared for the 2016/2017 financial year. Guidance notes were also published
to assist Council Leaders and Chief Executives in reviewing and testing their governance
arrangements against the revised seven principles for good governance.
The key focus of the framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental
and the need to focus on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future
generations. ARA therefore:
 Reviewed the existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in the
Framework;
 Developed and implemented a refreshed local code of corporate governance, based
on the new principles, including an assurance framework for ensuring ongoing
effectiveness; and
 Will report publically, via the Annual Governance Statement on compliance with our
code on an annual basis, how we have monitored the effectiveness of our
governance arrangements in the year and on planned improvement areas.
Gloucester City Council’s governance framework reflects the CIPFA/SOLACE key principles
and has been summarised within a Local Code of Corporate Governance 2017/18. This local
code comprises the Council’s systems and processes, culture and values for the direction
and control of the Authority and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and
leads the community.
The key 2017/18 governance matters identified related to: Future Financial Stability /
Efficiency Savings, Local Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge, CIPFA
Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition) and
Corporate Performance.
The actions to be taken to address the above can be found within the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement 2017/18.
The above arrangements have therefore led Internal Audit to conclude that effective
governance arrangements operate within the Council.
9

Page 191

(7)

Summary of additional Internal Audit Activity

(7a)

Special Investigations/Counter Fraud Activities

Current Status
During 2017/18 (1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018) four potential irregularities were referred
to Internal Audit (IA). All cases referred to Internal Audit were investigated (some in
collaboration with relevant officers within the Council) and three have now been finalised.
The areas investigated occurred within Public Protection (Environment, Health and
Licensing), Planning, Customer Services and a query raised by a Councillor.
Of the three cases closed, one was reported to the police (relating to a potential perjury
issue in respect of undeclared income relating to a fine imposed by the court). Police
subsequently decided it was not in the public interest to persue this matter. In another case
investigated, a Councillor received correspondence from someone purporting to be from
China wanting to arrange a cultural visit to the UK. Investigations by Internal Audit
established that this was not a genuine request and the Councillor was advised not to enter
into any correspondence with the originator of the email. The matter was referred to National
Anti Fraud Network (NAFN) who issued a warning to all of its members advising them not to
enter into any correspondence/provide information should they be contacted. The third case
involved information received from a whistleblower. Whilst no fraud was found, the
investigation identified a number of control weakness and a report was issued containing
recommendations to improve and strengthen the control environment.
In respect of the outstanding investigation, Internal Audit continues to work with relevant
officers within the Council and the investigation outcome will be provided to the Audit and
Governance Committee once concluded.
The Counter Fraud Unit (CFU) has been engaged through ARA in 2017/18 to undertake
work on behalf of the Council, although this will now take place in 2018/19. All counter fraud
activity to be undertaken by the CFU has been agreed with the relevant Service Managers,
S151Officer and overseen by the Chief Internal Auditor.
Any fraud alerts received by Internal Audit from NAFN are passed onto the relevant service
area within the Council, to alert staff to the potential fraud.
Fraud Risk Assessment / Risk Register
A fraud risk register is used to assist in the formation of the annual Internal Audit plan.
National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
Internal Audit continues to support the NFI which is a biennial data matching exercise
administered by the Cabinet Office. The data collections were collected throughout October
2016 and generating reports containing data set matches for follow-up action. Examples of
data sets includes housing, insurance, payroll, creditors, council tax, electoral register and
licences for market trader/operator, taxi drivers and personal licences to supply alcohol.
10

Page 192

Not all matches are investigated but where possible all recommended matches are reviewed
by either Internal Audit or the appropriate service area.
Internal Audit has already reported that to-date, 16 cases have been forwarded to the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for further review, as they involved housing
benefit which is investigated by the Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) which sits
within the DWP. Ten of these cases have been closed, one of which confirmed an
overstated benefit claim and resultant overpayment of just under £2,000. This amount is to
be repaid plus a penalty of almost £1,000 was also imposed. The other nine cases were
closed with no further action.
The key outcomes of the review of the remaining six cases will be provided to the Audit and
Governance Committee once the investigations are completed, and if the DWP provide an
outcome of the investigations.
In addition, an annual data matching exercise is undertaken to match the electoral register
data to single person discount data held within the Council. Once all relevant data has been
uploaded onto the NFI portal, a data match report is instantly produced and available for
analysis.
The data continues to be reviewed, however to-date, SPD review forms have been issued to
current claimants. To date, returns which identify a change in circumstances has resulted in
an increase of £155,448 to the Council Tax base. Verification on those returned with no
declared changes will be reviewed by undertaking internet checks, credit checks etc. Further
work on those households failing to return forms or giving incorrect information is ongoing,
the outcome of which will be provided to the Audit and Governance Committee once
complete.
Monitoring and Review
The Committee can also take assurance that all special investigations/counter fraud
activities are reported to the Managing Director, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial
Officer as required, via the Corporate Governance Board who challenge, monitor
management actions and follow-up progress to date and approve all police referrals.

Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy
Effective governance requires the Council to promote values for the authority and
demonstrate the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct
and behaviour. To enable this, the Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2016–2019
Strategy has been developed by local authorities and counter fraud experts and supported
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Counter Fraud
Centre. It is the definitive guide for council leaders, chief executives, finance directors and all
those with governance responsibilities. The strategy includes practical steps for fighting
fraud, shares best practice and brings clarity to the changing anti-fraud and corruption
landscape.

11

Page 193

The Chief Internal Auditor has undertaken a self-assessment against the new guidance to
measure the Council’s counter fraud and corruption culture and response and propose
enhancements as required.
As such, a revised Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy, Anti Bribery
Policy and Anti Money Laundering Policy 2017-2019 was developed and subsequently
approved by the Cabinet in February 2017.
Serious and Organised Crime Strategic partnership led by Gloucestershire Police
The Chief Internal Auditor is a member of the Serious and Organised Crime Strategic
Partnership (SOCSP) to discuss the local multi agency approach to tackling crime/fraud.
There is a clear direction from central government that a ‘whole government approach’ is
required, with the co-ordination of the Police, statutory partners and the community and
voluntary sector. It is the intention that this partnership is to set the context of Serious and
Organised Crime within Gloucestershire and then mobilise the network of local partners to
work together with a strong emphasis on a preventative, early intervention approach.

(7b)

Local Government Transparency Code 2015

Introduction
This Code is issued to meet the Government’s desire to place more power into citizens’
hands to increase democratic accountability and make it easier for local people to contribute
to the local decision making process and help shape public services.
Transparency is the foundation of local accountability and the key that gives people the tools
and information they need to enable them to play a bigger role in society. The availability of
data can also open new markets for local business, the voluntary and community sectors
and social enterprises to run services or manage public assets.
Detecting and preventing fraud (taken from Annex B of code)
Tackling fraud is an integral part of ensuring that tax-payers money is used to protect
resources for frontline services. The cost of fraud to local government is estimated at £2.1
billion a year. This is money that can be better used to support the delivery of front line
services and make savings for local tax payers.
A culture of transparency should strengthen counter-fraud controls. The Code makes it clear
that fraud can thrive where decisions are not open to scrutiny and details of spending,
contracts and service provision are hidden from view. Greater transparency, and the
provisions in this Code, can help combat fraud.
Local authorities must annually publish the following information about their counter fraud
work (as detailed for Gloucester City Council) in the table below:

12

Page 194

Council wide fraud and irregularity activity relating to 2017/18 including Internal Audit
activity
Question

Gloucester City Council
Response

Number of occasions they use powers under the Prevention of
Social Housing Fraud (Power to Require Information)
(England) Regulations 2014, or similar powers.
Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees
undertaking investigations and prosecutions of fraud.

None

0.47 FTE plus Council staff who
have been involved in
investigations, which is not
quantified.

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of
professionally accredited counter fraud specialists.

The Council has access to 1.8
FTE fraud investigators plus
qualified staff employed by the
Gloucestershire Counter Fraud
Unit, as part of the Internal Audit
shared service arrangement.

Total amount spent by the authority on the investigation and
prosecution of fraud.

£21,336 plus any staff time for
those employed direct by
Gloucester City Council which is
unknown.
2

Total number of fraud cases investigated.

In addition to the above, it is recommended that local authorities should go further than the
minimum publication requirements set out above (as detailed for Gloucester City Council) in
the table below.
Question

Gloucester City
Council Response

Total number of cases of irregularity investigated.

3 + NFI SPD
collectively+ 15
referred to DWP

Total number of occasions on which a) fraud and b) irregularity was
identified.

a) 2 + 6 DWP
outcomes not known
b) 3

Total monetary value of a) the fraud and b) the irregularity that was
detected.

a) £1,996
b) £155,765
6 cases not known
as referred to DWP

13

Page 195

for review
Total monetary value of a) the fraud and b) the irregularity that was
recovered

a) £2,995
b) £155,448
6 cases not known
as referred to DWP
for review

Full details about the code and its requirements can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015

(8)

Internal Audit Effectiveness

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require ‘a relevant authority must undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or
guidance’. This process is also part of the wider annual review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system, and significantly contributes towards the overall controls assurance
gathering processes and ultimately the publication of the Annual Governance Statement.
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also state that internal audit should conform to
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017.
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
These standards have four key objectives:
 Define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector;
 Set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector;
 Establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the
organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and operations; and

 Establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive
improvement planning.
The Internal Audit Charter, Code of Ethics and the Audit and Governance Committee’s
Terms of Reference have all been amended to reflect the requirements of the standards.
External Assessment of the effectiveness of Internal Audit
The last External Quality Assessment (an independent assessment of the effectiveness of
an internal audit function which should take place at least every five years) was completed
within 2015/16 of the Gloucestershire County Council internal audit service.

14

Page 196

The review was undertaken during May 2015 by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors
and included a review of the team’s conformance to the International Professional Practice
Framework (IPPF) as reflected in the PSIAS, benchmarking the function’s activities against
best practice and assessing the impact of internal audit on the organisation. There are 56
fundamental principles to achieve with more than 150 points of recommended practice in the
IPPF. The independent assessment identified 100% conformance.
The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors stated: ‘It is our view that (the Council’s) internal
audit function conforms to all 56 principles. This is excellent performance given the breadth
of the IPPF and the challenges facing the function’.
The internal audit shared service applies consistent systems and processes, which supports
compliance across the Audit Risk Assurance Shared Service partners.
During 2017/18 the Chief Internal Auditor assessed Internal Audit’s performance against the
Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) as required by the
PSIAS. The QAIP confirmed compliance against the PSIAS and highlighted opportunities for
further service improvement.
Internal Assessment - Customer Satisfaction Survey results 2017/18
At the close of each audit review a customer satisfaction questionnaire is sent out to the
Corporate Director, Head of Service or nominated officer. The aim of the questionnaire is to
gauge satisfaction of the service provided such as timeliness, quality and professionalism.
Customers are asked to rate the service between excellent, good, fair and poor.
A target of 80% was set where overall, audit was assessed as good or better. The latest
results as summarised below, shows that the target has been exceeded, with the score of
90% reflecting Internal Audit as being a positive support to their service.

15

Page 197

In addition, the following positive comments have been received from our customers:
 ‘Excellent piece of work in a very short timescale’.
 ‘It was a timely analysis which has helped with planned review of the code of
conduct’.
 ‘At all times the auditor made it clear what was going to happen and when she rang
to confirm any of our queries we also were happy to liaise with her. She was polite,
thorough and fair and was also great in her approach dealing with the staff’.
 ‘The auditor took the time to take me through the process that had taken place prior
to me joining Gloucester City Council. The auditor spent time with me to ensure that
the report was a useful tool for informing my future work’.
 ‘I would like to pass on my thanks to the auditor for getting me up to speed with the
work that had (been) undertaken and taking the time to go through the findings with
me’.
 ‘Regular communication and visits from the auditor who was always very
professional’.
 ‘The scope of the audit was clearly explained and was carried out in a way that did
not impinge on the delivery of the procurement. By splitting the audit it will allow a
complete examination of the process while not taking up resource at busy times
during the project’.

16

Page 198

Lessons Learned from customer feedback and actions taken by Internal Audit
The Chief Internal Auditor reviews all client feedback survey forms and where a less than
good rating has been provided by the client, a discussion is held with both the relevant
auditor and the manager to establish the rationale behind the rating and where appropriate
actions are taken to address any issues highlighted.
No specific feedback for improvement of audit approach has been received within 2017/18,
however a revised joint working protocol has been agreed between internal and external
audit to avoid duplication and static annual auditing of the same area / system or process.
ARA Learning and Development
Development of leaders, managers and staff within ARA is a key priority, to ensure that the
service has the qualities, behaviours and skills to deliver efficient and effective services to
our partners and external clients.
The Chief Internal Auditor is a member of the Local Authorities Chief Auditor’s Network,
Midland Counties Chief Internal Auditor Network and the Midland District Chief Internal
Auditors Group. ARA staff participate in CPD and / or are members of other relevant internal
audit, counter fraud and risk related forums / groups, all of which provides the opportunities
to discuss and understand the latest developments affecting the internal audit, counter fraud
and risk management profession, contribute to strategy, exchange ideas and work
collaboratively on problems and issues.
ARA is also committed to offering a structured trainee auditor programme, to attract people
to the Council and to the profession, currently supporting three trainee auditor posts.
ARA Partner Dividend
During 2017/18 ARA has been in a position to be able to provide a dividend to the Council in
the sum of £10,762.69 This is due to efficiencies achieved by the shared service during this
period.

17

Page 199

Attachment 1

Completed Internal Audit Activity during the period April – June
2018
Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area:

Council Wide

Audit Activity:

Communications Service

Background
In March 2015, following a protracted period of staffing absence and instability within the City
Council’s in-house Communications and Marketing Service several proposals were
considered for the future delivery of this critical function. The options being:
 Continue without in-house communications support;
 Recruit a new-in-house team;
 Commission support from Gloucestershire County Council;
 Seek alternative support from another District Council; and
 Seek alternative support from other outside providers.
Cabinet subsequently gave approval to commission support from Gloucestershire County
Council.
Scope
The objectives of the audit were to:
 Review the governance arrangements established by the City Council to provide
effective oversight of the Service (including performance management and reporting);
 Evaluate whether the services provided to the City Council are clearly defined within
the Agreement and that in practice the services are being delivered to the required
standard; and
 Confirm that the financial payments made to the County Council are for work
delivered under the Agreement and in line with expectations.
Risk Assurance – Substantial
Control Assurance – Satisfactory

18

Page 200

Key Findings
Governance:
 The agreement was formalised on 18th February 2016 with the contract year
commencing on 1st February 2016. The arrangements have subsequently been
extended for a second and third period and is due to expire on 31st January 2019.
 Meetings between the Corporate Director (lead officer) and the County Council’s
Head of Communications are scheduled at least monthly.
 A representative from the County Council’s Communications Service currently
attends Senior Management Team meetings, Cabinet briefings and Cabinet
meetings.
 A dedicated Business Partner for the Communications Service has recently been
recruited by the County Council to increase on-site presence at the City offices. It is
proposed that this resource will be based at the City offices three days per week
(similar to that of the HR Business Partner).
Service Delivery:
 The agreement is dated 18th February 2016. Schedule 1: Specification provides
details of the engagement offer around: Internal Communications / staff engagement;
Social Media, Website, Communications project support, Media Management support
and Out of hours.
 Schedule 4: Change Control covers the general principles and procedures to be
followed should either part wish to change the agreement. It was identified that the
main change in service delivery related to the production and distribution of the City
Life magazine. With effect from summer 2017 edition this magazine is now published
primarily in a ‘digital’ format (as opposed to hard copy) with this initiative resulting in
annual savings of £30,000 to the City Council of reduced printing and distribution
costs against the original contract price.
 Monthly spreadsheets have been provided with actual hours delivered by the County
Council on each category with the original intention being that the invoice would be
adjusted to reflect any under or over provision. As the relationships have developed it
became apparent that this quantitative information (in isolation) is not beneficial or
provides the full picture. As such no adjustments to the agreed pricing schedule were
considered appropriate.
 The service delivery has moved from a pure contractual arrangement into a shared
service. A new Section 101 Agreement has been drafted which requires the formal
change taking place from 1st April 2018. It is envisaged that going forward there will
be increased emphasis on working together and focus on the quality of service
delivery with performance being measured against a wider suite of Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs).

19

Page 201

Financial payments made under this agreement:
 The core service is provided to the City Council at an annual charge of £80,000. In
addition for each production of the City Life Magazine (three times per year) the City
Council will be charged £2,000 (previously £12,000 per issue). This is a significant
reduction based on the figures for in-house provision reported to Cabinet in 2015 of
£179,000 per annum.
 A review of Civica Financials for 2016/17 and 2017/18 confirmed the charges made
by the County Council (and paid by the City Council) since the commencement of this
agreement are supported by audit trail and are in line with the agreement criteria.
Conclusion
Appropriate oversight is in place through the Corporate Director being the Council’s
nominated lead officer for this service. The recruitment by the County Council of a Business
Partner will further enhance the governance and oversight arrangements and provide
dedicated support, training and be on hand to disseminate best practice and guidance to
officers and Members.
The payments made to the County Council are in line with expectations and in accordance
with the Agreement (as amended).
By outsourcing the delivery of this service to the County Council it has resulted in a
significant reduction in costs when compared to the cost of the former in-house service.
Feedback suggests that overall the service provision is more resilient with access to
specialist advice being available which may not have been consistently to hand prior to
entering into this arrangement.
Whilst officers considered the processes relating to internal communications and reactive
press releases were reasonable they felt the Council’s handling / approach to proactive
press releases and media campaigns (to ensure appropriate lead time) was in need of
refining.
Management Actions
The Council targets to continue service improvement (covering both governance and
delivery) through the introduction of a Section 101 Agreement and physical on site presence
of a Communications Services representative. Due to this ongoing action, no
recommendations have been raised within the report.

20

Page 202

Service Area:

Policy and Resources

Audit Activity:

Cash and Bank

Background
The Council receives income from many sources in order to support its functions. Reasons
for receiving income include payments against local taxation, application fees, other fees
and charges, or payments against sundry debtor invoices. The main system for recording
cash is the Pay360 system, which is administered by Civica on the Council’s behalf. Income
at outstations such as the Guildhall, Tourist Information Centre (TIC) and museums is
recorded via the SRO (Standing Room Only) box office software.
The income recorded in each of these systems is of significant value to the Council, and
consequently cash receipting has been identified as a key financial system.
The Council operates five bank accounts, including the Income bank account. Cash takings
and other transactions within each bank account should be mirrored within the Council’s
main accounting system, so that the Council makes decisions based on sound financial
information. Bank records reflect the Council’s financial position and are therefore
considered to be a key financial system.
Scope
The objectives of the audit were to ensure:
 Cash is received, handled, transferred and deposited into the Council’s bank account
in a timely and accurate manner, so that the Council secures the income it is due;
and
 Bank transactions align to the Council’s financial records.
The scope of the audit was the 2017/18 financial year to date and the controls were
reviewed at the Council’s main offices and Guildhall bar/café.
Risk Assurance – Satisfactory
Control Assurance – Satisfactory
Key Findings
The internal audit findings (including walkthrough review and sample testing results per site)
identified a number of areas of good practice applied by the Council at the various income
receipting sites.
Audit review and testing also identified the following opportunities where cash and bank
processes and controls could be further strengthened by the Council, including:
 Documentation of a risk assessment for cash handling, including consideration of
mitigating actions and their inclusion into relevant documented procedures;
21

Page 203

 Review and update of the markets cash procedures to ensure that cash is banked
promptly, transported for receipting safely and securely, and to capture previous
recommended improvements relating to cash security;
 Confirmation that the current cash collection contract is in accordance with the
Council’s Contract Standing Orders;
 Review and update procedures regards prompt notification to Civica of cash
imbalances at the bank, to ensure timely investigation and resolution;
 Update of the visitor experience sites cash security and handling documentation to
ensure that they are up to date and consistently apply good practice areas;
 Completion of reconciliations between SRO records to cash deposited at the bank,
during the period of SRO integration development; and
 Consideration of kiosk cash counting approach changes, to enable processing and
sealing of cash at the earliest opportunity and to reduce the complexity of float
management.
The cash and bank internal audit report included an audit recommendation on each of the
above themes.
Conclusion
The Council’s Constitution states: Income can be a vulnerable asset and effective income
collection systems are necessary to ensure that all of the income due is identified, collected,
receipted and banked properly. The risk of failing to obtain income through misallocation,
loss, theft or fraud could result in difficulties in achieving a balanced budget and impact on
the Council’s financial plans.
This audit reviewed the cash collection and receipting arrangements at the Docks main
office and Guildhall bar, as well as the overall banking arrangements, in order to provide
assurance that the control framework is sufficient to meet the Council’s expectations.
Overall, the key findings detailed above have led to a conclusion that current procedures are
satisfactory, both in terms of risk management and control environment.
Management Actions
Management have responded positively to the audit recommendations raised.

22

Page 204

Summary of Substantial Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area:

Policy and Resources

Audit Activity:

Accounts Payable

Background
The Council operate the Civica Accounts Payable modules Purchasing and Financials.
Purchasing manages requisitioning, orders and receipting of goods and services. The
Financials module focuses on the invoicing and payment processes and control and during
quarter three of the year, the total number of suppliers’ invoices paid was circa 1,700. The
Accounts Payable team receive financial systems support from Malvern Hills District Council
and Civica.
Scope
The agreed audit scope was to provide the Council with assurance on verifying that key
controls are operating effectively for Accounts Payable.
Risk Assurance – Substantial
Control Assurance – Substantial
Key Findings
 Help guides provide a step-by-step transaction flow for the purchasing module. These
guides are judged to be informative and cover the key salient points for members of
staff.
 Hierarchical purchase order authorisation financial value limits are in place, so above
those thresholds, orders are authorised by the next management level.
 There is differentiated staff access according to role with staff attached to user
groups within the Civica Purchasing module, demonstrating appropriate segregation
of duties.
 New supplier account registration requests from service departments are forwarded
to the Accounts Payable team. Data checks of suppliers are completed by
procurement and Accounts Payable staff.
 Automated controls are in place, which raise a warning that an account with the same
post code and bank account is are already in the database and any amendments to
supplier details are independently checked with the supplier.
 Daily reconciliations take place between the Accounts Payable outstanding supplier
financial balances with the General Ledger. The reconciliation is performed by the
shared service Financial Systems Team at Malvern Hills District Council.
23

Page 205

 Sample testing of invoices due for payment greater than £25,000 confirmed that
purchase order/payment approval was obtained by the Head of Policy and Resources
or his nominated deputy.
 Monitoring reports are used to assess performance to pay approved supplier invoices
within 30 days.

 The expected controls around BACS submissions and the payment runs are in place.
The payment run is appropriately checked and authorised by a senior member of the
Finance Team.
Conclusion
Internal Audit review confirmed that the existing procedures and controls for Accounts
Payable were compliant with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules. No improvement
areas were identified, supporting the audit outcome of substantial assurance for both risk
identification maturity and control environment.
Management Actions
Not Applicable

Service Area:

Policy and Resources

Audit Activity:

Procurement - Parking Management Contract

Background
The County Council has a contract for on street parking with APCOA Parking (UK) Ltd,
which includes the option for call-off contracts at District level for off street car parking. The
City Council has made use of this to action a separate call-off contract on the same terms for
the daily management of its off street parking. The services provided by the contract are:
Enforcement at our off street car parks, Back office processing of enforcement appeals, First
line maintenance of the payment machines (e.g. clearing jams), Cash collection and
replacement of ticket rolls, Litter collection, Gritting and Car Park attendants where required.
On 7th February 2018 following the consideration of the available options, Cabinet resolved
that Gloucester City Council would make its own contractual arrangements when the current
contract concludes at the end of August 2018.
Scope
The objectives of this audit were to review the procurement of the new Parking Management
Contract in order to provide assurance that the process was:

24

Page 206

 Conducted in an open and transparent manner;
 Subject to competition; and

 In compliance with the Council’s Constitution, Financial Regulations and relevant
legislation.
Risk Assurance – Substantial
Control Assurance – Substantial
Key findings
 On 7th February 2018 Cabinet provided authority to the Head of Policy and
Resources to procure and enter into a contract for the enforcement and management
of the Council’s car parks from 31st August 2018. The new contract would be for a
maximum term of seven years (an initial five year period with two optional extensions
for 12 month periods).
 Officers commissioned specialist parking services consultants (RTA Associates
Limited) to conduct a soft marketing exercise and to provide options for service
delivery when the current arrangements ceased. This engagement was then
extended to assist in the preparation of tender documentation and to provide support
and advice to officers during the evaluation process.
 This opportunity was formally advertised by the issuing of a Contract Notice (for
publication in OJEU) on 27th March 2018 and through its publication on Contracts
Finder the following day. An OPEN Procedure was advertised with the closing date
for receipt of tender submissions set as 26th April 2018.
 The basis on which the tender submissions would be evaluated was made clear
within the Invitation to Tender (ITT) documentation and instructions. This included the
evaluation criteria and the scoring methodology with the preferred bidder selected by
a combination of (a) Price 40% and (b) Quality 60%.
 Tender submissions were received from three potential providers.
 No tender submissions were received after the deadline. However on examination
the evaluation team considered that one of the bids to be invalid and was therefore
discounted from the full evaluation process.
 Following the tender evaluation process, Indigo Park Services UK Ltd became the
preferred bidder for this contract. This recommendation was approved by the Head of
Policy and Resources (under delegated powers received from Cabinet.
 The bidders were notified on 17th May 2018 that the Council’s preferred bidder was
Indigo Park Services UK Ltd and that prior to completing the contract arrangements a
‘Standstill’ period would commence immediately ending on 28th May 2018.

25

Page 207

 A challenge to the proposed contract award was not received.
Conclusions
Audit review has confirmed the procurement of the new Parking Management Contract has
been conducted in an open and transparent manner and subject to competition. The
evaluation was undertaken by appropriate officers, adequately documented (to support the
outcome) and scored in accordance with the published criteria and methodology.
Management Actions
Not applicable.

Summary of Consulting Activity and/or support provided where no opinions
are provided

Service Area:

Council Wide

Audit Activity:

ICT Assurance Mapping (including policy review)

Background
The Council Information Governance Board action plan for 2017/18 included the task to
review and update the Council's suite of ICT policies, with the target for updated policy
release to staff through NetConsent (the Council's policy management system) from quarter
1 2018/19 onwards.
The task was led by the Head of Policy and Resources and the Intelligent Client Officer IT, in
liaison with Civica (the Council's ICT contract provider).
Scope
ARA input was requested to review the seven draft ICT policies and feedback to the lead
client officers. The policies included the:
 Hardware and Software Policy;
 Password Protection Policy;
 IT and Secure Network Usage Policy;
 Removable Media Policy;
 Security Incident Management Policy;
 Mobile Device Security Policy; and
26

Page 208

 Information Protective Marking Policy.
In addition to the above, the ICT audit scope also required completion of ICT assurance
mapping to support policy review and also identify areas for internal audit within future years.
Key Findings
Internal Audit feedback (compiled by the ICT Audit Manager) on the seven draft ICT policies
was provided to the lead client officers within quarter 3 2017/18. The ICT policies were then
finalised by the Council, prior to roll out to both officers and Members through NetConsent
from June 2018 onwards.
A draft ICT assurance map has been compiled and shared with the lead client officers. The
map is scheduled to be discussed at the June 2018 Information Governance Board. A target
outcome from the meeting will be agreement of ICT internal audit areas for the 2018/19
Internal Audit Plan.
Conclusion
The Council has successfully achieved their target of ICT policy update and roll out to staff
and Members from quarter 1 2018/19.
2018/19 ICT internal audits will be confirmed at the June 2018 Information Governance
Board. The outcome will be shared with Audit and Governance Committee.

27

Page 209

This page is intentionally left blank

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions
Department

Activity Name

Council Wide

Staff Appraisal System

Council Wide

Priority

Activity Status

Risk Opinion

Control Opinion

Reported to Audit
and Governance
Committee

Comments
Brought Forward from 2016/17 plan. To be
considered in 2019/20 plan
Cancelled based on Information Governance
Board decision to prevent duplication of
assurance. Management led review in progress.

Cancelled

IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity

High

Cancelled

Council Wide
Council Wide
Council Wide
Council Wide
Council Wide
Council Wide
Council Wide
Communities
Communities
Communities

Officers' Code of Conduct
Complaints Handling
Scheme of Delegation
Together Gloucester
Network Access Controls
Communications Service
ICT Assurance Mapping (including policy review)
Choice Based Lettings
Project Solace
Homelessness

High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Deferred
Cancelled
Draft Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Consultancy
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Deferred

Cultural and Trading
Cultural and Trading
Cultural and Trading
Cultural and Trading

Cemetery and Crematorium Services
Marketing Gloucester Ltd (MGL) follow up review
Marketing Gloucester Ltd (MGL) Value for Money review
Museums

High
High
High
Medium

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Cancelled

Substantial
Satisfactory
Not Applicable

Cultural and Trading
Cultural and Trading
Place
Place
Place

Box office ticketing and shop-café-bar System
Online Lottery
CCTV
Kings Quarter Development
Licensing (Business Licenses)

High
Medium
Medium
High
Medium

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Cancelled
Final Report Issued
Cancelled

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Not Applicable
Substantial

Place

Planning - Processing and Performance

High

Deferred

Place
Place
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources

Planning Appeal
Amey - Streetcare contract follow up
Accounts Payable
Accounts Receivable
Benefits Uprating
Benefits - Key Controls 2017/18
Blackfriars Priory Turnover Certification
Capital Accounting
Cash and Bank
Council Tax - Setting the Base 2017/18
Local Taxation - Key Financial Controls 2017/18

High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High
High

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Deferred
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Deferred
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Substantial

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Substantial

20/11/2017
20/11/2017
23/07/2018

Substantial
Satisfactory
Not Applicable

Substantial
Satisfactory
Not Applicable

18/09/2017
22/01/2018
18/09/2017

Satisfactory
Substantial
Substantial

Satisfactory
Substantial
Substantial

23/07/2018
18/09/2017
22/01/2018

Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources

Councillors' Community Fund
Electoral Service

Medium
Medium

Final Report Issued
Cancelled

Substantial

Satisfactory

20/11/2017

Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources
Policy and Resources

New Financial Management System
Main Accounting System (General Ledger) 2017/18
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) Multipliers 2017/18
Procurement: Parking Management Contract
Payroll
Housing Discretionary Payments

High
High
High
High
High
High

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued
Draft Report Issued
Final Report Issued

Satisfactory
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial

Satisfactory
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial

18/09/2017
22/01/2018
18/09/2017
23/07/2018

Brought Forward from 2016/17 plan

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

12/03/2018

Exempt report
Exempt report

High
High

Final Report Issued
Final Report Issued

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

23/07/2018
20/11/2017

New activity requested by Audit and
Governance Committee
New activity
Brought Forward from 2016/17 plan

Page 211

Medium

Page 1 of 1

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

Limited
Satisfactory

18/09/2017
20/11/2017
Included in 2018/19 plan
Council received a PEER review in 2017/18

Substantial
Not Applicable
Satisfactory
Satisfactory

Satisfactory
Not Applicable
Satisfactory
Limited

23/07/2018
23/07/2018
20/11/2017
22/01/2018

New activity (consultancy)

Brought Forward from 2016/17 plan. Included in
2018/19 plan
Substantial
Satisfactory
Not Applicable

20/11/2017
18/09/2017
18/09/2017
Reprioritised to be considered for 2019/20 plan

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Not Applicable
Substantial

20/11/2017
12/03/2018
Medium Priority
12/03/2018
Included in 2018/19 plan
Included in 2018/19 plan, due to requested
prioritisation of the planning appeal review (new
activity)
New activity

Included in 2018/19 plan

Included in 2018/19 plan

Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates
(NNDR) combined internal audit
GDPR project to review security of data within
the Council (original requested audit scope)

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 213

This page is intentionally left blank

